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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

RAFHA  BXEZBMEN

“Acting in Concert Parties”

[—HTBHAL]

“AGM"

[ EREFRE ]

“Articles of Association”

"associate(s)"”

RE-YN

“Beijing OriginWater”

[ b B KIR ]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[E=g]

“Chairman”

[EEK]

“Company”, “our Company” or

“Yunnan Water”

[RAB %[ EREKE]

“connected person(s)”

[BAZEAL]

THFAEAFATRE -

Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong

FEELRE BERRERTIERLE

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held by 30 June 2021

ARARBR - E-—FRA=ZTHARTZRRBFRE

the articles of association of the Company

KARMEBERMA

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EHHRBIETZ AR E

Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (It REKERHERMDBIRAE]), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock

Exchange (stock code: 300070)

ERBKRERBEBRMDERAR  REBKRYHBROERAR  EROERIEERI S LN
(B R 5% - 300070)

the Board of Directors of the Company

RARMNEEZ

the Chairman of the Board

EER

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (EFE/KEEERKBBR AR, a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

EMABRERODABRAR  RPBEEMAZOBRNDERDR - EHRER R AT ER (%
SR 5%  6839)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EWmRAE TZANRE
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Definitions

“controlling shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
[ 22 P& R R BB EWABIE TR0 E
“Corporate Governance Code” the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in Appendix 14

to the Listing Rules

[hEERTA FTRAMSETTIMAENEEE T REEE RS

“Director(s)” the director(s) of our Company

= KARES

“Domestic Share(s)” the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of

the Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

[RERK] NARERBIIEFRNARARATEREAEARB1.00THEETEBK

"ESG” environmental, social, and governance

[ESG] B e RER

“ESG Guide” the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules

[ESGHE 5l | RE e NEARMSES W LR B ER27 Pt

“Group” or “our Group” the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time

[AREHE ] KRB RETEOMNER A

“H Share(s)” the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of

the Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

[HAZ EMRMER EHOARARATFREEARE1.00THE#HITEBRK

"HK$” Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[T EREEEEET

"HKFRS" Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting Standards and

Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting Standard Board

[EEM RS ER] ERVBHRELED BEEESHEAREEGHEAZE@RMNRE
“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
[&E] B & B R Bl AT IR
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“Listing Rules”

[ LAl

“Model Code”

BTl

“PPP Project”

[PPPIE § |

"PRC" or “China”

[ ]

"Reporting Period”

[ k& H

“RMB"

(AR

“SEQ™

[ M e %]

“Share(s)"”

itn |

“Shareholder(s)"”

[BXER |

“Stock Exchange”

[ B3t 32 FfT |

“subsidiary(ies)”

[ B 8 2~ & ]

el

Definitions

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B X P RE 25 T AR B

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules

EHRANMESETAEN EMETAESETESRXZINRETRI

Fi

the public-private-partnership project

BEMtEEAAIFRE

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report only, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

MEARANE BAREME  TREFE PERMFITREREE

the 12-month period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020

HECE - ZF-A-HRBE-Z-ZTF+-_A=+—HIE+-@AAHMH

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEEEEEARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

BEROESE(ES RBEHRD

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
including the H Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)

RAARBRATFREBEARBEI.OTH L ER  BHEHIRERNER

the holder(s) of the Share(s)

B EA A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BRBEXIMARRA

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LTHRANE TZANRE
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Definitions

“Supervisor(s)"”

(B %]

“Supervisory Committee”
[BEEZEg]

“"THB"

[Z= K]

“Undertaking Shareholders”

[ AGE R

uUS$n or “UsD"

=

“"YHTH"

[EMEREE]

“Ymcl”

[Em s E]

“Yunnan Province Water”

[ % k)

o/

[%]

* For identification purposes only

- EHES

supervisor(s) of the Company

KAFKEEE

the supervisory committee of the Company

AARMEEERE

el

i3

Thailand Baht(s), the lawful currency of Thailand

REVEEEBRHK

namely YHTH, Yunnan Province Water and Beijing OriginWater
MEmERER - ERE KB RIEREBKR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
EREFEEBET

Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (Ef & EIKIEREBE AR A A)
(formerly known as Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.* (EFE MM ERE
ZEBARAT]), a limited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole shareholder
of Yunnan Province Water, the Company’s controlling shareholder and one of the Undertaking
Shareholders

EHERREREEERAR(IBEHARTRERREEBEARAAF) RABEKINER
BEERRAREEAKBOME -—RER  RBEARABIERKRRHE D — 2 F &R

Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.* (EE& WM MERICEELEEERAR), a
limited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole shareholder of Yunnan Province
Water, the Company’s controlling shareholder and one of the Undertaking Shareholders, its
company name has been changed to “Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co.,
Ltd.* (ZEFERIRIZEREBEBRAF)" on 26 November 2020

ERMERTRERREESEERAF RPERINARETARRERA KB —BR
REARARERBEREEP - REAHNRR  HEZBER-_Z-_ZF+—-A-+XAELA
[EMARKEREEER A A ]

Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (EE&/KEEZIZREER AT, a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC

EMEKBEEREARAR  RPABRZMKIHERETERA
per cent

ALt
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The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights

EFZE@MASTH N INPHHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HBLFE

2020 2019 Percentage
—E-FHF —E-NF Change
RMB’000 RMB’000 29

ARET T ARBF T
Revenue I = 8,396,630 6,538,024 28.4%
Gross profit EF 2,096,132 1,832,313 14.4%
Profit before income tax T 18 % Bl i A 502,624 677,549 -25.8%
EBITDA Mote 1 BRAE  HIE ER 2,346,764 2,012,308 16.6%

8 A & A D

Profit for the year F N A 341,311 553,808 -38.4%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) BREESEHRE(%) 4.49% 6.48% N/A A~ 3
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BRERBI(ARET) 0.187 0.334 -44.0%

Note 1: EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of finance cost — net, income taxation,
depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's audited profit attributable to ordinary
Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB223.1 million (for the year ended 31
December 2019: approximately RMB398.2 million).

Basic earnings per share for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB0.187
per share (for the year ended 31 December 2019: basic earnings approximately
RMBO0.334 per share), the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, and the
weighted average number of Shares of approximately of 1,193,213,000 (2019:
1,193,213,000) in issue during the Reporting Period.

The Board recommended the payment of the final dividend of RMB0.06 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31
December 2019: RMBO0.15 per ordinary share). The Company did not declare or
pay any interim dividend or special dividend for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The proposed final dividend is subject to consideration and approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM.

BiAE  REARAREE - BRI AR
AMBHE  BIE FEREBWNZAFER
7 -

RAREHRR  AEBEBLCEZARRLBR
BREEEEMOAEARBE23 188 L(HE
T NE+ZA=Z+—HLEE : HAR
¥3982H B L) ©

HREMRNERERRF N ABARE0.1877T (B
E-E-NE+_A=Z+—BHLEFE: 88
BRHAENRE033470) F X FREXEF
SRENEARR L BREREL SR RRE
R E B 1TH R 19 IR 19 491,193,213,000
B (—ZF— AL :1,193,213,000 %) B0 &
i E -
EEeRBRREBEE_T-_TE+-_A=+—
BIEFENRBRETGREBIRARK0.06
T(BE_T—-NAF+_A=+—BILFE:
BRLEBEBARKOIST) BE_T_TF
+ZA=+—"BLEFE FARARERIX
HE R R BB S sk R R B -

BEERAHREBARERABRRAFREEHS
BIBRIGAEE -
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Chairman’s Statement

& E KU

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

In 2020, the once-in-a-century outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has adversely
affected the global economy significantly, and the degree of economic recession
and uncertainty in various countries were increasing day by day. After nearly a
year of adjustment, the current economic situation shows some signs of recovery,
but the paces of economic recovery of various countries vary. In the face of
complex and challenging internal and external environment, the domestic economy
has rebounded strongly in the epidemic crisis and achieved growth, with economic
results even higher than expected. In the complex epidemic prevention and control
measures at home and abroad, China’s environmental protection industry has
withstood a severe test. A large number of environmental protection enterprises
have acted quickly to contribute to the epidemic prevention and control and laid a
foundation for promoting the environmental protection industry to a new level.

The year 2020 is the last year for realization of the 13th Five-Year Plan, and
the decisive year of pollution prevention and control. Environmental protection
industry has shown new characteristics. Firstly, environmental protection enterprises
have gradually entered into the form of industrial collectivization; secondly,
environmental protection enterprises have gradually evolved from professional
governance in a certain field to comprehensive solution of environmental
protection problems; in addition, technological advantages have gradually become
the key to sustainable development of environmental protection enterprises. In
the aspect of water industry, intelligent water business has been flourishing in
the water business industry in recent years. In particular, in 2020 during which
the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic took place, the country has proposed to
increase investment in digital economy and artificial intelligence, which will further
promote the development of intelligent water; In terms of solid waste, with the
promotion and popularization of waste classification, the amount of waste clearing
and transportation has been increasing, and the demand for harmless treatment
has increased significantly.
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Facing the complex external environment and the challenge brought by the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Board has thoroughly analysed the domestic and foreign
economic situation, and based on the principle of adaptability and foresight,
constantly overcome all kinds of challenges according to the actual needs of the
Company's current operation development. Since the second quarter, the Group
has rapidly resumed work and production, accelerated the construction progress of
projects under construction, optimised the operation efficiency of existing assets,
expanded the demand for upgrading and expansion of existing assets, prudently
expanded incremental assets, and worked hard to fight against the epidemic,
while achieving stable and healthy development of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, under the leadership of the Board, the Group,
proactively adjusted its asset structure and continuously improved its project operation
management. In the face of difficulties and the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, the
operating results remained basically stable. During the Reporting Period, the Group
recorded a total annual revenue of approximately RMB8,396.6 million, representing
an increase of approximately 28.4% as compared to approximately RMB6,538.0
million of last year. Profit for the year was approximately RMB341.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 38.4% as compared to approximately
RMB553.8 million of last year. Through investments in new construction and equity
acquisition, the Group has owned 225 water treatment projects with a total treatment
volume of approximately 6,433,600 tonnes per day as of 31 December 2020. The
Group's business segment of solid waste treatment, an important focus of strategic
development of the Group, has exhibited rapid development during the Reporting
Period. As of 31 December 2020, the Group owned 23 solid waste treatment projects
with treatment capacity of approximately 4,045,500 tonnes per day.

On the basis of the Group’s good operating results and solid financial position,
and considering the long-term sustainable development of the Group, the Board
proposes to distribute a final dividend of RMB0.06 to Shareholders to repay their
long-term support and contribution to the Group. The distribution of final dividend
shall be subject to approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. Upon
approval, the final dividend will be paid on or before 30 July 2021.

In 2021, the Group will continue to pay great efforts in two principal businesses
of water and solid waste treatment. It will accelerate the progress of projects
under construction, improve the operation and management level of existing
projects, prudently conduct market development and project investment. In
addition to that, the Group will explore new technologies and sectors in the
environmental protection industry, and optimize the debt structure, aiming for the

release of bonuses and value enhancement.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

& E KU

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to the management and employees of the Group for their loyalty
and diligence, and also to our Shareholders, our Board members, investors and
partners for their long-term support. The Group will continue to create great value
for its Shareholders with excellent performance and contribute to the development
of environmental industry and the construction of ecological civilization.

Li Jialong
Chairman

S5

Kunming, the PRC
31 March 2021
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2020 is an extraordinary year. The sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic
has disrupted the pace of social economic operation. In the face of the challenges
brought by the COVID-19 epidemic, environmental protection enterprises acted
quickly to contribute to epidemic prevention and control. China’s environmental
protection industry was under great test and pressure, and gained new
development and growth. In 2020, the revised Law on the Prevention and
Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes ( ( Elf2REY))5LIRIE
F75a3%) ) was officially implemented. The pilot construction of "wasteless city"
has been promoted step by step, the import of solid waste has been banned, the
classification of domestic waste and the treatment of plastic pollution have been
carried out, which has promoted the standardized development of China’s solid
waste treatment industry. The policies on sewage treatment have been introduced
one after another, and the supervision of water environmental protection has
been strengthened, which promotes the marketization of water treatment and
the expansion of the overall scale of water environmental protection industry. In
the future, “waste recycling” will become the development direction in the field
of environmental protection, technology, standardisation and refinement will also
become important indexes of the core competitiveness of environmental protection

enterprises.

EPIDEMIC PREVENTION AND CONTROL MEASURES

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, Yunnan Water has promptly taken
practical actions to join the front line of epidemic prevention and control. The
Group’s four medical waste treatment enterprises have always adhered to their
post to strictly prevent the secondary spread of epidemic disease.

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION

Affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group’s operation in the first half of
2020 was not as expected. With the effective control of the epidemic situation,
the Group quickly resumed work and production, and focused on accelerating the
construction progress of projects under construction and improving the operation
and management level of projects in operation in the second half of 2020. The
Group’s operating income remained stable in 2020, laying a foundation for the
further release of operating benefits in the future. In the future, the Group will
start the three-year action of improving the quality and efficiency of water sector
operation, make reasonable statistics and monitoring, pay close attention to the
operation status, further improve the operation management level in an all-round
way, and systematically promote the work of improving the quality and efficiency
of water sector operation projects.

At the same time, the Group will focus on human, material, financial, technical
resources and other advantageous resources to fully promote the development
and construction of key projects, highlight the implementation of key projects, pay
close attention to the project construction progress and quality control, and ensure
the smooth realization of the annual construction goals.
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TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group always adheres to a core technology-supported and proprietary
innovation-driven development model and values the importance of the role of
core technologies for the long-term development of enterprises. In 2020, the
Group developed and promoted the application of MBR integrated intelligent
water treatment device with core technology for rural sewage treatment projects
with strong market demand; At the same time, the Group also takes the
development and application of sludge pyrolysis and carbonization technology as
an important research and development direction, which will provide important
technical support for the reduction, harmlessness, stabilization and recycling of

solid organic waste treatment.

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

In 2020, the Group continued to adopt the strategy of prudent and has focused
on the existing high-quality project upgrading and transformation opportunities.
By actively participating in market bidding, new investment and equity acquisition,
the Group has continued to consolidate the market scale of water supply and
drainage business and solid waste treatment business, laying a good foundation

for the sustainable development of the Group.

FINANCING

In 2020, owing to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the operating costs of
the environmental protection industry increased, the treating income decreased to
varying degrees, and the uncertainty of the resumption of construction in progress
or project payment collection brought greater pressure on the capital chain of
environmental protection enterprises. In view of the severe situation of tightened
financing, the Group continued to strengthen its cooperation with financial
institutions and employed multiple financial management methods, and reduced
inefficient deployment of resources to speed up capital turnover; During the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group actively sought to innovate its financing mode.
The Group successfully issued “the first special PPN for epidemic prevention and
control in the water industry in China” of RMB100 million and “the first epidemic
prevention and control debt related to medical waste disposal” of RMB800 million.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND FUTURE
PROSPECT

Going forward in 2021, upholding the positioning of “first-rate urban
environmental protection integrated services provider”, the Group will continue to
pay great effort on two principal businesses of water and solid waste treatment
and perform well in all stages of project investment, construction and operation.
It will commit itself to further enhancing the standards of the Company’s projects
and operation management, so as to improve its profitability.

One of the Group's task priorities in 2021 is to strengthen operation management
and continuously improve operation quality. The sooner existing projects obtained
by the Group from previous expansion are put into operation the earlier, the
better as they can bring stable cash inflow and sustainable momentum for the
development of the Group. To this end, the Group has put in place a relatively
complete assessment and supervision mechanism to ensure the progress of
projects under construction. Meanwhile, the Group proactively promoted the
quality and efficiency enhancement of projects in operation. The efficiency
improvement of existing projects of the Group enables the operation level as well
as business scale of the Group to be elevated as a whole, thereby enhancing its
overall competitiveness.

In terms of new technologies, the Group will continue to promote the research
and marketing of key projects, such as sludge carbonization and intelligent water.
Through the development of its core technology and the joint effort of external
partners, the Group will strive to promote its projects in a scalable manner as
soon as possible. In 2021, the Group will also actively carry out cooperation in the
field of environmental new energy and reserve key core technologies.

In terms of financing, the Group intends to actively introduce equity financing
in an appropriate way to further enhance the development momentum, improve
the existing capital structure and increase its financing capacity, striving for the
reduction of gearing ratio.

In 2021, the Group will continue to optimize operation and prudently proceed
with development as an urban environmental protection integrated services
provider. It will make scientific investments in PRC and overseas water, solid
waste treatment and other segments, with a view to further enhance the Group’s
market competitiveness and strive for the sustainable development of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The year of 2020 is the last year for realization of the 13th Five-Year Plan, and
the decisive year of pollution prevention and control. The sudden outbreak of
COVID-19 has disrupted the pace of social economic operation. Environmental
protection enterprises have shown agility to respond promptly to contribute to
epidemic prevention and control. The environmental protection in the PRC industry
has withstood the severe test and gained new development and growth.

Affected by the epidemic, the environmental protection industry in the PRC
was severely impacted in the first and second quarters of 2020, and the overall
situation was grim and complex. Since the third quarter of 2020, with the gradual
effective prevention and control of the COVID-19 epidemic, enterprises in the
environmental protection industry have actively resumed work and production,
and the overall operation of the industry gradually recovered. In March 2020,
the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs issued the Key Points of Green
Development of Agriculture and Rural Areas in 2020* ( (20205 2 ¥ ER 4G
FEETIEZEZL) ), and several ministries jointly released a notice on promoting
the governance of rural residential environment, to make the importance of
rural environment governance explicit. In June 2020, the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment officially published the Outline of Ecological and Environmental
Monitoring Plan (2020-2035)* ( (A REIRIRES AR £ E(2020-2035)4F ) ), stating
that an innovative and modern ecological and environmental monitoring system
must be in place to comprehensively advance the monitor of environmental
quality, pollution sources and ecological conditions. In July 2020, the National
Green Development Fund Co., Ltd. (IR EERESKRHBRAR]) (the “Fund”)
was officially introduced and commenced operation. The Fund will focus on
the investment of pollution control, ecological rehabilitation and land space
greening, energy and resource conservation, green transportation and clean
energy. In September 2020, the revised Law on the Prevention and Control of
BEY S RIRE AR E) )

was officially implemented, which further clarifies that the prevention and control

Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes ( (&%

of environmental pollution by solid waste should adhere to the principles of
reduction, recycling and harmlessness, and that the state should implement the
domestic waste classification system and impose severe punishment on illegal
acts. In October 2020, the 14th Five-Year Plan put forward that green production
and life style should be formed extensively in 2035, and carbon emissions will
be stable after reaching the peak. The ecological environment will be improved,
and the goal of beautiful China will be basically realized. In December 2020, the
Measures for the Administration of Ecological Environment Standards ( {AEREIRIE
IZAEEBYEE) ) was promulgated, which is the command and guide of China's
ecological environment standard work, and stipulates the constitution, principles

and implementation methods of the ecological environment standard system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In respect of the water business industry, in recent years, the demand for
water supply and drainage in the PRC and the PRC government’s efforts in
environmental protection have been increasing, and the demand for water
environment treatment has been developing in depth. On the one hand, the
quality and efficiency of water use should be improved, and stricter water-saving
system should be implemented. The construction of urban sewage facilities and
the inspection of sewage discharge should be improved, so as to further release
the sewage treatment capacity. With the requirements of green development,
rural areas, where backward and inefficient wastewater treatment facilities are in
an urgent need of improvement, exhibit great potential for investment in water
industry. In recent years, intelligent water business has been flourishing in the
water business industry, which is growing more sophisticated and intelligent with
the use of the internet, big data and other technologies. In light of the intelligent
water business with more new technologies, water business enterprises are
expected to enjoy enhanced competitiveness and broader market prospects.

As an important driving force to protect ecological balance and realize recyclable
economy, solid waste treatment industry has frequently issued relevant national
policies. At present, the trend of “harmless treatment” in the solid waste industry
is obvious, and the “waste recycling” will become an important index affecting
the competitiveness of solid waste treatment enterprises. The traditional way of
waste treatment is changing, and the utilization of waste recycling will become
the mainstream direction. At the same time, the development of mechanized
cleaning and transportation of sanitation has accelerated, which has presented
a huge market for development. In the field of hazardous waste, with the
construction of large-scale treatment facilities, it is expected to become the
fastest growing market for solid waste treatment. On the other hand, the market
competition of solid waste treatment industry is becoming increasingly fierce. With
the refinement of energy subsidy policy, enterprises must pay effort to reduce
costs, and constantly research and develop technology to improve production.
Enterprises will shift from focusing on scale to quality, and operation ability will
play a key role in the future development of enterprises.

In recent years, China’s sludge treatment technology has made some progress,
and the policies and standards of sludge treatment are gradually improved.
However, in the face of the higher requirements of social development for
biomass energy and environmental quality, the transformation of sludge treatment
from harmless to recycling will become trending for environmental protection
enterprises in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2020 is the critical year for the construction of ecological civilization. In the face
of the severe and complex international situation, coupled with the impact of
the COVID-19 epidemic and the tremendous pressure of the economic downturn,
environmental protection enterprises have shown great market resilience and
stamina from pause to recovery. The Group will unify its operation objectives
and social responsibilities, and contribute to the development of environmental
protection industry and the construction of ecological civilization.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

In the face of the severe and complex international situation, the severe impact of
the epidemic and the tremendous pressure of the economic downturn, the Group
was capable to tackle difficulties in 2020 by overcoming the adverse impact of
COVID-19 pandemic, properly dealing with the severe and complex development
environment, and carrying out substantial work in project operation, engineering

construction and market development.

Going forward in 2021, on the basis of continuing to consolidate the existing
project construction progress and operation management level, the Group will
strengthen equity financing, reduce financial leverage, and focus on market
opportunities in comprehensive solid waste treatment, sludge treatment and
comprehensive rural environmental improvement, so as to further improve its
profit quality.

Optimize the financing structure. The Group will overcome the obstacles
brought by the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic, accelerate the implementation
progress of projects under construction and planned to ensure the realization of
investment profits as soon as possible; At the same time, the Group will consider
other ways of financing, such as equity financing to improve the existing capital
structure, enhance the financing space, realize the repair of performance and
valuation, so as to better realize the benign operation. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to implement the regional management mode, accelerate the cultivation
of key projects through prudent and reasonable capital expenditure, so as to
realize the adjustment of income structure and the stable expansion of business.

Continuously improve operation quality. The Group will continue to carry out
benchmarking management. By evaluating the relevant indicators reflecting the
performance of operation management, the Group will formulate benchmarking
management plan according to the actual situation of the Company and the
project to integrate with the annual assessment of operation management. The
Group will accelerate the improvement of quality and efficiency of existing projects
and further optimize the yield of sewage projects, at the same time, to accelerate
the promotion and popularization of the intelligent water business of the Group,
enhance the core competitiveness of the Group’s sewage treatment in rural areas,
and build up the operation and management advantages of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

The Group will continue to accelerate its progress in technology research and
development and market promotion on the basis of core technology, fully tap into
the potential of employees, attract and retain talents, and continuously enhance
the enterprise’s innovation ability and sustainable development ability. At the same
time, the Group pays close attention to various new policies and new hot spots in
the field of environmental protection industry, pays close attention to technology
exploration and technology promotion, cooperates with advantageous enterprises
in the industry authorized by the government, provides one-stop solutions to cities
and towns in order to further enhance the core competitiveness of the Group.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to adhere to the development goal of
“based in Yunnan, covering the nation and going global, striving to be a leading
integrated environmental services provider at the municipal level”* (. 2E/ * ®
mEE - EMBERE - MK AELHRER RS RIER), and pay close attention
to the development of the industry, grasp the industry development trend, further
improve the Group's technical strength, core competitiveness and social influence,
and constantly create greater value for its shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in China. The Group mainly adopts the Build-
Operate-Transfer (“"BOT"), Build-Own-Operate (“BOO"), Transfer-Operate-
Transfer (“TOT"), Transfer-Own-Operate (“TOO"), Build and Transfer (“BT"),
Engineering-Procurement-Construction (“EPC"), Rehabilitate-Operate-Transfer
("ROT"), Operation and Maintenance (“O&M") and licensed operation models to
provide customized and integrated turnkey solutions for water supply, wastewater
treatment and solid waste treatment as well as system integration services of core
technologies to customers. The Group's businesses are carried out in the PRC and
the Southeast Asian countries, the Group's principal businesses comprise five major
segments, namely, wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment,

construction and sales of equipment and others.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's water related projects (including the
following wastewater treatment projects, water supply projects and all water
related projects under other business segments) had the total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 6,433,600 tonnes. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group’s solid waste treatment related projects (including the following solid waste
treatment projects and all solid waste treatment related projects under other
business segments) had the total annual treatment capacity of approximately
4,045,500 tonnes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 128 concession wastewater
treatment projects, including 7 BOO projects, 69 BOT projects, 2 TOO projects,
20 TOT projects, 2 ROT projects and 28 municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects, with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 3,568,800
tonnes, representing a reduction of 1 TOT project, and an addition of 5 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects year-on-year, and an increase
in the daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 188,400 tonnes
or a growth rate of approximately 5.6% as compared with the year ended 31
December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, 93 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 2,533,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
(including 1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project with a
total daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 11,000 tonnes),
representing a reduction of 1 TOT project, and an addition of 3 BOT projects
which commenced operation year-on-year, and an increase in total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 55,000 tonnes as compared with the year ended 31
December 2019. During the Reporting Period, the Group's effective wastewater
treatment utilization rate was approximately 77.4%, and the average unit charge

of wastewater treatment was approximately RMB1.47 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2020, 35 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 1,035,800 tonnes had not commenced commercial
operation (including 27 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 757,900 tonnes), representing
an addition of 6 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects, 1
municipal environment comprehensive treatment project converted to EPC model,
3 BOT projects under construction converted to operation, and the daily treatment
capacity increased by approximately 133,400 tonnes as compared with 31
December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Water Supply Projects

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 68 concession water supply
projects with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 2,480,100 tonnes,
including 15 BOO projects, 36 BOT projects, 11 TOT projects and 6 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects, representing an addition of 1 BOT
project and 1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project, and an
increase in total daily capacity of approximately 35,000 tonnes as compared with
31 December 2019, representing a growth rate of approximately 1.4%.

As at 31 December 2020, 46 concession projects with total daily capacity of
approximately 1,530,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation (including
1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project with a total daily
treatment capacity of approximately 30,000 tonnes), representing an addition of 8
BOT projects, and an increase in the total daily capacity of approximately 125,000
tonnes as compared with 31 December 2019. During the Reporting Period, the
Group's commercial water supply decreased due to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. the Group's effective water supply utilization rate was approximately
63.8%, and the average unit charge of water supply was approximately RMB2.24
per tonne.

As at 31 December 2020, 22 concession projects with total daily capacity
of approximately 950,100 tonnes had not commenced commercial operation
(including 5 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects with total
daily treatment capacity of approximately 429,700 tonnes), representing an
addition of 1 PPP project and 1 BOT project, 8 BOT projects under construction
converted to operation, and the total daily capacity decreased by approximately

90,000 tonnes as compared with 31 December 2019.
Solid Waste Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 23 solid waste treatment projects with
total annual treatment capacity of 4,045,500 tonnes, 8 of which with an annual
treatment capacity of 1,169,400 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
and 15 of them with an annual treatment capacity of 2,876,100 tonnes were
under construction (including 3 municipal environment comprehensive treatment
projects with an annual treatment capacity of approximately 1,119,800 tonnes,
and the municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects were reduced
by 1 as compared with 31 December 2019, because the project converted to BOT
model). As compared to 31 December 2019, 2 additional solid waste treatment
projects were under construction and the total annual treatment capacity increased
by 474,500 tonnes. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective solid waste
treatment utilization rate was approximately 80.4%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Construction and Sales of Equipment

The Group's construction and sales of equipment segment comprises BT projects,
EPC projects and sales of equipment. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a
total of 11 BT projects, which were either under construction and/or completed,
among which revenue of 10 BT projects was recognised during the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 13 EPC projects,

representing an addition of 2 EPC project as compared with 31 December 2019.

The Group engages in the production, sales and installation of equipment for
wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment and other infrastructure
facilities. The major category of water related equipment in the Group's
production is membrane. Most of the membrane products are produced by the

own plant of the Group.
Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M projects for
wastewater treatment and water supply owned by third parties as well as
provision of technical and consultancy services in relation to environmental
protection. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 29 O&M projects,
representing a reduction of 1 wastewater treatment project as compared with 31
December 2019. These projects included 28 wastewater treatment projects with
total daily treatment capacity of approximately 379,700 tonnes (including the
capacity of wastewater treatment projects adopting O&M model within municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects), and 1 water supply project with

daily treatment capacity of approximately 5,000 tonnes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB8,396.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 28.4% compared
with the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group realized a net profit of
approximately RMB341.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
38.4% compared with the year ended 31 December 2019. Profit attributable
to the ordinary shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB223.1
million, representing a decrease of approximately 44.0% as compared with 31
December 2019. Earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 was

approximately RMB0.187.

EEE RS

BERRBHE

AEBMBERBEHESDHRIETEE -
EPCIEE RBHHEE BE_T_TF1+=-A
=t+—8 AEBEEZR KD EIABT
BEA11E - HP10EBTE B MR AR RS
HAERBWE -

REEHR - AEBEPCEE £13@  ®_F
—NFE+=ZA=+—HEM2MEAEPCIBE -
AEBEEE  HERTE[KERE - #K -
BEEEEENEMEMRENRE  NEEAM
SERNKBHEBSENEZHIABEER -

ABLBEEFHASEES THMAEE °

H fth

REEBTEREHANBIRE = F AR5 KERE
RHKFAROGMIER » WiRE T HIRBERE
HENENREARYE B@E-_T-_FF+=
A=+—8 AEHEEB29E0MEE &

—NWEF+ A=+ —BRDVESKERE
HE - Hh - 28 HERE L E4A379,7001F
RS KEIEEE (BEMBIRELEAEIEE
FLAOMIE R (8 & K 57K B3R 1H B MR 1E) -
18 H R IE 8 4 55000 K HKIBER -

B 75 [0
REXRE

AEBRBEHANES RSN ARKS396.6
BEL HBEEEZE-_Z—HhhF+=_A=+-—
Bl EEERELH284% - RAEBEHF T
HARKEIMNIBEEL  BEEEZE-_T—NF
+ZA=+—HLFERDH384% - AR
AIEBRBREELRENOAARK223188
T HEBRBEZZ-AF+_A=+—8K
K4944.0% - BE-_T-_TF+=-A=+—8
IEFENBRAMNNABARK0187TT ©

Annual Report 2020 4F & R4 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k BB &M B H R A 7 23



Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased from approximately RMB6,538.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB8,396.6 million for the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 28.4%.

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from wastewater
treatment significant increased from approximately RMB2,978.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB5,286.5 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from water supply decreased by approximately 20.7%
from approximately RMB1,230.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMB975.6 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from solid
waste treatment decreased by approximately 11.1% from RMB1,514.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB1,346.7 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from construction and sales of equipment decreased
by approximately 13.1% from approximately RMB714.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB621.1 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from other business increased from approximately RMB99.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB166.7 million for the
Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the wastewater treatment segment was mainly
attributable to the increase in construction revenue of the existing and new
wastewater treatment projects in the course of construction during the Reporting
Period.

The decrease in revenue from the water supply business segment was mainly
attributable to the decrease in construction revenue as some water supply projects
were completed during the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the solid waste treatment business segment was
mainly attributable to the decrease in operation revenue during the Reporting

Period.
The decrease in revenue from the construction and sales of equipment business

segment was mainly attributable to the decrease in scale of EPC construction
services and equipment sales during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB6,300.5 million, representing an increase of approximately 33.9% as
compared with approximately RMB4,705.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The increase was primarily due to (i) some water plants under
construction in 2019 were converted to operation in 2020, and started to
recognise depreciation and operating costs during the Reporting Period; (ii) some
projects were renovated or expanded with higher treatment capacity during the
Reporting Period which resulted in the increase of revenue and operating costs
accordingly.

Gross Profit

During the Reporting Period, gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB2,096.1 million, representing an increase of approximately 14.4% as
compared with approximately RMB1,832.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Other Income

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income of approximately
RMB86.7 million as compared with approximately RMB124.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of approximately 30.1%. The
decrease in other income was mainly due to a decrease in income of government
grants.

Other Gains — net

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net gains of approximately
RMB48.8 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB50.2 million as
compared with a net loss of approximately RMB1.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. The increase in other gains was mainly due to net gain on
disposal of investment in a joint venture.

Selling Expenses

During the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB42.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 2.3% as compared
with RMB43.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by RMB17.5 million from
approximately RMB424.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB441.7 million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of approximately 4.1%. The increase in administrative expenses was primarily due
to an increase in depreciation and amortisation and legal and professional fee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Finance Costs — net

Net finance costs increased by RMB439.1 million from approximately RMB814.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB1,253.3
million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 53.9%.
The increase in net finance costs was primarily due to an increase in borrowings

and increase of average interest rate on borrowings during the Reporting Period.

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for the Reporting Period
was approximately 5.74% per annum, representing an increase compared with
approximately 5.32% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Profit Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded profit before income tax of
approximately RMB502.6 million for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease
of approximately 25.8% as compared with approximately RMB677.5 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased by RMB37.6 million from approximately RMB123.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB161.3 million
for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 30.4%. The
increase is caused by a change in the profitability of the Group's subsidiaries in
respective countries and regions as a result of different corporate income tax rates
being applied during the Reporting Period.

Profit and Net Profit Margin for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the Reporting Period decreased by
RMB212.5 million from approximately RMB553.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RMB341.3 million for the Reporting Period,
representing a decrease of approximately 38.4%. Net profit margin decreased
from approximately 8.5% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
4.1% for the Reporting Period.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group's receivables under service concession arrangements increased by
RMB223.1 million from approximately RMB5,078.3 million as at 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB5,301.4 million as at 31 December 2020, representing
an increase of approximately 4.4%. Such increase was due to a number of
concession projects commenced commercial operation during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group’s trade and other receivables and prepayments increased by RMB834.7
million from approximately RMB8,770.1 million as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB9,604.8 million as at 31 December 2020, representing
an increase of approximately 9.5%. Such increase was primarily due to the
continuous operation of EPC construction and sales of equipment business.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased by RMB770.7 million from
approximately RMB2,468.4 million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB1,697.7 million as at 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of
approximately 31.2%. Such decrease was primarily due to the net cash used in
operating and investment activities which was partially offset by the net cash

generated from financing activities during the Reporting Period.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group's trade and other payables increased by RMB2,068.4 million from
approximately RMB6,968.0 million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB9,036.4 million as at 31 December 2020, representing an increase of
approximately 29.7%. Such increase was primarily due to an increase in
construction services payable due to the continuous investments in municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects under construction.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB27,541.8 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB21,618.9 million).
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had unsecured borrowings of approximately
RMB15,365.8 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB12,885.1 million),
and secured borrowings of approximately RMB12,176.0 million (31 December
2019: approximately RMB8,733.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, borrowing of approximately RMB12,176.0 million (31
December 2019: approximately RMB8,733.8 million) were secured by the Group's
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets, right-of-
use assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total capital)
increased from approximately 69.14% as at 31 December 2019 to approximately
77.26% as at 31 December 2020. The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to
the increased scale of debt financing during the Reporting Period.

The Board will closely monitor and improve the gearing ratio of the Group. In
respect of financial resources available, the Group has reached an investment
cooperation intention with a trust company on the scale of about RMB2 billions of
perpetual bond, and the specific cooperation scheme is under final consideration
by both parties.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31, December 2020, the Group employed 7,007 employees (31 December
2019: 6,666). During the Reporting Period, staff cost was approximately 588.9
million (for the year ended 31 December 2019: 605.3 million). The Group will
strive to ensure that the remuneration level of employees is in line with industry
practices and prevailing market conditions, and remunerations of employees will
be determined based on their performance. The remuneration package provided to
employees also includes basic and floating salaries, discretionary bonus and staff
benefits. The Group also provides external and internal training programs for its

employees.

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes causing any material
impact on its normal business operations.

28 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #51& & ik {9 & R A &l Annual Report 2020 4 [& i &

EEERHA

RZEZZEF+ZA=+—H AR%
12,176 0B 8 (ZE—hEF+=ZRAR=+—
H: HARES7338FET)MERAANER
RIS EELH THRBGRE  AHNEE -
ERELE W BELRSE UREFE
ERARBRKBARNEEEREKR -

EERSENER

AEBEERBEMNLR(ZFEBRUNEBE
AHBE)H-_T—AF+_A=+—HBHH
69.14%EE T _FTF+_A=+—HHH
77.26% - AEEHEBEOLPINERFERA
RMEBANEE R E AR EIEMATE -

EEgHEYERNNEAEENEERA
ENLEE -ERMBERME AKEE
ARBEHOARE20B T KBEERR —E7T
RAERKRERERER ABSENRES
EHEBRKEZED o

BE K% MBUR

RZZ-_TE+-_A=+—8 AEEEH
70074 BE(ZE—NF+_A=+—8":
6,666%) c MEHAN  BEIRANAARE
5889EBE B L (BE_T—NLF+ZA=+—
HItEE : ARB6053EET) - NEEH
BMOBREEHH KEFEITEEARIRT
MEERL MEEBFHMHDERBENRAE
T oREERENFHSBISEEARARE
HEHEE WBEAREIREN -KEEITB
EERMHINB R AIBFIEE -

AEBTEEIMNEASHUNHAKELE
EBEEELBARE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most of the transactions being
settled in RMB, which is the functional currency of most of the group entities.
The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises from the recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through financing activities denominated in the
relevant foreign currencies.

The group entities are exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies other
than their functional currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars (“US$"),
Euro ("EUR") and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional
Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit its exposure to foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring and minimizing its net foreign currency position. Management
considers the fluctuations in exchange rates between the functional currencies of
respective group entities and Non-functional Currencies in which the group entities
conduct business will not have significant effect on the Group’s financial position
and results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMB0.06 per share (tax
included) for the year ended 31 December 2020. The proposed distribution of
final dividend by the Company is subject to approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Upon approval, the final dividend will be paid on or before 31
July 2021.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

— On 17 June 2020, the Company entered into a capital increase agreement
with Yunnan Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (EEMEAEEEEERA
Al) (“Yunnan Asset Management”) and Yunnan Yunshui Construction
& Engineering Co., Ltd.* (E@E/KERILIEZARLQF) (the “Target
Company”), pursuant to which Yunnan Asset Management has agreed to
subscribe for the interests in the Target Company (representing 19.38%
of the registered capital of the Target Company on a fully diluted basis as
enlarged by the capital increase) at a consideration of RMB300,000,000
(including the additional registered capital of approximately
RMB134,573,800 and capital reserve of approximately RMB165,426,200).
On 31 December 2020, the Company entered into the second capital
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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injection agreement and the supplemental agreement with Yunnan Asset
Management and the Target Company, pursuant to which Yunnan Asset
Management agreed to (i) further subscribe for the subscription shares
(representing approximately 23.958% of the registered capital of the
Target Company upon completion of the Second capital increase) at a
consideration of RMB500,000,000 (including the additional registered capital
of approximately RMB261,234,800 and capital reserve of approximately
RMB238,765,200), and (ii) as part of the transaction, the Company agreed
to reduce its paid-up capital in the Target Company by RMB42,404,100,
from RMB560,000,000 to RMB517,595,900 and to convert RMB42,404,100
from the registered capital to the capital reserve of the Target Company.
Upon completion of the second capital increase, the registered capital of
the Target Company will be increased from RMB694,573,800 as at the date
of this announcement to RMB913,404,500 and the Target Company will be
owned as to approximately 56.667% and approximately 43.333% by the
Company and Yunnan Asset Management respectively, therefore, the Target
Company will remain a subsidiary of the Company and its accounts will
continue to be consolidated with those of the Group.

Pursuant to a renewable trust loan contract dated 11 September 2020
entered into between the Company and Yunnan International Trust Co.
Ltd.* (EEEBELER A5 (the “Lender”), the Lender has granted to
the Company a loan with a principal amount of up to RMB500,000,000
for a term of 12 months from the date of the trust loan contract, subject
to renewal for an additional term. In respect of the loans granted by the
Lender to the Company, the trust funds are entrusted by the banks to the
Lender pursuant to the capital trust contract. In relation to the Trust Loan
Contract, Yunnan Investment Holdings Group Company Limited* (E@%&
WEEREEAR2AR) (“Yunnan Investment Group”) entered into a
guarantee agreement in favour of the Lender to guarantee the repayment
obligations of the Company under the Trust Loan Contract. As part of the
counter-guarantee, on 11 December 2020, the Company entered into an
equity pledge agreement with the Yunnan Investment Group, pursuant to
which the Company (as pledgee) has agreed to pledge its entire equity
interest in Yunnan Solid Waste (ZF[EEE) to the Yunnan Investment Group
(as pledgee) as security for the Parent Company Guarantee provided by the
Yunnan Investment Group in favour of the Lender under the Guarantee
Agreement. On the same date, in consideration of the Parent Company
Guarantee, the Company entered into a guarantee fee agreement with the
Yunnan Investment Group, pursuant to which the Company shall pay to
Yunnan Investment Group, as part of the Counter Guarantee, an annual
guarantee fee calculated at 1% of the actual drawdown of the Loan
Amount in the relevant year pursuant to the trust loan agreement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 9 December 2020, Qinggeda Yunshui entered into a finance lease
agreement with CITIC Financial Leasing, pursuant to which CITIC Financial
Leasing has agreed to, among other things, (i) acquire the leased assets
from the Lessee at a consideration of RMB90,000,000, which will be paid
to the Lessee in a lump sum and (ii) lease the leased assets back to the
Lessee for a term of five years with an estimated total lease payment of
RMB106,419,400, of which the total rent will be paid by the Lessee in ten
equal principal instalments to CITIC Financial Leasing.

On 9 December 2020, Kaifa Xinquan (Tiantai) entered into a finance lease
contract with ABC Financial Leasing, pursuant to which ABC Financial
Leasing has agreed to, among other things, (i) acquire the leased assets
from Kaifa Xinquan (Tiantai) at a consideration of RMB110,000,000, which
will be paid to Kaifa Xinquan (Tiantai) in installments and (ii) lease the
leased assets back to Kaifa Xinquan (Tiantai) for a term of 10 years with
a total lease payment of approximately RMB140,458,006.37, which will
be paid by Kaifa Xinquan (Tiantai) to ABC Financial Leasing in 20 equal
installments. The total lease payment of approximately RMB140,458,006.37
will be paid by Kaifa Xinquan (Tiantai) to ABC Financial Leasing in 20 equal
installments.

On 9 December 2020, Dali Water entered into a finance lease agreement
with BoCOM Leasing, pursuant to which BoCOM Leasing has agreed to,
among other things, (i) acquire the leased assets from the lessee at a
consideration of RMB60,000,000 and (ii) lease the leased assets back to the
lessee for a term of 60 months with an estimated total lease payment of
RMB68,626,841.60, which will be paid by the Lessee to BoCOM Leasing in
20 equal installments.

On 27 November 2020, Dali Water entered into a finance lease agreement
with BoCom Leasing, pursuant to which, BoCom Leasing has agreed to,
among other things, (i) acquire the leased assets from the lessee at a
consideration of RMB140,000,000 and (ii) lease back the leased assets
to the lessee with the lease term for 60 months and an estimated total
lease payment of RMB160,129,296.80, which will be paid by the Lessee to
BoCom Leasing in 20 equal installments.
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On 23 October 2019, Guizhou Tongren City Development and Investment
Group Co., Ltd.* (EMEMC MMM HAEREEBMERAF), Guizhou
Province Shigian County Water Investment Co., Ltd.* (Z /& AFF &K
I EBREMEAR]), Guizhou Province Yinjiang Autonomous County
Yinfeng Municipal Urban and Rural Construction Investment Group Co.,
Ltd.* (BEMEEIBAGREMBEREKLELEBRAF) entered into a
shareholders agreement with the Company and China Urban Construction
Design & Research Institute* (B2 # EfT), pursuant to which the
parties to the shareholders agreement agreed to establish the JV company
in Tongren City, Guizhou Province, the PRC. On 14 October 2020, the
JV Company was established, the registered capital of which has not
been paid up by the parties yet. Due to changes in the macroeconomic
conditions of our country, adjustments to environmental protection policies
and regulation of the financing environment, in order to adapt to such
objective environments, Tongren Municipal People’s Government, Guizhou
Province, the PRC* (F B & & (- A RBUT)

Government”) intends to change the investment model of the PPP project.

("Tongren Municipal

As agreed between the parties with negotiation, the PPP project contract
and the shareholders agreement shall be terminated and released. After
negotiation with the Tongren Municipal Government, the costs incurred for
design and leveling of the construction site under the PPP project shall be
paid by the government directly to the design or construction units. The
parties will carry out the dissolution and liquidation of the JV company in
accordance with the Company Law and relevant provisions set out in the
shareholders agreement.

On 29 September 2020, the Company (as the vendor) and Fuzhou
Dingrong Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd.* (&8!S # i
REEBR AR

agreement and the supplemental agreement to the equity transaction

), (as the purchaser) entered into an equity transaction

agreement, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to sell, and
Dingrong Environmental Protection has agreed to acquire, the 40% interest
in Fujian Dongfei Environment Group Co., Ltd* (RERRIBEEEFR A
Al) legally and beneficially owned by the Company at the consideration
of RMB375,200,000. Upon completion of the disposal, the Company shall
cease to have any interest in the target company.

On 20 September 2020, HLJ Yunshui entered into a finance lease
agreement with BoCom Leasing, pursuant to which, BoCom Leasing has
agreed to, among other things, (i) acquire the leased assets from the lessee
at a consideration of RMB98,000,000, which will be paid to the lessee
and (ii) lease back the leased assets to the lessee with the lease term for
60 months and an estimated total lease payment of RMB114,443,086, of
which the total rentals will be paid by the lessee to BoCom Leasing in 20
installments.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #51& & ik {9 & R A &l Annual Report 2020 4 [& i &

—hE+A=-+=8 " EMEIR
CHRmRERESERRAR - EM
BAMGKEREBREEAR - &M
HETIBRAGZBRERBEREESEES
RN BB ANA B R AR B 2 e b 5] 32
BREHZE  STHNHFRAERTEEME
MR A “7 RZZE_TF+
A+mB &R RIBERY 5THH
ﬁ%*?%&ﬁé¢ ll**‘@m
B RREK  RMERBRAE AR
EEHRE PEHEMNERNCTARK
3 (T8 4= 7 BT J) %3 % FEPPPIE B #93%
BEX LA mBE—BRAE &1
I ERBRPPPIEE AR R AR R i - &8 8
WM EAHE  PPPEE B3 AR &
AT T B FEEARBFEE S
BERE CHEIEM - T ARB(AF
FEIRBRRBENEBEBOETRREEER
AIMBBUBEE TIE -

RZZEZZEFAR=Z+E AR
(T’EZ\%EE)&%M“‘Imh#ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ
REl(ERBERIIVERRSERKE
ERXSGERBRME - AARRBEHE
BRMNTEBREBEREZBRARIRZE
BARREGERERBABERNERE
SEERARLAO%NER  REAAR
% 375,200,0007C ° & FIHTK & -
ARRATBEEEZEAREMER -

RZZEZTFNALAZTH  BEIEK
HXRAETURERESR © HEitt -
REMEERE(EPBEE)OHAREA

R 98,000,000t MATAABEREE
E UM FERAARGGHEEE
HMETHERBEA - HEHBRAOREA - #
BRENRAE RS AR114,443,086
T HPHSSESHEARA D208
NHFREFE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

On 7 August 2020, (I) the Company, Shandong Qingzheng and AVIC
International Leasing entered into finance lease agreement A, pursuant to
which, AVIC International Leasing has agreed (among others) (i) to purchase
the leased asset A from lessee A at the consideration of RMB90,000,000
and pay the consideration to lessee A in two installments and (ii) to lease
back the leased asset A to lessee A, with the lease term of five years
(60 months) and the total rent of RMB104,724,895.00 estimated by
the matching principal method, which will be paid by Lessee A to AVIC
International Leasing in 10 installments; (Il) the Company, Shandong Binxin
and AVIC International Leasing entered into finance lease agreement B,
pursuant to which, AVIC International Leasing has agreed (among others)
(i) to purchase the leased asset B from lessee B at the consideration of
RMB160,000,000 and pay the consideration to lessee B in two installments
and (ii) to lease back the leased asset B to lessee B, with the lease term of
five years (60 months) and the total rent of RMB186,177,591.12 estimated
by the matching principal method, which will be paid by lessee B to AVIC

International Leasing in 10 installments.

On 17 June 2020, the Company, Emin Water and China Resources Financial
Leasing entered into a finance lease agreement, pursuant to which, China
Resources Financial Leasing has agreed to, among other things, (i) acquire
the leased assets from the lessees at a consideration of RMB300,000,000,
which will be paid to the lessees in a lump sum and (ii) lease back the
leased assets to the lessees with the lease term of 60 months and the
total lease payment is estimated to be RMB356,753,891.88, in which, total
rents will be paid by the lessees to China Resources Financial Leasing in 20

installments.

On 12 June 2020, Qinggeda Yunshui and CITIC Financial Leasing entered
into a finance lease agreement, pursuant to which, CITIC Financial Leasing
has agreed to, among other things, (i) acquire the leased assets from the
lessee at a consideration of RMB210,000,000, which will be paid to the
lessee in a lump sum and (ii) lease back the leased assets to the lessee with
the lease term of five years and the total lease payment is estimated to
be RMB247,887,266.66, in which, total rents will be paid by the lessee to
CITIC Financial Leasing in ten equal instalments of principal.
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On 14 May 2020, the Company together with Hunan No. 8 Engineering
Co., Ltd.* (HmEE/\TRAEMR2AA) and Guangzhou Public Utilities
Planning & Design Institute Co., Ltd.* (BT AR EEREFRFTER QA
were formally awarded the public-private-partnership project of facilitating
the construction of domestic wastewater treatment facilities in Lu Feng by
the People’s Government of Lu Feng, Shanwei City, Guangdong Province by
way of public tender. The total estimated investment amount of the project
is approximately RMB1,592,590,000.

On 22 April 2020, the Company together with YCIH No. 1 Water Resources
and Hydropower Construction Co., Ltd.* (EEEEE —KFIKEREZER
‘A@]) and Powerchina Northwest Engineering Corporation Limited* (Bl E
EEETIL AR B BR A F) were formally awarded the concession
project of Tailan River depression reservoir engineering in Wensu County,
which is granted by the People’s Government of Wensu County, Aksu
Region, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region by way of public tender.
The total estimated investment of the project amounted to approximately
RMB1,355,183,900.

On 13 March 2020, the Company together with Central and Southern
China Municipal Engineering Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd.* ([
MR T2 R AR AR A7) and Jiangxi Construction Engineering
Third Construction Limited Liability Company* (IR TE=2EAR
E{EAR]) were awarded the public-private partnership project of the
facilitating construction in relation to the new round of the urban and
rural wastewater treatment in Yingde, which is granted by the People’s
Government of Yingde City, Guangdong Province by way of public tender.
The total estimated investment of the Project amounted to approximately
RMB626,850,500.

On 10 March 2020, Langfang Hyflux entered into () a sale and purchase
contract and (Il) a leaseback contract with Greatwall Guoxing, pursuant to
which, Greatwall Guoxing has agreed to, among other things, (i) acquire the
leased assets from Langfang Hyflux at a consideration of RMB380,000,000,
which will be paid to Langfang Hyflux in one lump sum and (ii) lease back
the leased assets to Langfang Hyflux with the lease term for 60 months,
and a total lease payment of approximately RMB458,236,994.99 shall
be paid by Langfang Hyflux to Greatwall Guoxingin in 10 installments at
floating lease rate.
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— On 20 February 2020, Sanming Jinliya entered into a finance lease
agreement with ABC Financial Leasing, pursuant to which, ABC Financial
Leasing has agreed to, among other things, (i) acquire the leased assets
from Sanming Jinliya at a consideration of RMB300,000,000, which will
be paid to Sanming Jinliya by instalments and (ii) lease back the leased
assets to Sanming Jinliya with the lease term for 8 years and a total lease
payment of approximately RMB371,474,504.84, the principal and interest of
which will be paid by Sanming Jinliya to ABC Financial Leasing in 32 equal
installments.

For details of the above-mentioned significant investments and acquisitions, please
refer to the announcements published by the Company on 31 December 2020,
11 December 2020, 9 December 2020, 27 November 2020, 14 October 2020, 29
September 2020, 20 September 2020, 7 August 2020, 17 June 2020, 12 June
2020, 14 May 2020, 22 April 2020, 13 March 2020, 10 March 2020 and 20
February 2020, respectively.

Subsequent Events:

— On 31 March 2021, the Board hereby announces that Mr. Li Jialong
tendered his resignation as a non-executive Director, the Chairman, and
chairman and member of the Nomination Committee due to work reasons,
with effective upon the conclusion of the EGM. Mr. Yang Fang tendered
his resignation as an executive Director and a member of the Compliance
Committee due to work reasons, with effective upon the conclusion of the
EGM. The Board proposes to nominate Mr. Liu Hui to be a non-executive
Director candidate of the third session of the Board. The Board proposes to
nominate Ms. Ling Hui to be an executive Director candidate of the third
session of the Board. Mr. Wang Yong, the chief financial controller of the
Company, tendered his resignation as the chief financial controller due to
work reasons, with effect from 31 March 2021, and the Company will
make other appointments for him. The Board appointed Ms. Ling Hui as the
chief financial controller of the Company, with effect from 31 March 2021.
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On 5 March 2021, the Board has resolved to seek approval from the
Shareholders at the EGM for the various guarantees as follows: (a) the
Company will provide guarantees to the onshore subsidiaries controlled by
the Company in respect of the credit business and other business of banks
and other financial institutions, and provide guarantees to the offshore
subsidiaries controlled by the Company in respect of the credit business
and other business of banks and other financial institutions pursuant to
the relevant requirements of the PRC; and (b) guarantees in respect of the
credit business and other businesses of banks and other financial institutions
will be provided by onshore and offshore subsidiaries controlled by the
Company to each other pursuant to the relevant requirements of the PRC.

On 4 March 2021,the Company has resolved to dispose of the Disposal
Interest, being the 51% equity interest held by the Company in Dongting
Water. Since the Company is a State-owned enterprise, the Disposal Interest
constitutes a State-owned asset and the disposal of which is required to
undergo the process of Public Tender through an approved equity exchange
in accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations governing the
disposal of State-controlled assets. The Potential Disposal will be carried
out through YNEX and the successful bidder will enter into the Equity
Transaction Agreement with the Company according to the relevant rules
and regulations of YNEX. The Minimum Consideration, being the initial
bidding price for the Disposal Interest, is expected to be RMB76,500,000,
which was determined based on the preliminary asset appraised value of
the Disposal Interest on 31 December 2020 and “the capital for investing in
Dongting Water + 10% annualized rate of return”, whichever is higher. As
at the date of this announcement, the Valuation Report has not yet been
finalized, which will be finalized before the formal tender notice is issued,
and thus the asset appraised value is subject to the finalized Valuation
Report. The final Consideration will depend on the final bid price of the
Public Tender, but will not be less than the Minimum Consideration in any

event.
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On 15 January 2021, the Company entered into a framework agreement
with Zhejiang Qianjiang Biochemical Co., Ltd.* (“Qianjiang Biochemical”)
and Haining Municipal Water Investment Group Co., Limited* (“Haining
Water Investment Group”), pursuant to which Qianjiang Biochemical
will purchase the 51% equity in Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental Protection,
40% equity in Capital Water, 40% equity in Shikang Water, 40% equity in
Lvdong Haiyun held by Haining Water Investment Group, and 49% equity
in Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental Protection held by the Company by means
of non-public issue of shares to Haining Water Investment Group and the
Company. Upon completion of the transactions proposed by the parties to
the framework agreement, Qianjiang Biochemical will hold 100% equity in
Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental Protection, 40% equity in Capital Water,
40% equity in Shikang Water and 40% equity in Lvdong Haiyun. The
potential transactions are subject to the negotiation and formal agreements.
As of the date of this announcement, (i) all major terms and conditions of
the potential transactions are still under negotiation and have not yet been
finalized; and (ii) the formal agreements have not yet been entered into by
the Company.

On 7 January 2021, the Company received the notice (the “Notice")
issued by Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (£
MERIKIZEREBFR AR ("YHTH"), the controlling shareholder of the
Company, in relation to the adjustments in the shareholding structure of
YHTH (the “Adjustments of Equity Interests”). According to the Notice,
the registered share capital of YHTH increased from RMB4,142,214,400
to RMB6,142,214,400. As at the date of this announcement, YHTH has
completed the changes in industrial and commercial registration regarding
the increase of registered share capital.

For details of the above-mentioned subsequent events, please refer to the
announcements published by the Company on 31 March 2021, 5 March 2021, 4
March 2021, 15 January 2021 and 7 January 2021.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Li Jialong (“Mr. Li”), aged 52, joined the Group in July 2020 and currently
serves as a non-executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the
Board, who is a CPC party member, obtained the bachelor’s degree from the
Department of Geology of Kunming University of Science and Technology in July
1992. From February 1996 to April 1999, Mr. Li served as the deputy secretary
and secretary to the League Committee of the Kunming University of Science
and Technology. From April 1999 to February 2002, Mr. Li served in the Yunnan
Provincial Committee of the Communist Youth League as the deputy director and
the director of the general office, and the director of the Publicity Department in
the Yunnan Provincial Committee of the Communist Youth League from February
2002 to February 2005. From February 2005 to April 2009, he acted as the
county mayor and the secretary to county committee of the Communist Party
Committee of Shuangbai County, Chuxiong Prefecture. He acted as the deputy
head of Chuxiong People’s Government from April 2009 to May 2011. From
May 2015 to March 2016, he served as the deputy secretary to Communist Party
Committee and the vice chairman of Southwest Transportation Construction Group
Co., Ltd.* (AR BREREERMDBERAR]). From March 2016 to April 2020, he
has been the deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee, the general
manager and the vice chairman of Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding
Group Co., Ltd.* (EFEERIEEEREEEGMRAF). Mr. Li has been served as
the deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee, the president the vice
chairman of Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (EFEER
IREE AR AF) from April 2020 to date.

Mr. Yu Long (“Mr. Yu”), aged 49, joined the Group in June 2011, and
currently serves as an executive Director, vice chairman and the general manager
of the Company. Mr. Yu obtained a MBA degree from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2013, and is now studying as a doctor
at the School of Economics and Management at University of Chinese Academy
of Sciences. Mr. Yu has more than 18 years of experience in environmental and
water works industry, market development, project management, investment
capital management, and risk control management, and he is mainly responsible
for the overall operation and management, strategic planning and business
development of the Company. Mr. Yu was appointed as general manager of
water works division and deputy general manager of Beijing Tsinghua Novel
Environmental Protection Company Limited between July 2003 and August 2007.
Mr. Yu was appointed as project management director of Kardan Water Group
Limited* (Sf/KIEEIBRERER) between August 2007 and July 2008. Between
July 2008 and April 2009, Mr. Yu was appointed as the deputy general manager
of Ruoshi (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (A (dtm) EHFRAF]). Between
May 2009 and October 2012, Mr. Yu was appointed as the sales director and the
deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater. Between June 2011 and August
2017, Mr. Yu served as General Manager and executive Director of the Company,
and as General Manager of the Company between August 2017 and December
2018. Mr. Yu has served as an executive Director, vice chairman and General
Manager of the Company from December 2018 till now. In addition, Mr. Yu has
been appointed as chairman or director of various subsidiaries of our Group since
January 2011.
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Mr. Dai Richeng (“Mr. Dai”), aged 56, joined the Group in October 2020, and
currently serves as a non-executive Director. Mr. Dai holds a master’'s degree
in environmental engineering from the Department of Chemical Engineering
in Nanjing University of Science and Technology and a doctoral degree in
environmental engineering of the Department of Environmental Engineering from
Tsinghua University. Mr. Dai has extensive experience for about 30 years in the
water treatment industry. He was an engineer at the Water Pollution Research
Office of the Quan Jun Environmental Science Research Centre* (®EIRERIE
IR KI5 EMFLE) and later acted as a senior engineer in the China Water
Pollution Research Centre* (FREIK)5H LA A4). From 1998 to 2010, Mr. Dai
acted as the general manager and senior engineer in a subsidiary principally
engaged in wastewater treatment of Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (BF 5B HE
fRA2d]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600100).
From 2010 to 2012, he was the vice-president and senior engineer of Beijing
Enterprises Water Group Limited (Gb#Z/KEEFR A R]) (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 371). Mr. Dai has been the general manager of
Beijing OriginWater from October 2012 to April 2016, has been the director of
Beijing OriginWater from April 2014 to September 2020 and has been the general
manager of Beijing OriginWater since March 2018; Mr. Dai was the executive
Director and vice-chairman of the Company from June 2016 to August 2018, and
the non-executive Director of the Company from August 2018 to December 2018,
and from October 2020 till now, he has been the non-executive Director of the
Company.

Ms. Li Bo (“Ms. Li”), aged 44, joined the Group in August 2014, and currently
serves as non-executive Director, party secretary. Ms. Li obtained a master’s degree
in business administration from Dalian University of Technology in Dalian in June
2008. Ms. Li has more than 13 years of senior management experience in water
works industry. From August 2014 to August 2017, Ms. Li acted as shareholder
representative Supervisor of the Company, from August 2017 till now, she has
been the non-executive Director of the Company, and from January 2021 till now,
she has been the party secretary of the Company. Ms. Li was appointed as the
deputy manager of the investment and financing department of YHTH between
April 2005 and May 2010, and was promoted as manager of the investment
and financing department between May 2010 and May 2012. Ms. Li acted as
the board office director of YHTH from May 2012 to December 2017, and she
has been the Secretary to the Board and Assistant to President of YHTH since
December 2017. In addition, Ms. Li has also been appointed as the director of a
number of subsidiaries of YHTH since January 2014.
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Mr. Chen Yong (“Mr. Chen"), aged 48, joined the Group in June 2019 as
non-executive Director. He is a postgraduate and senior accountant. Mr. Chen
obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer science from Xinjiang University (¥752
AE) in July 1999 and a master’s degree in business administration from Xinjiang
University of Finance and Economics in June 2009. Mr. Chen has over 26 years of
extensive experience in accounting and management. From February 1992 to July
2008, Mr. Chen worked for CNPC Xinjiang Sales Company* (FF B AJHFTiEsHE
‘A 7]) and served as a Deputy Director of the Finance Department and a Director
of the Corporate Management Department. Since September 2010, Mr. Chen
has been the General Manager of the Equity Investment Department of Kunlun
Trust Co., Ltd.*(E®EFLEREAER

(B A]), the General Manager of the Equity
Investment Department of CNPC Asset Management Co., Ltd.*

(PHEEERE
fR 2 7]), the Managing Director of Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Management
(ERERETREEEABLE(ERAR)) and
an Authorized Representative of the Executive Partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying
(BeEaERAREREPLER
4&%)). In addition, Mr. Chen has been supervisor of Shandong International Trust
o., Ltd.* (ILREBEEFERHARRF)
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1697) since September 2014. He has been a director
) BEREAR
A 7]) since July 2016, and a director of Beijing Wuerzhilu Technology Co., Ltd.*
bR\ ZIRBHEB R A R]) since April 2017, and a director of Beijing Weiche
Technology Co., Ltd* (tRBERHEER A A]) since May 2017. Mr. Chen has been
a director of Shandong Provincial Financial Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (LU&R%&
SREETERHDAMRAF) since July 2018, the vice chairman of Beijing Kunlun
Zhihui Technology Co., Ltd.* (Jt RE®mBERHX AR A F]) since February 2018,
REBHEZSMBRA

Partnership (Limited Partnership)*

Equity Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*

(a company listed on the Hong Kong

of Jiemian (Shanghai) Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (FLE (

and a director of Tianjin Climate Exchange Co., Ltd.* (
since December 2015.

Mr. Yang Fang (“Mr. Yang”), aged 47, joined the Group in June 2012, and
currently serves as the executive Director, and deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting and statistics
from Yunnan University of Finance and Economics in July 1998, and further
obtained an executive master’'s degree in business administration from Dalian
University of Technology in June 2008. Mr. Yang was qualified as a first-class
enterprise human resources managing personnel in March 2009 certified by
the Ministry of Labor and Social Security. From March 2013 to January 2021,
Mr. Yang served as party secretary of the Company, and he was subsequently
appointed as deputy general manger of the Company in November 2014, and was
appointed as the executive Director of the Company in August 2017. Mr. Yang
has more than 12 years of senior management experience in water works related
companies, and he is responsible for operation and management of some regions.
Mr. Yang served in various positions in YHTH, including manager of personnel and
organization department, manager of the human resources department.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (“Mr. Liu"”), aged 49, joined the Group in June 2018
as independent non-executive Director. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting and a master’s degree in accounting from RMIT University of Australia
in 1996 and 2002, respectively. He subsequently obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from Deakin University of Australia in 2004. Mr. Liu has
more than 21 years of experience in accounting, auditing and management and
is a qualified accountant of CPA Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Liu has worked at KPMG since 1996 as a manager,
senior manager and supervisor. From 1996 to 1999, he worked in the audit
department of the Hong Kong office of KPMG. From 1999 to 2010, he worked in
the financial advisory service department of the Guangzhou office and Shenzhen
office of KPMG. From October 2010 to December 2013, Mr. Liu was chief
financial officer and company secretary of Leoch International Technology Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 842). From December 2013
to May 2017, Mr. Liu was executive director, chief financial officer and company
secretary of Yestock Car Rental Company Limited. Since May 2017, Mr. Liu has
been the managing director of member companies of Heungkong Financial Group.

Mr. Zhong Wei (“Mr. Zhong"”), aged 51, joined the Group in October 2020,
currently serves as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Zhong graduated
from Nanjing University in 1990 majoring in applied physics and from Southeast
University in 1994 majoring in industrial economics management. Mr. Zhong
received his doctorate’s degree in 1999 from Beijing Normal University majoring
in international economics. Between September 2001 and July 2004, Mr. Zhong
engaged in postdoctoral research in management science at Tongji University.
Mr. Zhong served as an assistant engineer at Wuxi Alarm Devices Factory from
July 1990 to July 1992. Mr. Zhong worked as a lecturer at the Business School
of Jiangnan University from July 1994 to July 1997. Mr. Zhong served as an
associate professor at the Business School of Beijing Normal University between
1999 and 2003. Mr. Zhong has been a professor of the department of finance of
the Business School of Beijing Normal University since 2003. Mr. Zhong has long
been engaged in the field of finance research and has been involved in the field
of macroeconomics and real estate finance. He was selected by the PRC Ministry
of Education and the Beijing Supported by Program for New Century Excellent
Talents in University* (Jb R ¥t 42 1B S B 24 R A A 51 E]). Mr. Zhong served
as an independent director of Dongxing Securities Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 601198), and currently serves as an
independent nonexecutive director of China Resources Land Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1109) and Seazen Group Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1030).
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Mr. Zhou Beihai (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 57, joined the Group in October 2020,
currently serves as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Zhou obtained a
doctoral degree in engineering from the Department of Environmental Engineering
at Tsinghua University (B2 AXEIRE T2 K) in March 1992. Mr. Zhou carried out
research on solid waste landfill technology at The University of Fukuoka in Japan
from March 1992 to March 1994, and conducted research on photocatalysis
water treatment technology at Saitama University in Japan from January 1995 to
March 1995. Mr. Zhou served as the director of the Registration and Management
Centre for the solid waste under the State Administration of Environmental
Protection (EIRIRRBBEEEMELEEFR L) from October 1996 to August
2001, and served as diplomatic officer of science and technology at the Chinese
Embassy in Japan from October 2001 to December 2004. Mr. Zhou has been
appointed as the professor at the School of Energy and Environmental Engineering
of University of Science and Technology Beijing since January 2005.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Long Limin (“Mr. Long"), aged 53, joined the Group in August 2017 as a
shareholder representative Supervisor and chairman of the Supervisory Committee.
Mr. Long obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering from Chongging University
in 1991 and a master’s degree in business administration from Tsinghua University
in 2004. Between 1991 and 2000, Mr. Long acted as deputy factory director of
Beijing Plumbing Equipment Factory 1 (3L i7KEE 884 —J&). Between 2000 and
2010, Mr. Long served as vice general manager of Tsinghua Tongfang Artificial
Environment Co., Ltd* (BZER AT ALIRREBRAF]). Between 2010 and 2011, Mr.
Long was the director of operation and the manager of procurement department
of Beijing OriginWater. Between 2011 and 2013, Mr. Long served as the general
manager of Shandong Yashi Co., Ltd.* (IR HBRRAF]). Between 2013
and 2016, Mr. Long was the director of enquiry and procurement department
of Beijing OriginWater. From 2016 to March 2018, Mr. Long was the director of
operation planning centre of Beijing OriginWater, and he has been the director
and deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater since March 2018.

Mr. Zhu Zhen (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 36, joined the Group in August 2017 as a
shareholder representative Supervisor. Mr. Zhu obtained his master’'s degree in
law from Tsinghua University in September 2009. Mr. Zhu has almost 10 years
of experience in law and investment related industries. Mr. Zhu was the deputy
general manager of the auditing and legal department of YHTH from October
2013 to September 2016, and he was promoted as the general manager of the
legal department of YHTH in September 2016. Mr. Zhu has also acted as the
general manager of the leisure industry department under the investment and
management center of YHTH since 2018. In addition, Mr. Zhu has served as
director and supervisor in various subsidiaries of YHTH since September 2014.
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Mr. Huang Yi, aged 44, joined the Group in June 2011, and currently serves
as an employee representative Supervisor, the deputy general manager of the
technology and risk control center and the general manager of the southwest
region of the Company. Mr. Huang Yi obtained a bachelor’s degree in Computer
and Application from Yunnan University in July 1998 and a master’s degree in
Business Administration from Nanjing Normal University in July 2001. From July
2001 to November 2003, Mr. Huang Yi served as a principal staff member of
the economic and trade division in the Kunming Resident Office of the National
Audit Office. From November 2003 to May 2009, Mr. Huang Yi served successively
as senior analyst in the planning and development department, assistant to the
director of the audit department and deputy director of the discipline inspection
office of Yunnan Malong Industry Group Company Limited* (Em GiEEXEE
BHBERAR

manager of the investment development department, manager of the investment

). Since June 2011, Mr. Huang Yi has served successively as deputy

development department, deputy general manager of the market and investment
center, the general manager of the technology and risk control center and the
general manager of the southwest region of the Company. In addition, since
August 2007, Mr. Huang Yi has served as chairman or general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Tang Shuang (“Ms. Tang"”), aged 36, joined the Group in January 2015 as
an employee representative Supervisor. Ms. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in
management from Yunnan University in Yunnan in July 2007, and she obtained
the qualification as an accountant in May 2006 awarded by the Ministry of
Finance. Ms. Tang is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors, managers
and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws and regulations,
the Articles of Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Tang
has more than 11 years of working experience in large-scale enterprises. Ms. Tang
was an employee of the Yunnan branch office of Ping An Life Insurance Limited
between July 2007 and June 2008, later she served as the accountant for the
Beijing branch office of Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of China
Limited from July 2008 to March 2010. From March 2010 to February 2015,
Ms. Tang served in the business department of Yunnan OriginWater Technology
Company Limited. Ms. Tang served as the deputy manager in the bidding and
procurement department of our Company from March 2015 to November
2015. Since December 2015, she has been the deputy manager in the business
department of our Company.
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Mr. Tan Hairui ("Mr. Tan"), aged 50, joined the Group in January 2015 as an
independent Supervisor. Mr. Tan obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from
Yunnan Finance and Trade College (now known as Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics) in July 1993. Mr. Tan obtained the certificate as a registered
accountant issued by Accountant Examination Committee of Ministry of Finance
of the PRC in April 1999 and a Lawyer’s License in August 2004. Mr. Tan has
more than 19 years of working experience in large-scale enterprises, and he is
mainly responsible for supervising the Directors, managers and other management
personnel to ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of
Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Tan was the deputy
manager of the financial department of Yunda Science & Technology Industry
Company from 2000 to December 2001. Mr. Tan joined Yunnan Hengxin Law
Firm as trainee solicitor and lawyer from January 2002 to August 2007. Mr. Tan
joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law Firm as lawyer between September 2007 and March
2009. Mr. Tan worked in Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm as a lawyer from March 2009
to January 2018. Since January 2018, Mr. Tan has been working in Beijing Yingke
(Kunming) Law Firm (At R&E} (R ) ST as a lawyer.

Ms. Zhang Ling (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 45, joined the Group in January 2018 as
an independent Supervisor. Mr. Zhang Ling is the deputy professor and Master’s
tutor of law school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics and director of
the collaborated regional resources law research center of law school of Yunnan
University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Zhang obtained her law degree in July
1997 at Wuhan University and master degree in international business law and
European Union law at University of Sheffield in November 2004. Since September
2005, Ms. Zhang has been working at the law school of Yunnan University of
Finance and Economics, responsible for teaching, research and application of
law. Ms. Zhang had published dozens of professional academic papers on law,
held discussions on national social topics and research on provincial laws. She
was invited by the Legal Affairs Office of the State Council* (BIFF %),
the Ministry of Civil Affairs* (FRIEXEB) and the Ministry of Foreign Affairs* (9832
#B) to participate in the amendments of two laws and regulations and legislative
consultation. She has received the research award of Yunnan Philosophical Social
(EmE T2 gRZ2MTEE) twice. In addition, Ms. Zhang
had approximately 21 years of solid experience in the legal field. Since she was

Science Society*

qualified as a practicing lawyer in November 1999, Ms. Zhang had worked in five
different law firms in Yunnan Province and is currently working on or part-time

(Z7/\GREERDE ).

basis at Yunnan Bagian Law Firm*
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Xujun (“Mr. Liu"”), aged 48, joined the Group in June 2011 and
currently serves deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained
a bachelor’s degree in water supply and drainage engineering from Tongji
University in Shanghai in July 1995. Later, he further obtained a master’s
degree in environmental engineering from Kunming University of Science &
Technology in Kunming in June 2009, and he obtained a doctorate degree in
environment engineering at Tongji University in Shanghai in September 2017. Mr.
Liu was qualified as a senior engineer specialized in water supply and drainage
in September 2006 by the Kunming Architecture Senior Engineer Certifying
Committee (ERATREETESH TIZAIFTEZ). He was also qualified as a
professional manager in June 2007 by the Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Yunnan Province of the PRC. Mr. Liu has become a member of the
International Water Association (IWA) (BIFE7K1%) since January 2013. He was
subsequently qualified as a professorate senior engineer specialized in water supply
and drainage in November 2014 by the Yunnan Professorate Senior Engineer
Certifying Committee (EfM & E=A TRAFIEZE ). Mr. Liu has more than
23 years of technical experience in the water works industry, including 9 years
of senior management experience in water works enterprises, mainly responsible
for the technical management, research and development, and services of the
Company. Mr. Liu served as engineering staff in Kunming Municipal Sewerage
Co., Ltd., a deputy director and later a director of World Bank project office
between July 1995 and October 2005. Mr. Liu worked as a procurement specialist
for the World Bank Resident Mission from December 2007 to October 2009. He
served as chief engineer and deputy general manager of Yunnan Province Water
from January 2010 to June 2011. Mr. Liu served as executive director and deputy
general manager of the Company from June 2011 to August 2017. He has been
the deputy general manager of the Company since August 2017.

Mr. Huang Yunjian (“Mr. Huang”), aged 55, joined the Group in December
2011, and currently serves as secretary of the disciplinary commission of the
Company. Mr. Huang obtained a degree in environment engineering from
Kunming University of Science and Technology in Kunming in July 1988.
He obtained a certificate for senior research studies on modern economics
management in 2005 and a certificate for the “Western China Environmental
Infrastructure Technologies and Projects” course in December 2005. Mr. Huang
subsequently obtained the qualification of a Chinese professional manager in June
2006 awarded by Chinese Professional Manager Coalition. Mr. Huang has more
than 20 years of experience in operation management and senior management in
companies related to water works, and he is mainly responsible for management,
strategic planning and business development of our Group. Mr. Huang was
appointed as engineer and plant manager of the 4th sewage plant of Kunming
Municipal Sewerage Co., Ltd. from April 1998 to June 2005. Mr. Huang was
appointed as the legal representative, executive director and general manager of
Kunming Wastewater Treatment Co. Ltd. between June 2005 and July 2008. Mr.
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Huang served as assistant to the general manager and deputy general manager of
Yunnan Province Water, our controlling shareholder, between January 2010 and
June 2011.
of the Company from December 2011 to August 2017. He has been the deputy

Mr. Huang served as executive director and deputy general manager

general manager of the Company from August 2017 to March 2020. Mr. Huang
has served as full-time secretary of the disciplinary commission of the Company
since March 2020. In addition, Mr. Huang has also been a part-time professor of
Kunming University of Science and Technology since January 2013.

Mr. Wang Yong (“Mr. Wang”), aged 49, joined the Group in January 2013.
Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in economics in July 1993 from Yunnan
Finance and Trade College (now known as Yunnan University of Finance and
Economics) and a master’'s degree in business administration in January 2009
from the Yunnan University. He was qualified as an accountant in the PRC in
May 1996, and also qualified as a registered tax agent in the PRC in October
2000,
April 2002 to January 2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as the manager of finance
AR B HHE(L A
BBRAF]). Mr. Wang joined the Group in January 2013 as manager of finance

later he was promoted to a senior accountant in October 2004. From

department of Kunming Sino-Platinum Metals Catalyst Co., Ltd* (£

department of the Company, subsequently he was appointed as financial controller
of the Company in November 2013. Mr. Wang has ceased to be the financial
controller of the Company since March 2021, and the Company will make other

appointments for him.

Mr. Zhang Song (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 47, joined the Group as the investment
director in October 2015 and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Company by the Board in October 2017. Mr. Zhang obtained a master’s degree
in business administration from Tongji University in 2005. Mr. Zhang has over 25
years of rich experience in environmental protection and relevant industries. Mr.
Zhang served as a member and representative of the preparatory group of Hedong
Sewage Treatment Plant at the construction committee of Urumgi from 1995 to
2002 and as the president of China region of Salcon Berhad, Malaysia from 2004
to 2015. Mr. Zhang has tendered his resignation as a deputy general manager of
the Company in March 2021 due to personal work arrangement.
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Mr. Zhao Peng (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 41, joined the Group as the general manager
assistant and general manager of the marketing and investment centre of the
Group in June 2011 and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Hebei University of Economics and Business in July 2003.
Mr. Zhao has approximately 17 years of rich experience in the environmental
protection industry. Mr. Zhao served as the business manager of Beijing Novel
(AEFKFTIRIRBRAR]) from September 2003
to April 2004 and subsequently as the marketing director for North China area of
(B HKFE TR (dEm)

Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.*

Veolia Water Solutions & Technologies (Beijing) Co., Ltd.*
ARAF]) from May 2005 to June 2011.

Mr. Ma Xiangyi (“Mr. Ma"), aged 46, joined the Group in February 2016,
successively served as the deputy general manager and general manager of the
project management center and was appointed as a deputy general manager of
the Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Ma obtained a bachelor’s
degree in industrial and civil construction from Yunnan Polytechnic University
in July 1997 and the qualification of intermediate engineer (in water supply
and drainage) in August 2002. Mr. Ma has over 23 years of rich experience in
water and relevant industries. Mr. Ma served as an engineer at the infrastructure
construction division of Kunming Municipal Water Discharge Company* (&R
W BEKAR]) from August 1997 to August 2005, a deputy general manager
of Kunming Dianchi Project Management Company* (EfFEMIE R EIE QN F)
from September 2005 to October 2012 and a standing deputy general manager
of Kunming Dianchi Construction Management Company* (R BEEMERE I

Al) from November 2012 to February 2016. In addition, Mr. Ma served as the
chairman or a senior management member of a number of subsidiaries of the
Group since September 2016.

Ms. Ling Hui (“Ms. Ling”), aged 35, obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Yunnan University of Finance and Economics in July 2008 and a master’s
degree in financial markets and portfolio management from the University
of Hong Kong in August 2019. Ms. Ling has over 13 years of experience in
corporate finance management. From November 2008 to March 2011, she
worked as the financial manager of Yuxi Zhongxin sub-branch, the accountant
of Yunnan branch, and a member of Group company’s centralized accounting
task force in Anbang Insurance Group. Ms. Ling served as assistant to the
general manager in the group finance department of Yunnan Yichu Mingtong
Engineering Machinery Maintenance Service Co., Ltd.* (£ 5 /180 A T2 4
1EBR#GBRAR]) from April 2011 to June 2015. She was the supervisor in the
finance management center of Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co.,
Ltd. from September 2015 to March 2019. Ms. Ling was seconded by Yunnan
Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd. and acted as the chief financial
controller of Yunnan Haigeng Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (EF/8EB/EEIES
[ /2@]) and Beijing Yunnan Mansion Hotel Co., Ltd. Qt REBMAEB/EER A E)
from April 2019 to February 2021. With effect from March 2021, Ms. Ling has
been appointed as the chief financial controller of the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo (“Mr. Li”), aged 42,
secretary of the Company and was appointed as secretary to the Board since

joined the Group in May 2013 as company

August 2013. Mr. Li graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business
in Beijing with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 2001 and obtained a
master’s degree in accounting from Macquarie University in Australia in April
2006. Mr. Li is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He
is mainly responsible for assisting with the operation of our Company and the
operation of the Board. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of experience in finance-
related senior positions. Mr. Li was engaged by Audit Office of New South Wales
as an auditor since August 2007 and was later promoted to senior auditor.
From March 2011 to June 2013, Mr. Li served as the financial controller and the
company secretary of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 814).
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 31
December 2020 to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2020, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00 each. Details
of changes in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note
26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company
is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its

existing Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is an operator primarily engaged in municipal environmental integrated
services and the only urban environmental integrated service provider in Yunnan
Province. The Group is also one of the few integrated operators in municipal
environmental services in China that has expanded overseas successfully, and our
overseas business is mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the
Group operates upstream and downstream development industries to improve the
Group's profitability structure and broaden the sources of income. The Group has
good track records in projects such as urban wastewater treatment, tap water and
raw water supply, watercourse management, solid waste treatment and others.

The major business segments of the Group include investment, construction and
management services for urban water supply, waste water treatment, solid waste
treatment, and comprehensive environmental treatment projects, construction
and sales of equipment and other environmental protection related services. The
corporate strategy of the Group is to set our foundation of business in Yunnan,
identify overseas investment opportunities continuously, and gradually expand our
business to other favourable regions in China and overseas emerging markets, in

order to secure stable income sources.
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RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
96 to 97. The financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 is set out
in the consolidated balance sheet on page 98 to 100. The consolidated cash flow
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on page 103 to 104.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements
affecting the results of operations and financial condition of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report from page 17 to 37.

DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to declare the final dividend of RMB0.06 per Share (tax
included) for the year ended 31 December 2020. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the consideration and approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.
The final dividend is payable to the Shareholders whose names are listed in the
register of members of the Company on the record date for determining the
entitlement for the final dividend, in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB71.6 million.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the final dividend will
be denominated and declared in RMB. The final dividend on Domestic Share will
be paid in RMB and on H Share will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The relevant
exchange rate for conversion shall be calculated by the average median exchange
rate for converting RMB into Hong Kong dollar as quoted by the China Foreign
Exchange Trading Centre for the week immediately before the date on which
the dividend was declared (i.e. the date on the AGM). Upon approved, the final
dividend is expected to be distributed on or before Friday, 30 July 2021.

The Company has established a sound decision-making process and profit
distribution mechanism. Emphasis is placed on Shareholder returns and cash
dividends are distributed to Shareholders regularly. In formulating the profit
distribution plan, the Board has fully considered the opinions and demands of
Shareholders to, after taking into account the statutory interests of minority
Shareholders, and has submitted the profit distribution plan at the general
meeting for approval. Also, the independent non-executive Directors have properly
carried out their duties in regards to the decision making process of the profit
distribution plan.

Under the relevant tax rules and regulations of the PRC (collectively the “PRC Tax
Law"”), the Company is required to withhold corporate income tax at the rate of
10% when distributing the final dividend to non-resident enterprises (such term
shall have the meaning as defined under the PRC Tax Law) whose names appear
on the H Shares register of members of the Company.
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In accordance with the PRC Tax Law, the Company is also required to withhold
individual income tax when distributing the final dividend to individual
shareholders whose names appeared on the H Shares register of members of the
Company. The Company will determine the country of domicile of the individual
holders of H Shares based on the registered addresses as recorded in the H Shares
register of members of the Company on the record date with details as follows:

—  For individual holders of H Shares who are Hong Kong and Macau residents
and those whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into
a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of them.

—  For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of them. The Company would
make applications on their behalf to seek entitlement of the relevant agreed
preferential treatments pursuant to the Notice of the State Administration of
Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment
Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative) (Guo Shui Fa [2009]
No. 124)( (EIRBHBHEBENENE FEREXHUBEFBEEIE (R
17) ) BEHA) (FFE[2009]12457)).

—  For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of higher than 10% but lower than 20%, the Company would
withhold and pay the individual income tax at the agreed-upon effective tax
rate on behalf of them.

—  For individual holders of H Shares who are residents of those countries
without any tax treaties with the PRC or having tax treaties with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20% or more, and other situations, the
Company would withhold and pay the individual income tax at a tax rate of
20% on behalf of them.

If individual shareholders of H Shares have any queries on the above arrangement,
they may consult their tax advisers for advice on the taxation effects involving
the ownership and disposal of H Shares in PRC, Hong Kong and other countries
(regions).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting Period
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity, of which details of
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made external donations of approximately

RMB1.9 million (contractual value) (excluding personal donations by employees).

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as of 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 29 to the Financial Statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Certain information concerning the Directors and the Supervisors and senior
management of the Company during the Reporting Period and as of the date of
this annual report is set out below.
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Directors =}

Date of Appointment
Name Title in the Company for the Current Term
e RA QBB ROEHNEEREN
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Yu Long Executive Director, vice-chairman, 12 October 2020

general manager

TREE WITEF RIEFK  AKE —T_TFE+A+ZH

Mr. Yang Fang Executive Director,
deputy general manager

B EE WITES  BReKE
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Date of Appointment
Name Title in the Company for the Current Term
HE R 2 4 A B B A ROEHNEERSN
Non-executive Directors
FHUITES
Mr. Li Jialong Non-executive Director, Chairman 16 July 2020
FRELE ERTEE EFER S AN =
Ms. Li Bo Non-executive Director 12 October 2020
FREZT FEMITES —T-TF+A+=H
Mr. Dai Richeng Non-executive Director 12 October 2020
B E KL E FEHMITES —T_TFE+ATZ=H
Mr. Chen Yong Non-executive Director 12 October 2020
BRE K HE FMITES e A =
Mr. Yang Tao (Resigned as non-executive Non-executive Director 28 August 2017

Director and Chairman on 16 July 2020)

BREER-ZZE-_FF LA +XH FEHITES E—+FANA=Z+/\H

BEEFRTES BF=R)

Mr. He Yuanping (Resigned as
non-executive Director
on 12 October 2020)

ARFEE(R=_T=
BEHEFFMITEER)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

BHIxE

Mr. Zhong Wei

BREEE

Mr. Zhou Beihai

At s &

Mr. Hu Song (Resigned as independent

ZFETA+T=R

non-executive director on 14 July 2020)
HREE(R -2 -_ZFL A +WEA
BEEEZIERNITES)

Mr. Ma Shihao (Resigned as independent

non-executive director on 12 October 2020)

BHxaEE(R-_Z-_FTF+A+-H
BEEBEYIENTES)

Non-executive Director

FHTER

Independent Non-executive Director
BUIFATES
Independent Non-executive Director
BUIFATES
Independent Non-executive Director

BALFBITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BYEMITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BYEMITES

28 August 2017

—tFNAZ+TN\H

12 October 2020
—E-TF+A+TZ=AH
12 October 2020
—E-TF+A+ZH

12 October 2020
—TZE+ATZH
28 August 2017

—E—t+FNAZ+N\E

28 August 2017

—tFNANAZ+NH
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Supervisors and Senior Management

EEREREERE

Date of Appointment

Name Title in the Company for the Current Term

] RAERXB N ROEHMNEERD

Supervisors

E=x

Mr. Long Limin Chairman of the Supervisory Committee, 12 October 2020
shareholder representative Supervisor

RERI R & EEQEIE BRERRES e A =

Mr. Zhu Zhen Shareholder representative Supervisor 12 October 2020

RIR T & R KEE —T-TFE+A+=H

Mr. Tan Hairui Independent Supervisor 12 October 2020

BEHEE BB E —T-_TF+A+ZH

Ms. Zhang Ling Independent Supervisor 12 October 2020

SR+ BUEE —Z-ZEF+HA+=H

Ms. Tang Shuang Employee representative Supervisor 12 October 2020

ERL L BINKKES —ZT-TF+A+=H

Mr. Huang Yi Employee representative Supervisor 12 October 2020

BEELE BIRKES —T-TF+A+=H

Senior management

EBREEE

Mr. Liu Xujun Deputy general manager 12 October 2020

2118 & % 4 Bl 48 538 —T-THE+A+=H

Mr. Huang Yunjian
(Resigned on 11 March 2020)
BEERLEE
(RZZEZZEF=R+—A#T)
Mr. Wang Yong
(Resigned on 31 March 2021)
EFERE
(R=ZZ=——F=A=+—H#E)
Mr. Zhang Song
(Resigned on 31 March 2021)
SRR SE A
(R=TE=_—F=RA=+—HEMT)
Mr. Zhao Peng
8 B 5 &
Mr. Ma Xiangyi
SHELE
Ms. Ling Hui
EERX L
Mr. Li Bo
FEEE

Deputy general manager

Bl 1R

Chief financial controller

B 75 48 &

Deputy general manager

Bl a2

Deputy general manager
Bl e
Deputy general manager
Bl

Chief financial controller
B 75 4R B

Company Secretary, Secretary to the Board

NAME BEFSWE
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31 March 2021

T —§=A=+—8H
12 October 2020
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During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent from the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of
the Company are set out on page 38 to 48 of this annual report. There are no
relationships among the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company, including financial, business, family or other material relationships as
defined in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors and
Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and
provision on arbitration. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with

the Articles of Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with
the Company during the Reporting Period which is not terminable within one year
nor may be terminated by the Company without payment of compensation (other

than statutory compensation).

DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR
DETERMINATION OF THE REMUNERATION OF
THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management is subject
to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and determined by the
Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending remuneration for
Directors, Supervisors and senior management to the Board with reference to,
among other factors, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company are
set out in note 39 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance subsisting in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was directly or indirectly a party and any
Director or Supervisor had a material interest.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting Period
had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance with any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, nor had
any contract of significance been entered into for the services provided by any
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge of the Board, none of the
Directors and Supervisors and their respective associates has any business or
interest that competes or may compete with the business of the Group or have or
may have any conflict of interest with the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the
Reporting Period.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2020, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interest in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise, to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or
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which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company BEXHEFEMNELEMAOER  SIREZE
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows: SFRIENEARARAIRBERANEZ  KEF
BENARNREZNAT :
Percentage
Percentage of of the total
the respective number of
Name of Director, type of Shares Shares in
Supervisor and chief in issue (%) issue (%)
executive Number of HE BT HE R8T
B EERES Capacity Type of Shares  Shares held 5 R 17 B 5
THRABKRA 14 ROEHN HEROGEE B9 tb B1(%) B9 tE B1(%)
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 10,820,000(L) 1.30 0.91
TRERL BEmRfEAA AER  10,820,000(L) 1.30 0.91
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner H Shares 770,000(L) 0.21 0.06
TRERAE EREAA HA% 770,000(L) 0.21 0.06
Mr. Yang Fang Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1,755,000(L) 0.21 0.15
B L E=RfEAA A& R 1,755,000(L) 0.21 0.15
Mr. Huang Yi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1,560,000(L) 0.19 0.13
BRESE BmREAA A E K 1,560,000(L) 0.19 0.13
Notes: B 5
(L) refers to long position (L) REGFE

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31
December 2020, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executives of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

BEXRBEEIN  BARRMARA  RZF
—EE+ZA=+—B HMEESE EFR
KRB &ESITHRABRA R E 5B A

WEMBY - BERGORESFT  BEEHRIE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company’s best knowledge, as of 31 December 2020, the following
persons (other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests are disclosed in the
section headed “Interests and Short Positions of Directors, Supervisors and Chief
Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
which were required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the
respective type of share capital in issue of the Company which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

T ERRARA 0 RR
B

BARRAM HRZT_TF+_A=+—
B THAT(ERRRANESRESKRIN - #
ErRENEXES - EEZRER1THAS
R, - BEAROREHFZEERAR ] —
BE)NRAABRGD - HERDRESTES
RIECEFH R E GO EXVBE2REID T
ARARBHWBEESIOAE JRBEF RS
EEBIE3361&BF ELA R A E LA Lk
WiERSORE MAEGARRRER 2 BEITR
KR5%s LA RS SOA R ¢

Percentage Percentage
of the of the
respective total number

type of Shares of Shares

in issue (%) in issue (%)

Number of HE BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Type of Shares Shares R4 10 FEY
RERER R 545 IR 17 38 Bl R &R £ 51(%) H9 Lt 5(%)
Yunnan Province Water' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
ERAEKRE BEREAA  HE—2A W&k 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
THAREER
Mr. Huang Yunjian' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
HERLA ERfEBA BE—EA WAk 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
THEREER
Mr. Liu Xujun' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
2IBE 4! EmfEBA  HE—HEA NE W& 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
THAREER
Mr. Wang Yong' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
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Percentage

of the
respective
type of Shares
in issue (%)

EEHE

Percentage
of the

total number
of Shares

in issue (%)

Number of HE BT HE#1T
Name of Shareholder Capacity Type of Shares Shares AR50 w5
REREHE BREH 1R 42 28 5l K145 &E £ 51(%) B9 Lt (%)
EERE EREAEA BE—EA NEMR 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
THREFEER
YHTH' Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
corporation, interests
held jointly with another
person
el e SEIl MNEEEE A - 5 RER 361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
—AALTHRFEER
Beijing OriginWater Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 286,650,000(L) 34.56 24.02
EREKRR BEaEAA NERk  286,650,000(L) 34.56 24.02
China National Petroleum Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
Corporation? corporation
HEABAAREEERAF? REEEENEE NER 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
CNPC Capital Company Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
Limited? corporation
hEAREEE AN SRR AE ok NER  124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
BRATE?
CNPC Capital Limited? Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
corporation
HEAREREAR NN ok g WA 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
BREMEAR?
CNPC Assets Management Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
Co., Ltd.? corporation
HMEEEEARRRP REEE MR RNEMR  124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
Kunlun Trust Co. Ltd.? Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
corporation
EmEEEREEAR? ARIEEB MRS REMR  124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46

Equity Investment
Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)?
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Percentage

of the
respective
type of Shares
in issue (%)

Percentage
of the

total number
of Shares

in issue (%)

Number of HE BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Type of Shares Shares AR50 w5
RREZB BREH B 17 & Bl R EA £ B(%) H9 tE B1(%)
BERERETAEREEER MR EE SR WA 124,754,169(L) 15.04 10.46
aRrE (AREE) ?
Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 124,754,169 15.04 10.46
Equity Investment Center
(Limited Partnership)?
EREEANBIRERER D BaEAA RERK 124,754,169 15.04 10.46
(BRER) 2
The National Council for Social  Beneficial owner H Shares  30,454,900(L) 8.37 2.55
Security Fund of the PRC*
ZEMEREEASEES BERBEBA HEZ  30,454,900(L) 8.37 2.55
Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 8,449,000(L) 2.32 0.71
Investment Limited’
FERFREBRAR BEHEAA HRR  8,449,000(L) 2.32 0.71
YHTH' Interests in controlled H Shares 8,449,000(L) 2.32 0.71
corporation, interests
held jointly with another
person
R RREE MEEEE N ER - HS HA% 8,449,000(L) 2.32 0.71

—RATHRARAER
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refers to long position

Yunnan Province Water is wholly owned by YHTH and is the beneficial owner of 358,757,162
Domestic Shares. Caiyun International Investment Limited is wholly owned by YHTH and is the
beneficial owner of 8,449,000 H Shares. YHTH is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic
Shares held by Yunnan Province Water and H Shares held by Caiyun International Investment
Limited pursuant to the SFO which representing approximately 31.01% of total issued Shares.
By virtue of the acting in concert agreement (the “Acting in Concert Agreement”) dated
24 July 2014 entered into between Yunnan Province Water, Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and
Wang Yong, each of Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong agreed to act in concert with
Yunnan Province Water in exercising their voting rights in the Shareholders’ meeting of the
Company. Each of Yunnan Province Water and YHTH is deemed to be interested in all the
Domestic Shares held by Huang Yunjian, Liu Xujin, Wang Yong and Yunnan Province Water
itself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the
Acting in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held
by Yunnan Province Water, Mr. Liu, Mr. Wang and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Yunnan
Province Water, Mr. Huang, Mr. Wang and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting
in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by
himself, Yunnan Province Water, Mr. Huang, Mr. Liu and himself in aggregate pursuant to the
SFO.

Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan”) is a general partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity
Investment Center (Limited Partnership) ("Xinzhen Tianying"), holds 3.85% equity interests
in Xinzhen Tianying and is the beneficial owner of 124,754,169 Domestic Shares; Ningbo
Kunlun Xinyuan is owned as to 99% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is
owned as to 82.18% by CNPC Assets Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly owned
by CNPC Capital Limited; CNPC Capital Limited is wholly owned by CNPC Capital Company
Limited, which in turn is owned as to 77.35% by China National Petroleum Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31

December 2020, no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief

executives) had informed the Company that he had interests or short positions in

the Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the Company which were

required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5% or

more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business
were entered into or existed during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a number of non-exempt
continuing connected transactions. The table below shows the annual caps
and actual transaction value of such continuing connected transactions for the
Reporting Period:

BEEEHN

BREBRTANIN EEENLLERDE
RAEMEA RS AR B LB E I RITHE
STRFETAAL -

FEBRERS

REBEMR - AREEEITSETERLHE
MHER D  TEARIZSHEMER SR
BEMROFE LREERR S EE

Actual
transaction
Nature and Annual cap amount
Name, date and term of description of Basis for determining for 2020 in 2020
the agreement Connected Persons the transaction the consideration ZECZZEE —EC-EF
HEEE - BHRER BEAL XHHERER EEER IR ERXZEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®T R
Membrane Ancillary Material Beijing OriginWater Yunnan Water On an arm'’s length 30,000 2,893
Procurement Master Agreement and its subsidiaries purchases membrane basis and on normal
ancillary materials commercial terms
from Beijing
OriginWater
R EIRB A HE 1 REKR EfABRLERERR  ATRAR—REEER 30,000 2,893
REWBRA REERE
It was entered into on
22 December 2017 to set
the annual cap of transaction
for 3 years from 2018 to 2020.
RIB—tF+-A-+ZRFL
NREZZ—\FE_T_ZF
ZFERERH LR o
Master Sale and Purchase Agreement  YHTH and its subsidiaries ~ Yunnan Water provides On an arm'’s length 54,000 131
for Engineering Services Engineering Services basis and on normal
to YHTH commercial terms
TiRfRiain= ERRREE ERKBAEEREK  ATRBR-REEGER 54,000 131
REMBRA SERETIRRS

It was entered into on
29 December 2017 to set
the annual cap of transaction
for 3 years from 2018 to 2020.
R-Z—+t&E+-A-t+hB:]Z -
NRE-B-N\FE-_ZT-TF
“EFERH LR -
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Several related-party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to the Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under the definition of
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  carried out on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3)  carried out according to the relevant transaction agreements, the terms of
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Auditor’s Letter

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter

has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the above continuing

connected transactions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition undertaking on
6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”).
Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert
Parties has irrevocably undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its
associates (except the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as
principal or agent, either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other
things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any
services to or otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with
the business of the Company from time to time (the “Restricted Business”).
Each of the Acting in Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if
there is any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a
reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to our Company
on a pre-emptive basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking and had determined that the Acting in Concert Parties have fully
complied with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Undertaking during
the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements (the “Non-
Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the Company. Pursuant
to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the Undertaking Shareholder has
irrevocably undertaken that it will not and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either
on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on,
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the business
of the Company from time to time. Each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any new business opportunity in
the Restricted Business, it shall within a reasonable period of time refer such new
business opportunities to our Company on a pre-emptive basis.

64 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #51& & ik {9 & R A &l Annual Report 2020 4 [& i &

SIS R

E-—BTHATER=_T—AERA~BE
EUARABR/Z@mANAHEFAGE ([ FRF
E#H]D  BBEABRFRE S -2ITHAL
EAAI MO AT KR LBE
A(RRBRIN T EELEE (BRAE S
ASRENED  ERREAFFERER
FRREMAL BRIAF > EHmAETE
BAREN (AhaE)ME KE 28EE
ARBEBABEFELZFNEFMELB(ZR
FEBEDIRZEEBR B EEAENHA
BRAREEBRBEMRBRSEZEE
BeoZ—BOTBHALTERAARE A @ i
EREEBPLREMAAEE  EHR R
EEMHABZIEBELENTARA -

—HITPHALTEUNEBRARARAER
REEHA - BECATEAFRNBED
R -

BURTESDEN —BITHATHEST
THFABREO VLT ER  THEH
HEHAN  —HOTHALERTETATE
BRIFEFRE

& A F

EARENRRER-_TE—AFRARANBESE
NARRAZHEANTHEERE(TREH
B - BETHFHE SEERFEORRE
TR BB E  ET e W B RELHEA
(AARIBRIMN T EEEIEEZE(ERAEEA
IREONED EwmAEEFMNEERK
REEMAL  BRJAF EREFEAR
HMBIEASIEIN) (HPRE)HR - #F -
SEARNAEBTRFERFOTMER
R RS ER B T AR K F = kA%
EEBRHAMNBRB IS EZEESE -8
AHENRRAND AR B A HZREE
BREREMAEE  EER—BREEHAM
NEZTERELEENTFARF -



The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking Shareholders have fully complied
with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Agreements during the
Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period the total amount of procurement from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 74.53% of the total amount
of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2020. The procurement from the
largest supplier accounted for 40.17% of the total amount of procurement for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales for the year ended
31 December 2020 to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 13.67% of the total amount of revenue, and the total amount of
sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately 5.04% of the total
amount of revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective close
associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do not hold any interest in
the top five customers and top five suppliers of the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the note 2.26 to the Financial Statements for detailed information

on the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the Group's
performance for the year and material factors relating to its results and financial
conditions are respectively set out in the chapter headed “General Manager’s
Report” from page 13 to 16 and the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” from page 17 to 37 in this annual report. Such discussions

constitute an integral part of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment services providers
in the PRC, the Company is committed to operating its various business segments
in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Board believes that compliance
with the relevant environmental protection rules and regulations is crucial to
the long term development and success of the Group’s businesses. In order to
maintain a high standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations,
the Company offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at the
various water treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants. As a result
of the Company’s commitment to environmental protection and through the
implementation of advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe and

environmentally-friendly production during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the cornerstone
of a business and attaches considerable importance to it. To the best knowledge
of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
Furthermore, as the H Shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange,
the Company shall be bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, future results of operations and prospects could be affected
by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to the chapter headed “General
Manager’s Report” from page 13 to 16 in this annual report for detail analysis of

the relevant risks and uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has undertaken and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as defined under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong)).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director and Supervisor or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DEBT AND PERPETUAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Group issued the following debt financing
instruments for the purposes of meeting daily business operation needs, adjusting
the debt structure, replenishing working capital and project investment:

— on 13 March 2020, the Company issued the tranche 1 of non-public
corporate bonds (epidemic prevention and control bonds) in the principal of
RMB800,000,000, with a term of 2+2+1 years and an interest rate of 6.5%
per annum;

— on 13 March 2020, the Company issued the tranche 1 of targeted debt
financing instruments (epidemic prevention and control bonds) in the
principal of RMB100,000,000, with a term of 180 days and an interest rate
of 4.0% per annum;

— on 20 March 2020, the Company issued the short-term financial bonds in
the principal of RMB400,000,000, with a term of one year and an interest
rate of 5.15% per annum;

— on 14 August 2020, the Company issued the green bonds in the principal
of RMB330,000,000, with a term of 3+3+4 years and an interest rate of
6.3% per annum; and

— on 20 August 2020, the Company issued the ultra-short-term financial
bonds in the principal of RMB1,000,000,000, with a term of 180 days and
an interest rate of 5.3% per annum.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of Shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code. Details of the corporate governance
practice of the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
page 70 to 87 in this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under

the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had not been involved in any
material litigation nor arbitration and the Directors are not aware of any litigation
or claims of material importance pending or threatened against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page 17 to 37 in
this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant

to which, before declaration or proposed distribution of dividends, the Board shall

consider the following factors:
—  the actual and expected financial performance of the Company;

—  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and the

subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group;

—  the liquidity of the Group;

—  the overall economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group’s business
and the inherent or external factors that may affect the business, financial
performance and positioning of the Company; and

— Other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The distribution of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and the Articles
of Association.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results and the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company for the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 prepared in accordance with HKFRS have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company has retained the services of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since 2013.

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company
for the year of 2021 will be proposed at the AGM.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and liabilities of the
Group for the recent five financial years is set out on page 228 in this annual

report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited*

Li Jialong
Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
31 March 2021
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report of the Company
for the Reporting Period.

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhance
Shareholder value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The Company’s corporate
governance principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective
internal control and accountability to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view of safeguarding the interest of Shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of Shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. The Group has made
specific enquiries with all of its Directors and Supervisors, and all Directors and
Supervisors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.
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IExREE #&m

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg

Board composition EEEMER

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period are: RBEHAERNEESR -
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Yu Long (Vice-chairman, General manager) TFRREAEE(BIZEFR  AAKHE)
Mr. Yang Fang (Deputy General manager) 157 S (BB HE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Li Jialong (Chairman) ERELE(EFELR)

(appointed on 16 July 2020)
Mr. Dai Richeng (appointed on 12 October 2020)

(ﬁ/\_ = = f/{fﬁf‘/\ Ejgg—;/-f)
BAXEER-FE-_FFL AT —HEZE)

Ms. Li Bo FRZ L
Mr. Chen Yong BR B 54
Mr. Yang Tao (Chairman) HEEE(EER)
(resigned on 16 July 2020) (R=ZF=-FF+ [ NHBEE)
Mr. He Yuanping fo] B8 ¥ 52 4
(resigned on 12 October 2020) (RZFE_ZFE+FH+ZHEEE)
Independent Non-executive Directors Y HHITE
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BMIIEE
Mr. Zhong Wei EEEE
Mr. Zhou Beihai A4t & %k &
Mr. Hu Song HAMR S A
(resigned on 14 July 2020) (RZF-_FFELHABEE)
Mr. Ma Shihao Bt R kA&

(resigned on 12 October 2020)

To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. In
particular, there is no such relationship between the Chairman and the general
manager. The roles of Chairman and the general manager are assumed by Mr.
Li Jialong and Mr. Yu Long, respectively. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed "Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors
containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and provision on
arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors (including the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a
term of three years from the date of he/she takes up the appointment.

(R=ZF_ZFF 1+ H+-HEE)
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On 14 July 2020, Mr. Hu Song resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and Mr. Ma Shihao resigned as an independent non-executive Director
on 12 October 2020. The Board comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, which fails to meet the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board. On 12 October 2020, the Company appointed Mr. Liu
Shuen Kong, Mr. Zhong Wei and Mr. Zhou Beihai as independent non-executive
Directors, which met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent nonexecutive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence during the Reporting Period pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent during the Reporting Period in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgement and to
act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board oversees
management’s efforts to promote the Company’s success while operating in an
effective and responsible manner. The Board also formulates the Company’s overall
business strategies and monitors management'’s execution of such strategies.

By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business and
governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these matters reserved
for the Board have been separately defined, and are reviewed periodically, to
ensure that the Company maintains the proper level of corporate governance and
to ensure they are up to date. In this regard, the Board discharges, among others,
the following duties:

(1) to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a general
meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its work to the
general meeting and to implement the resolutions of the general meetings;

(2)  to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment plans;

(3) to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and final financial

budgets and profit distribution plans and plans for recovery of losses;
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(4)  to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal, repurchase
of shares of the Company or merger, division, dissolution and alteration of
corporate form of the Company;

(5)  to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and punishments of the
Company'’s staff;

(6)  to decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and
to appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

(7)  to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of
accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the Company; and

(8) to review and supervise the policies and practices of the Company in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and operations to
the Company’s senior management, which includes its chief administration officers,
the general manager and deputy general manager. The senior management
meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies and make
recommendations to the Board. The senior management administers, enforces,
interprets and supervises compliance with the internal rules and operational
procedures of the Company as well as its subsidiaries and conducts regular
reviews, recommends and advises on appropriate amendments to such rules and
procedures. The senior management reports to the Board on a regular basis and
communicates with the Board whenever required.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance policies and
performing the corporate governance duties, which include, among others:

(1)  to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and Senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code; and

(5) to review the compliance of the Company with relevant code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and make its disclosure in the
corporate governance report prepared under the Listing Rules.
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Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a year. Meetings
shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of and documents for such
meetings shall be sent to all Directors and Supervisors 14 days before the meeting
is held. The Chairman, any Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth voting
rights, more than one-third of the Directors, or the Supervisory committee or more
than one-half of the independent non-executive Directors or the general manager
may propose the holding of an extraordinary meeting of the Board. The chairman
shall convene and preside over the extraordinary meeting of the Board within ten
days upon receipt of the proposal, and shall give written notice to all Directors
and Supervisors five days before the meeting is held. During the Reporting
Period, the Board held 69 Board meetings, one annual general meeting and three
extraordinary general meetings.

In case of urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon approval
by the chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting notice as set out
in the Articles of Association, provided that reasonable notice shall be given to
Directors, Supervisors and the general manager.

Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of new directors are
considered first by the nomination committee and the remuneration committee,
then they will make recommendations to the Board for consideration. All
nominees of new directors must be approved by the Shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company. Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain

approval of the Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
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Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 69 Board meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or by electronic
communication means. They made informed decisions to safeguard the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The attendance of Directors is as

TXRERRE
EEHFEESORRAARER

RBREHRRN BEFFRTTOREZTGH -
FAEEFHZERTHEEREXBBE T
BATABEEE  WEELABERTRE
ARARBEROBERENG BEFOHEEN

follows: T
Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings
BEEgHERES
Name of Director EEHE BITR™
Mr. Li Jialong (appointed on 16 July 2020) FPREXE(RZZZFLA T BEZME) 32/32
Mr. Yu Long FiexE 69/69
Ms. Li Bo TR L 69/69
Mr. Dai Richeng (appointed on 12 October 2020) BEKEE(R-ZE_ZTFF+A+_BEZE) 10/10
Mr. Yang Tao (resigned on 16 July 2020) HBEEE(R-ZZE_TFLtA+BEE) 37/37
Mr. He Yuanping (resigned on 12 October 2020) MEFEE(R_ZS_TF+A+-_HEMT) 59/59
Mr. Yang Fang B EE 69/69
Mr. Chen Yong BRE £ & 69/69
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BEMiIE 69/69
Mr. Zhong Wei (appointed on 12 October 2020) EEAEWR_ZE-_ZEF+A+_HEZT) 10/10
Mr. Zhou Beihai (appointed on 12 October 2020) AltBEE(RTE_TF+AT+-_HEZMF) 10/10
Mr. Hu Song (resigned on 14 July 2020) PHREE(R_ZE-_ZEF+-A+MABT) 37/37
Mr. Ma Shihao (resigned on 12 October 2020) Bt A (RS -_FF+ A+ _-_HET) 60/60

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

BERNEESER) REE-T_TF+=
A=Z+—RLFE BEERNEENTES
TESZEATEBIFFRTEERIT KX

&
B AR
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During this Reporting Period, the Board considered and approved important

proposals, mainly including:

76

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2019 annual report of the
Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2019 profit distribution plan of
the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2019 financial statements and the
2020 financial budget report of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the re-appointment of

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP as the PRC auditor and
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the international auditor of the Company

The resolution on appointment of non-executive Directors of the second

session of the Board

The resolution on appointment of non-executive Directors of the third
session of the Board

The resolution on appointment of executive Directors of the third session of
the Board

The resolution on appointment of independent non-executive Directors of
the third session of the Board

The resolution on election of chairman of the third session of the Board

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2020 interim results report of the
Company
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise annual general

meetings and extraordinary general meetings. Annual general meetings are held

once every year and within six months after the conclusion of the previous

financial year. During the Reporting Period, a total of four general meetings were

held, including three extraordinary general meetings. The attendance of Directors

is as follows:

i

RECR

AER) KR

_J.LL/\-/\—\

B #&m

BN RBRREFK

EMERRRERAE RRAFASEFAH
—RCAERE—EMBEEERENNE
ARET - RWEHA ?Jzﬁ/\mffﬁT@u\

BEAE  Hipm=
EOHEEMDT

Attendance/
Number of annual
general meeting

//\FJEHDHTHX$K

Attendance/
Number of
extraordinary
general meeting

BRBEFAE RRRRAS
HERE HERE
Name of Director EEHE EEVS EEVS
Mr. Li Jialong TRELE N/A 73 A 12
(first appointed on 16 July 2020) (R=ZZE_ZFLA T+ HEREZHE)
Mr. Yu Long FHEE 7 3/3
Ms. Li Bo =g mn 3/3
Mr. Dai Richeng BAKEAE N/A 73 1/1
(first appointed on 12 October 2020) (RZZ_ZFE+A+-_HEREZH)
Mr. Yang Tao BELE 0/1 1/2
(resigned on 16 July 2020) (R=ZZE=ZE LA+ BT
Mr. He Yuanping o] BB 5 A 7 2/2
(resigned on 12 October 2020) (RM—ZE-ZF+A+-BEMD
Mr. Yang Fang BhRE 17 3/3
Mr. Chen Yong BRE &L 7 33
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BRI EE 7l 3/3
Mr. Zhong Wei BELE N/A 7~ i A 171
(first appointed on 12 October 2020) (RZZ_TFE+A+-HEREZH)
Mr. Zhou Beihai L& N/A i A 171
(first appointed on 12 October 2020) (RZZZZTF+R+-HEKREZT)
Mr. Hu Song IR L& 17 171
(resigned on 14 July 2020) (RZZ_ZE+A+HEHE)
Mr. Ma Shihao Bt REAE 1/1 2/2

(resigned on 12 October 2020)

(M=ZZ_ZH+HT_H&ME)
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities as Directors of
the Company, and the mode of operation, business activities and development of
the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that newly
appointed Directors have appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and are fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. During the Reporting
Period, Directors of the Company have participated in the training about
“Obligations of Directors of Listing Companies” conducted by the legal advisers.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company constantly arranges
internal seminars and provides reading materials on relevant topics to Directors,
and all Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, apart from provision of general
introduction for newly appointed Directors, the Company also arranged the
Directors, Supervisors and relevant senior management members to participate in
a training seminar on “Duties of Directors of Companies Listed in Hong Kong”
on 12 October 2020 hosted by the Company’s legal adviser, with a view to raise
the level of standard operations among the Board and senior management of the

Company.

Mr. Li Jialong, Mr. Yu Long, Ms. Li Bo, Mr. Dai Richeng, Mr. Chen Yong, Mr.
Yang Fang, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong, Mr. Zhong Wei, Mr Zhou Beihai, Mr. Tan Hairui,
Ms. Zhang Ling, Mr. Huang Yi and Ms. Tang Shuang have participated in relevant
training programs and have provided the relevant records to the Company. The
Directors develop and update their knowledge and skills through participation
in the training programs, which in turn ensure that they could make suitable
contribution to the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the general manager are separate
and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in the Articles of
Association. Mr. Li Jialong serves as chairman in the third session of the Board,
and Mr. Yu Long serves as general manager. The chairman is elected by a majority
vote of all Directors, and the general manager is nominated and appointed by the
Board.

The Chairman places great emphasis on the communication with the independent
non-executive Directors. The chairman holds meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors at least once every year, in respect of development strategy,
corporate governance, operational management, at which no executive Director is

present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors may speak freely
at the Board meetings and actively participate in the discussions of significant

decision making in the Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The
Company had established four Board committees, being the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Compliance Committee and the Audit
Committee.

(1). Nomination Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:
reviewing and monitoring the structure, size, composition and diversity
of members of the Board in light of the Company’s strategy; identifying
suitably qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board to
be new Board members; reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on individuals nominated to be Directors by Shareholders; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and reviewing
and monitoring the implementation of diversity policy of Board members of
the Company. Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the second session of the Nomination
Committee consists of one non-executive Director, Mr. Yang Tao (as
chairman) and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu Song
and Mr. Mr. Ma Shihao. The third session of the Nomination Committee
consists of one non-executive Director, Mr. Li Jialong (as chairman) and two

independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhong Wei and Mr. Zhou Beihai.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the Company
had held two meetings, to discuss the nomination and appointment matters
of Directors of the second session and the third session of the Board of
the Company, and review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. At such
meetings, Mr. Li Jialong was nominated as a candidate for an non-executive
Director of the second session of the Board. Mr. Li Jialong, Ms. Li Bo, Mr.
Dai Richeng and Mr. Chen Yong were nominated as candidates for non-
executive Director of the third session of the Board. Mr. Yu Long and Mr.
Yang Fang were nominated as candidates for executive Director of the third
session of the Board. Mr. Liu Shuen Kong, Mr Zhong Wei and Mr. Zhou
Beihai were nominated as candidates for independent non-executive Director
of the third session of the Board.
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The attendance record of the committee members are as follows: ZEg KB FELRENT ¢
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HERE,
Name of Director EEHR BERE
Mr. Li Jia Long FRELE 11
(first appointed on 16 July 2020) (RZZEZTFELA T BEREZE)
Mr. Zhong Wei EEEE N/A 7~ A
(appointed on 12 October 2020) (RZZE_TF+A+-BEZHE)
Mr. Zhou Beihai B3k 5 & N/A & A
(appointed on 12 October 2020) (R=ZBE-_TE+A+-_BEZEE)
Mr. Yang Tao BEx 11
(resigned on 16 July 2020) (%fgfgitﬂ+ﬁaﬁﬁ>
Mr. Hu Song (resigned on 14 July 2020) HREE(R=_ZE-_ZF A+ MEBT) 11

Mr. Ma Shihao Bt xEE

(resigned on 12 October 2020)

The Company had adopted a board diversity policy with a view to
achieving the diversity of the Board. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board
members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the possible contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for all Directors and senior management members
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; review and approval of the remuneration
proposals from the management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management members; and to advise Shareholders of the Company with
respect to the service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the second session of the Remuneration
Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr. Yang Fang and two
independent non-executive Directors Mr. Hu Song (as chairman) and Mr.
Ma Shihao. The third session of the Remuneration Committee consists of
one executive Director, Mr. Yu Long and two independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Zhong Wei (as chairman) and Mr. Zhou Beihai.

In 2020, the Remuneration Committee provided recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration and performance management policy
and framework for the Directors and senior management. Meanwhile, it
inspected and assessed the performance of duties by the Directors and
senior management and the annual performance. During the Reporting

Period, the Remuneration Committee of the Company had held the meeting
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once. The attendance record of the committee members are as follows: ZHKEZHFERLENT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERE

Name of Director EEHE EEYE

Mr. Zhong Wei EELAE N/A “~iE A
(appointed on 12 October 2020) (R—E-_ZEFE+HR+-_HEZFE)

Mr. Yu Long FHEEEE N/A 7~ iE A
(appointed on 12 October 2020) (R=ZZT=_ZTF+AT-HEZMT)

Mr. Zhou Beihai Bt E N/A 71 iE A

(appointed on 12 October 2020)

Mr. Hu Song AR % A&

(resigned on 14 July 2020)
Mr. Yang Fang 157 5%
(resigned on 12 October 2020)

Mr. Ma Shihao
(resigned on 12 October 2020)

Fxmkt

(M_ZF_FTFE+A+_HEZE)

(RZE-_ZFTFLAT+WBEBET)

(RZZEZTF+A+=ZHEEE)

(R=ZZE=ZF+A+=HBT)

171

171

Al
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Compliance Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Compliance Committee are to conduct
independent investigation and make decisions on compliance matters
with respect to our business operations by authorization from the Board.
The Company has established the Compliance Committee to ensure the
operation of any projects acquired and operated by us are in compliance
with the Group’s internal control standards and the relevant PRC laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Compliance Committee of the

Company had held the meeting once, all the members were attended.

During the Reporting Period, the second session of the Compliance
Committee was consisted of two executive Directors, Mr. Yu Long (as
chairman) and Mr. Yang Fang, three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ma Shihao, and one employee
representative Supervisor, Mr. Huang Yi. The third session of the Compliance
Committee was consisted of two executive Directors, Mr. Yu Long and Mr.
Yang Fang, three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong,
Mr. Zhong Wei (as chairman) and Mr. Zhou Beihai, and one employee
representative Supervisor, Mr. Huang Vi.

Audit Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, including making recommendations on
appointing or changing the external auditor and its terms of engagement;
reviewing and monitoring external auditor’'s independence and audit
process objectively; monitor the truthfulness, accuracy and integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts and half-
year report; oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system; and other matters that the Board
has authorized it to deal with. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee

have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the second session of the Audit Committee
was consisted of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen
Kong (as chairman), Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ma Shihao. The third session
of the Audit Committee was consisted of three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (as chairman), Zhong Wei and Mr. Zhou
Beihai.
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In 2020, the Audit Committee of the Company had held three meetings,
to review the annual report 2018, interim report 2019 of the Company, to
propose the payment of dividends, to consider and approve the auditors
and fix their remuneration, and to discuss and make recommendations on
matters such as internal control and internal audit procedures. During the
Reporting Period, the attendance of the committee members are as follows:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERE,

Name of Director EEpHE BRRE

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong B MLt E 3/3

Mr. Zhong Wei EREEE 1/1
(appointed on 12 October 2020) (RZZT_ZTF+AT-HEZMF)

Mr. Zhou Beihai Jﬂib%i 1/
(appointed on 12 October 2020) (RZZE2_ZTF+A+ZHEZE)

Mr. Hu Song AR % A& 11

(resigned on 14 July 2020) (RZZE_TFEA+HHEBE)

Mr. Ma Shihao SHZmELE 2/2

(resigned on 12 October 2020) (RZZE=_ZTFT+A+-HEZHE)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating
policies on remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in Note 39 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the remuneration
paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors) by bands for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

EEREREBAENEMH

KRABERBTREBRSREIEAE K BN
BEEVEALABZERENEF BE-F
TEFET A=+ -RUEFEREFHFIN

FEHR P MERME39 -

RIBEEEARTREBISE  TRHIEZE
TECTFET A=t -HLEFERRMHZ
DN FERERAB(TEREEE)NHH -

Number of individuals

Remuneration bands (RMB) FHER(ARY) A
Nil to 500,000 = £500,0007C 2
500,001 to 1,000,000 500,001t 21,000,0007T 5
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Directors
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue its operation as a going
concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company’s Financial Statements, which were put to the Board for approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that effective environmental, social and corporate governance
("ESG") management policies are crucial to the sustainability of the Group's
business. As such, the Group proactively enhances its understanding of the
latest laws and regulations and the best practices both within and outside the
PRC, which are relevant to the Group’s business, as well as its management
approach and management system. As a responsible corporation, the Group is
also committed and dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental and social
standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business,
including but not limited to health and safety, labour standards, employment and
the environment, which would have a significant impact on the Group, such as
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC ( {FFEARKMBELEEFIE) ), the Law
of the PRC on Work Safety ( (R #EARKME %2 4EFEL) ), the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC ( {1 ZE AR ZEFEIRIFIRE /£>> , the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environment PoIIutlon Caused by Solid
Wastes ( (AR FLMBEEEEYSRIRIRNIAE) ), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ( A2 A B H B AR5 20
JA7E) ), the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ( {
= AR KEMBIKSEFAZE) ), the Standard for Pollution Control on the Landfill
Site of Municipal Solid Waste ( {4&)/&RIRIEIRISFLIEHIEAE) ) (GB16889-2008),
the Standard for Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid Waste Incineration ( {4
SE BN T P HIIZ ) ) (GB18485-2014), the Technical Requirements on
Medical Waste Incinerator ( { B EE R M E5K) ) (GB19218-2003), the
Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Incineration ( (/&K EE )7 k&
RIEHIFAE) ) (GB18484-2014) and the applicable pollutant emission standards
formulated by local governments. The Group believes that a better future
depends on everyone's participation and contribution. To this end, the Group has
encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a 33 whole.
The Group also maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services
to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.
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An ESG report has been prepared with reference to ESG Guide. The report
presents our contributions to sustainable development during the Reporting Period,
and covers the major environmental and social policies, environmental indicators
of our Group, measures adopted for reducing emissions by the Group and the
relevant achievements of the Group. The ESG Report is set out on page 229 to
276 in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management and
internal control system to safeguard the Shareholder’s investments and the
Company's assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis with the support of the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal audit system and the risk management and internal control system of the
Company and its subsidiaries, including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training
programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries was
effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities
for the Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” from
page 88 to 95 of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers

as the auditor of the Company is set out below:
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ok |
RMB’000
AR®T T
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ERAR

Fee for audit services
Fee for non-audit services

Total fees

The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit services and
non-audit services during the Reporting Period.

7,250
200
7,450

REERHEBAITRIEFE T H A BRD R K
ZERY R IR BRTS
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential to enhance investor relations and investors understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions. The general
meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face communication
between the Board and the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding more than 10%
(individually or together with others) of Shares of the Company shall be entitled
to request for an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting according to the
following procedures:

(1) Upon signing one or several written requests with the same content and
format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the aforesaid Shareholders
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting. Concerning the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with
the law, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply with
a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon receipt of the proposal.
Shares held by the above Shareholders who made the requests shall be
calculated as at the date of submitting the written request.

(2)  If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within five days upon
making the Board decision. Any changes made to the original request in the

notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.

(3)  If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal,
Shareholders individually or together holding more than 10% of the Shares
are entitled to request the Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an

extraordinary general meeting or class meeting.

(4) I the supervisory committee agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon receiving the requests. Any changes made to the original
request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.
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(5)  If the supervisory committee does not issue the notice of general meeting
within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the Supervisory
Committee not convening and not holding the general meeting. Then
the Shareholders who individually or together hold more than 10% of
the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days may convene and hold the
meeting themselves. Before publicly announcing the resolution(s) of the
general meeting, the convening Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of
the Shares. When the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general
meeting and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities regulatory
authority where the Company is located and relevant stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually or together
holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad-hoc proposals in writing to
the convener of the general meeting ten days before the holding of the general
meeting. The convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the
ad-hoc proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to
communicate with the Company:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716

Company website: www.yunnanwater.cn

E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by the law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo has been the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in each financial year. Mr. Li provided his training
records to the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by attending courses on company secretary functions, accounting
system and Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥8 N % BUAD i

_n
pwc

To the Shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 227,
which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary

of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model

3 Recoverability of trade receivables

Key Audit Matters

BN BAM R S

FRESNTSE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

HMEETEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model

BRERBTCETHE TN EREERENERRENBANEINGTE
Refer to note 2.11(a)(i) for the accounting policy of service concession
arrangements under financial asset model, note 4(a) for the critical accounting

estimates and judgements involved, and note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements for the receivables under service concession arrangements.

RBEFELELHFTHNEREEELNBRETREBLHEHYBRERN
fE2.110)0)  EZEFH AR MAEFE 2B E40) ARRBFHFLELHET
B 8 R TR S 2 B T R 20 ©

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with
certain governmental authorities or their designators (the “Grantors”) under
Build-Operate-Transfer arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer arrangements
in respect of its wastewater treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment
services. Certain of these service concession arrangements are accounted for
using “financial asset” model while others are accounted for using “intangible
asset” model. For the Group's service concession arrangements under financial
asset model, the fair value of receivables and revenue recognised are derived
from valuation in which a number of critical assumptions were used. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of receivables under service concession
arrangements amounted to RMB5,301.4 million, which accounted for 11% of
the Group's total assets.

EREEREHRFEBREEESD ([RTADREHRSKEE - K RERE
EERBHIER —EL —BXILHRBR —82 — B 8 7IXT
ZEHRBEFARELS BEREN—HMORBEFALLLIHRRISAREE
BHZE  HBHEOREFAKCELRHRBIBELEE | REZHE - EEENRE
FARELRHTHNEREERYNBUGERKA  HAFEOAMGBESE - &%
EHEERTZHBRER R_F_TF+_A=1—80 EXERGEF
BERBETHRKFIERESERARES3014B8T  HEELENI1% o

BEMNESNAEERAEESEE

With respect to valuation and revaluation for
the service concession arrangements under
financial asset model undertaken during the
year, we assessed the methodologies used
by the external valuers and evaluated the
independence, competence and capabilities
of the external valuers and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk factors.

MR AFEHRBHFECELH TSR
BERBETHMGEREM - HAFFE T
BB AT 14 B A B0 73 0% DA R o BB 5T fik B &9 B
SMEMERBER D - WBBE B TR
EMMBEEMEGEERREEFNETE
REEREE A RR -

We selected samples of service concession
arrangements under financial asset model for
testing. The key procedures included:

BPMEREEHFCETHETHNEREERE

BT THENR - FERFEE

1. Examining the agreements between
the Group and the Grantors.
REEKBEERRTAREZINGH o
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

BEETER

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model (Cont’d)

BERFELEZE TN EREERENERRENRANBINGE(H)

Management has engaged external valuers to perform the valuation for
those service concession arrangements under financial asset model at initial
recognition, and to perform revaluation when there were indicators that the
critical assumptions in the initial valuation have been significantly affected and
deviated subsequent to initial recognition. Such valuation and revaluation were
determined based on the forecasted cash flows to be derived from the related
projects which involved critical judgements and assumptions including but
not limited to the effective interest rate, forecasted unit price of service fee,
operating costs and profit margins of the operating services. The judgements
and estimations are subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty and leading
to relatively higher inherent risk. With reference to the valuation and revaluation
performed by the external valuers, management determined the amount of
receivables and revenue to be recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model during the year, and the subsequent measurement
of receivables and revenue.

EEBREFTIIBIEMERBEEFCELHTNEREEBRE Y IRER
RETHE & ﬁ%%%%ﬂﬁﬁm%%ﬁﬁ%%%m%ﬁﬁ“%iiﬁ&
b ABETTEM ZEHEREHEIEENRBFILERHORS RN -
%%&migﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$~%%§WEM$E~
ERATELRBOENE - ZEHE KA R B S E G5 T T 5
% i%ﬁﬁﬁfmmlﬁﬂ“°ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%%%ﬁ@&iﬁ’§ﬁ@ﬁi
EFEIANREFALELH THEREEEL N BERAERKA - )
&H%Wé%ﬁiﬁﬁ°

EMNESANMEERRETZE

Testing the reasonableness and
appropriateness of critical assumptions
adopted in the cash flow forecasts,
mainly in relation to:

HESRBAMERNERBRERNE
EUREERETIR  T268%

— sending confirmations to the
Grantors to confirm the current
unit price and the future price
incremental rate;

MIE T AZERRE  ZERY
BRI REERKRKRERNIE
RIEE ;

— assessing and analysing the
reasonableness of the operating
costs by comparing to the actual
costs of other existing service
concession arrangements of the
Group;

%mﬁ%lﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ
LR ERRA
ﬁﬁnﬁ@%%$%éﬁﬁ’

— assessing and analysing the
profit margins of the operating
services by comparing with
the average profit margin of
the operating services of the
industry; and

UL RTRBERBENTHE
FIE 345 30 5 4748 R 7% 1
EMEMHAEE R

— assessing the effective interest
rate by reference to our
knowledge of the industry
and independent research on
external evidence.
EERTENRBISTEE R
ﬁﬁTW%ﬂéEﬁ“%ﬁ%
m%&%&rﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
B fHEY DM ABIFE R
B o
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Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

BEETER EMNESANMEERRETZE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model (Cont’d)

BRESTFLCEZETHEREERENERKENRANEINGT 2 (F)

We paid significant attention to this area due to the significance of receivables We also challenged management’s assessment
and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements under financial of whether the subsequent measurement
asset model and critical judgement involved in determining the critical of receivables and revenue recognised for
assumptions used in the valuation and revaluation. the service concession arrangements under

BMEEMIRAE TEARBEBHEERATHEMEEMMemy | [inandal asset model should be subject
to revaluation by comparing the actual

HEMBPASHERAERN UREEEEVNRIGREBENEGREANE outcome, if available, with the critical

SR R EKHE - assumptions applied in the valuation in
previous years and assessing the potential
impact of reasonably possible changes in the
critical assumptions.

BMTMETTEREERNRBEFLER
FETHeREERVURTFTZETETN
HEF - FAIEEEVIE 7B 1 5 AT A B B
BENERGEREANFEGEMERASN
BRETHL WA RIS W ARKRERE
EEBEXENEHR -

Based on our audit work, we found the
critical assumptions used by management on
the service concession arrangements under

financial asset model to be consistent with
the evidence that we obtained.

REBEHMOFTTE  ZARBSEERERR
BEARERETNEREEREFAER
MERRREL MBS ERTERE B -
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

BEETER

Recoverability of trade receivables
FE Ui BR X Y AT [ Wi

Refer to note 4(b) for the critical accounting estimates and judgements involved,
and note 23 to the consolidated financial statements for trade receivables.

HHEEZ A MAE B2 A 6 B WK M A0 R FE23

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade receivables amounted to
RMB6,257.9 million, which accounted for 13% of the Group’s total assets.
RZZBZZFE+-_A=+—RH ESEERKERNEE 28R AKK6,257.9
BEL HEELRTENIZ% -

The identification of impairment events and the determination of the impairment
provision of trade receivables require the application of critical judgement by
management.

EEEHERETRESHNINALREEENRFEERERAL -

Management recognised the impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses rather than only incurred credit losses, which is subject to high degree
of estimation uncertainty and leading to relatively higher inherent risk. These
evaluations focused on the customers’ settlement history and current ability to
pay, and took into account information specific to the customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the customers operated
ERBERENGCGEBEMIEEAREANGEBERIRERE  EX3
BEMAIEEENGLN  TEFHERSNERRR - ZSHHEHBIR
FOBSEELHEREMNINEN TZEREF B S RELERENLER
SHORERER -

We paid significant attention to this area because management made critical
judgements over both timing of recognition of impairment and the estimation of
the amount of any such impairment.

BRMEEMIZESTEAREIEE Y R UER SO E % R R B RO E
SHEMMEEHER T EARHE -

EMNESANMEERRETZE

We obtained an understanding of
management’s  processes and  controls
over credit risk management and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk factors.
This included the identification of which
receivables were impaired and estimation of
the impairment provisions. We determined
that we could rely on these controls for the
purposes of our audit.

ZMtHEREHRNERERRRER
B M IR HIHEST TR - WA E B
AT EEMMNEEMEMmEE R E =T
HTEREROEARR - ZEREMAZ
6l = 264 8RR SO E I8 85

MRESBEOEE - RMRAMEF TIEM
= AMKREZ S AP -

In addition, we selected samples to inquire
management for the details of their
evaluations and challenged the underlying
information referenced by management,
which included comparing with external
evidence obtained from our independent
research on public available information of
the customers, performing ageing analysis,
examining the historical transactions and
settlement records of the customers, sending
confirmations to the customers and testing
of the subsequent settlements.

AN BPIHEERERREAER AEERET
iR % B 4 5% 55 1 UK BR 5K AT [ U AT 1 &9
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8% - UK BR SRR P R R LA R HRR R
HBITRE o

Based on the above, we found that the
judgement applied by management on their
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables was consistent with the evidence
we obtained.

Rig B T RAORBBEIRE Y EKRR
E@T@HQ’I‘E(‘E&EWEFM%?JE’\J#Jlﬁﬁ + E 1
BHEEE 2 -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

BN BAM R S
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

94

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Pang Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

£ PR 25 B bR & W 3

=

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ+-_B=1+—BLEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR¥® T ARKETTT
Revenue W 2= 8,396,630 6,538,024
Cost of sales 5 & AR (6,300,498) (4,705,711)
Gross profit EZ 2,096,132 1,832,313
Other income Hfh g A 6 86,668 124,024
Other gains/(losses) — net H ek /(E18)F 58 7 48,810 (1,425)
Selling expenses H & 7 ¢ 8 (42,445) (43,398)
Administrative expenses TERF X 8 (441,692) (424,196)
Impairment losses on financial assets CREEREREE 3.1(b) (70,156) (48,526)
Operating profit R A 1,677,317 1,438,792
Finance income AE WA 10 28,995 66,255
Finance expenses BER X 10 (1,282,258) (880,422)
Finance costs — net Bl & KA F R 10 (1,253,263) (814,167)
Share of profit of investments accounted for using MUz EARKNEGHIEE
the equity method i 7 16 78,570 52,924
Profit before income tax Fr 8B AR R 502,624 677,549
Income tax expenses F8BiAx 11 (161,313) (123,741)
Profit for the year F R R 341,311 553,808
Other comprehensive income Hii4R & W&
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A EE T 7 X2 B a9 7H B
— Exchange differences on translation of foreign - BEIBINEEN
operations fEH =5 12,009 18,215
Total comprehensive income for the year, BRREFAGRESWRERE
net of tax 353,320 572,023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

£ PR B bR & W3

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ+-B=1+—BLEE

2020 2019
—EE2F —E-hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR TR ARETF T
Profit attributable to: R ALTEMAER :
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company - RNRAE LB R 223,095 398,153
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - KABARITEEEA 117,640 119,800
— Non-controlling interests - R = 576 35,855
341,311 553,808
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTATEMGERZELE
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company - ARBEBERKE 235,104 416,368
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - KABRITAFEAFA 117,640 119,800
— Non-controlling interests - JEERER 576 35,855
353,320 572,023
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AATEEBRBRREN
ordinary shareholders of the Company BN EREF
(expressed in RMB per share) (UBRARETRT)
— Basic and diluted - EXRREE 12 0.187 0.334

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive A OB R E A AR S UK 5 5K FE B AR A T

income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 2 —OfBIE

o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—H
2020 2019
—E_ZF —ZT-hF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 AR T ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB NMERE 17 4,081,849 3,177,451
Investment properties BEWEHE 18 23,960 24,927
Right-of-use assets FRERE 19 336,517 270,683
Receivables under service concession arrangements RIS KL L HE T HY
R W R 1A 20 5,235,494 5,026,423
Contract assets EHEE 5 10,959,833 6,191,854
Amounts due from customers for contract work EHNTREWREFRIE — 4,401
Intangible assets BmREE 21 12,888,550 11,445,273
Investments accounted for using the equity NEREARNRE
method 16 852,784 1,096,017
Financial asset at fair value through other LAFEFEBEZESHFA
comprehensive income Hiira Wamm e mEE 4,675 4,675
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k H bW RIE 23 422,564 43,999
Prepayments TE T RIE 23 1,168,930 1,364,449
Deferred income tax assets BIEMSMEE 32 701,437 514,623
36,676,593 29,164,775
Current assets REEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements FRIEEFFF QL ZH T H
& W R IE 20 65,877 51,892
Inventories T8 22 108,337 103,485
Amounts due from customers for contract work EHNTEEWREFFIB — 5,120
Contract assets ENEE 5 565,470 521,058
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H e FRIAE 23 7,837,887 7,126,742
Prepayments TERTRIE 23 175,461 234,934
Restricted cash ERHE 24 125,501 192,691
Cash and cash equivalents BHekBeEEY 25 1,697,688 2,468,435
10,576,221 10,704,357
Total assets wEE 47,252,814 39,869,132
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+t=—H=+—8H
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR¥ T ARETT
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders ERAREBRRREGES
of the Company
Share capital & A 26 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves H i #E 27 2,800,727 2,280,588
Retained earnings RB A 1,181,421 1,275,515
5,175,361 4,749,316
Perpetual capital instruments KABARITA 28 500,000 2,610,000
Non-controlling interests FE 15 R b 2 1,932,201 1,186,669
Total equity mER 7,607,562 8,545,985
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 35,776 39,010
Borrowings BN 29 17,865,921 15,199,525
Trade and other payables B 5 &EMEMNKE 30 5,906,360 3,292,499
Deferred income IR IE W = 31 709,768 701,720
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEMSTHEAE 32 1,277,470 1,168,983
Provision BE 33 497,236 359,123
26,292,531 20,760,860
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

aHEERERX

As at 31 December

R+t=—H=+—8H

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR TR ARETT

Current liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities EHEaE 5 88,151 106,676
Lease liabilities HEAE 13,258 11,600
Borrowings & & 29 9,675,894 6,419,405
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H A FE R IE 30 3,129,990 3,675,541
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT 1S B B & 32 445,428 349,065
13,352,721 10,562,287
Total liabilities HEE 39,645,252 31,323,147
Total equity and liabilities EzREEBHETE 47,252,814 39,869,132

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 96 to 227 were approved by the Board of

Directors of the Company on 31 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

A G EEE BRELARMM TR -

FEXRTEMHFBERERERZE=_—F=A4
S+—HEARAREBTGHE A THIA
TRERFE -

Director

B=%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
& OB BB

Attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company

ARRERRRRES
Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-
Share Other  Retained instruments controlling
capital  reserves  earnings Total XAEZX interests
BA  HittfEE REEAN Bit TARBA FERER

Total
equity
BER

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AR®Tn ARTrn ARETR ARBTR AR®TT AR%®Tn
(note 26)  (note 27) (note 28)
(Mat26)  (Mfa27) (M =E28)
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-Z-2F
—A—AWNEH 1,193,213 2,280,588 1,275,515 4,749,316 2,610,000 1,186,669 8,545,985
Total comprehensive income FRAREKELE
for the year
Profit for the year F R — — 223,095 223,095 117,640 576 341,311
Currency translation differences ERREED — 12,009 — 12,009 — — 12,009
— 12,009 223,095 235,104 117,640 576 353,320
Transactions with owners in BEBANEEFTA
their capacity as owners FRETHRS
Capital contribution by FiERERLE
non-controlling interests — 369,923 - 369,923 — 828,166 1,198,089
Acquisition of additional interests Ut BB ff B 22 A1 &)
in subsidiaries (note 15) BOMER (P FE15) - — - - - (56,000) (56,000)
Issuance of perpetual capital BIIKAEAARIA
instruments — - - — 500,000 — 500,000
Redemption of perpetual capital BEXAEARIA
instruments — — — — (2,610,000) —  (2,610,000)
Transfer to statutory reserve B EERHRE — 138,207  (138,207) = — — -
Dividends for the year ended HE-Z-hfF
31 December 2019 TZRA=t—-RIERE
15 - —  (178,982)  (178,982) - —  (178,982)
Distribution to holders of perpetual 2k F K AZ AT R
capital instruments BEA - - — —  (117,640) —  (117,640)

Distribution to non-controlling
interests

RSERELT:

— = — — — (27,210) (27,210)

= 508,130 (317,189) 190,941  (2,227,640) 744,956 (1,2

91,743)

Balance at 31 December 2020

R-Z-RF

TZA=ZT-ANER

1,193,213 2,800,727 1,181,421 5,175,361 500,000 1,932,201 7.6

07,562
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
& GBS BB %

Attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company
ARALERBREER

Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-
Share Other Retained instruments  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total KABR interests equity
BRA HEfEm  REBAF @it IARAAN FER#ER Eo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETn ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETn
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Msx26)  (MisE27) (B 728)
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZB-1%
—-B—AMNEH 1,193,213 2,197,015 1,166,594 4,556,822 1,200,000 1,177,450 6,934,272
Total comprehensive income FRAREKEAE
for the year
Profit for the year EREF — — 398153 398153 119,800 35855 553,808
Currency translation differences ERAEEE = 18,215 = 18,215 = = 18,215
— 18,215 398,153 416,368 119,800 35,855 572,023
Transactions with owners in HBEBANEERA
their capacity as owners FRETHRS
Partial disposal of a subsidiary B HERBA RN RE
without change of control i — (5,986) = (5,986) = 5,986 =
Capital contribution by FiERER A
non-controlling interests — — — — — 30,099 30,099
Acquisition of additional interests U BB B 22 A1 #Y
in subsidiaries (note 15) EoMER (M3E15) = (38,906) = (38,906) = (46,659) (85,565)
Issuance of perpetual capital BOXABERIEA
instruments — — — — 1,410,000 — 1,410,000
Transfer to statutory reserve BRETERHRE — 110,250 (110,250) — = — —
Dividends for the year ended BEZT-)\F
31 December 2018 TZRA=T-RLEEE
&2 — — (178,982) (178,982) — — (178,982)
Distribution to holders of perpetual ~ DR FXKAERTEHEA
capital instruments — — — — (119,800) — (119,800)
Distribution to non-controlling RISIE 24
interests — — — — — (16,062) (16,062)
— 65,358 (289,232) (223,874) 1,290,200 (26,636) 1,039,690
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-Z-h&
+-A=+-AMEeH 1,193,213 2,280,588 1,275,515 4,749,316 2,610,000 1,186,669 8,545,985

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

afftRETRER

Year ended 31 December
Z+-A=+—BLEE

2020 2019
—ECRF =T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR TR ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNHEERE
Cash used in operations LEFARE 34(a) (3,600,385) (3,028,682)
Income tax paid B S (142,811) (168,673)
Interest paid EARFE (1,396,773) (1,051,848)
Net cash outflow from operating activities KEEHRSREFE (5,139,969) (4,249,203)
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHHRER
Payments for property, plant and equipment, M - BELEE FAEER
right-of-use assets, land use rights and B T AR R H S
other intangible assets BENRK (518,651) (804,316)
Investments in a joint venture and associates BESENGIPSE RN Tiy\é (40,000) (380,000)
Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiaries Ik B P B 2 R I TR 3R — (150,000)
Refund of prepayments for acquisition of s B B B8 X B FE A R IB fyh\
subsidiaries — 118,248
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HEAEQNRAMBRE 375,200 —
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries, Wi B B B8 8 B A9 AT R
net of cash acquired NERENEHE S = (105,428)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HEK B AR TS IE — 15,249
Others — net Hih— F58 3,691 25,093
Net cash outflow from investing activities BEFEHRE ML FHE (179,760) (1,281,154)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

afRETRER

Year ended 31 December

E+ZA=+—-HLEE

2020 2019
g 33 —T-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR TR ARETF T
Cash flows from financing activities METBHNRERE
Proceeds from borrowings &R P15 BB 19,444,205 13,053,304
Repayments of borrowings BEER (13,222,037) (8,353,211)
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital BT KABAARTBEMEHE
instruments 500,000 1,410,000
Repayments of perpetual capital instruments BEXKAEATIA (2,610,000) —
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual MXABEARTEFHBALZAH
capital instruments 7k (159,640) (119,800)
Dividends paid BERRE (178,982) (178,982)
Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests m FE = Hx%ﬁi‘iﬁﬁ’]ﬂx =) (27,422) (3,622)
Capital injections by non-controlling interests FEIE R E R T 857,395 30,099
Payments for acquisition of additional interests U B BT B8 A ) El’ﬂ%ﬁ SN 2R HY
in subsidiaries 3k (36,962) (27,375)
Others — net Hh — 55 (17.427) (32,827)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEFHRERAFE 4,549,130 5,777,586
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERBALEBYUWORD),/
cash equivalents EFE (770,599) 247,229
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning MREFEFVNE2RE
of the financial year HEEED 2,468,435 2,214,352
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and RekReEEMER
cash equivalents (E18), W (148) 6,854
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREBEEREEEEY 1,697,688 2,468,435

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"”) on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the Company was
converted from a limited liability company into a joint stock limited
liability company with registered capital of RMB787,880,000. The
Company’s H shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May 2015 with the total share
capital subsequently increased to RMB1,193,213,000.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the development, design, construction, operation and maintenance
of municipal water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste
treatment facilities. The address of its registered office is Yunnan
Water 2089 Haiyuan North Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless
otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) measured at fair value.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

2.
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

depicted in note 4.

The Group is in a capital-intensive industry and primarily finance
its operation by long-term borrowings from financial institutions
or capital contribution from equity owners when the construction
projects are in early stage of their business cycles but sometimes
short-term borrowings are utilised. The Group recorded net current
liabilities of approximately RMB2,777 million as at 31 December
2020, which is mainly because the Group has utilised certain short-
term borrowings to tentatively finance its long-term assets under
construction. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital

commitment for construction projects of RMB12,540 million.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group.
The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's cash flow
forecast for not less than 12 months from the balance sheet date
which is prepared by management of the Group. The Directors
consider the Group will be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due for the foreseeable future after taking into account the
Group's available financial resources, its operating cash flow, the
continued availability of the Group’s existing banking facilities and
borrowings from an intermediate shareholder and its ability to raise
funds through issuance of bonds or notes in the market. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHTHEBEHE
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont‘d) 21 REEE(E)
(a) Amended standards adopted by the Group (a) FKEEEFRHBIAZE
T E R

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Material
EEGFERE R REBGTEAESTE (BTA) EERTER
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business
EEMEIREERNEIR (BFIA) XN ER
Conceptual Framework (Revised) Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
BESHESR (&HEET) KETVBREMIESR
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
BN GmMEERIEN - BEGTTERNFEIR KR AR E

EEUBHRELEETR (BFTA)

The adoption of the amended standards does not have FR 0 48 BT 1 2 Bl 5 B 78 2R
significant impact on the Financial Information. KW ETAERSE -

Annual Report 2020 4F E % YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k %18 & M5 B R A & 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R R B 5E

2.

108

adopted:

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

ER G ERNE395E - BB B MEEREA55
BEMBMEERETS - BB BHRELER
FOREBEMBMELERNE 1658 (BRIA)

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)

g5t 5% (BEET)

Annual Improvements

FEE

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 (Amendments)

BEMBREERNEI - BESTERFE 165K
EBGFEREITR (BFIA)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

BERGEERIEITH (BETA)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

EEMBmMEEREIFR (BETA)

HKFRS 17 (Amendments)

BEVBREEFE 17 (BFTA)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BEGHERE 19 (BRIX)

HKFRS 17

BB mE2ERIE 1795

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

ERRBESE (ZTTF)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BBV ELERFE 105 R
ERSFHERIFE285 (BFTA)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESHHREME(EF
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(b) The following new standards and amendments

to standards have been issued but are not

effective for the financial year beginning

1 January 2020 and have not been early

2.1 RBEEXE(EF)
(b) THEEHEMER=
E_FF—F—HH
BRI B B B I R
M USRI EIRA
B9 37 5T 2E B R & B 15
B

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!

FREERE —F_HBR

Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger?

KIEFT G aTHE 5| B5% A HF2

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle?
ERMBREENFERE(ZE-N\FE_ZS_ZFHEH)?
Narrow-scope amendments?

BREEAE F]2

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

BEMEEH — BT 0MNKA?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

S RER A R?

Amendments to HKFRS 173

BRI B HREERE17HROE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BEMNRBEI RS E S

Insurance contract?

RERE 43

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause?

ERREBESR(CE_ZF)[UBHRENI® : ERAH
EERERBERMNEEXNEPHERNDE ]

Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

KEERHBEARNEGE R CENEEHEITE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESFTHEMEE)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont‘d) 21 REEE(E)

(b) The following new standards and amendments (b) THEBEHMER=
to standards have been issued but are not E-FEF—H—HHF
effective for the financial year beginning 28 B9 51 B 4F B 15 K £
1 January 2020 and have not been early 4P IR ERA
adopted: (Cont’d) H9 FF &7 2E B & 2€ Rl 1%

?J (#&)

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. R-ZE-—F—F—H8&
ZHBESY FESMAE
e

2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. 2. RZEZZF—F—H%
ZHBES2 FESMAE
2 o

3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 3. RZTZ=F—HA—HB%
ZHRBESY FESMAE
2 o

4. Effective date to be determined. 4. EHRBERFE

The impact of new standards and amendments to standards REBIERT (4 B A A
that issued but not effective is still under assessment by the RAEMBFTET LR RIEFTH
Group. e .

22 GEANEREZETER
7 R A
2.2.1 Subsidiaries 22.1 BB 4 &

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for

business combinations by the Group is depicted in note 2.3.

B /B8 2 B 46 7 S B R R 4
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ERE) - EAKENZHE
BEBmMAERSETED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 75 SRR BT o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESTHHREME(E)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)
2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

22 BEANREEZSTER
W R B (&)
22.1 B /8 2 7 (4&)

110

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure

of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEF 7S 3R R BT o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESTHHREME(E)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 RMEARERERETER
(Cont’d) Wy R B (&)
2.2.4 Equity method 224 B Eit %

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy depicted in note
2.13.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 75 SRR BT o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHRBEHE)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 RMEARERERETER
(Cont’d) Wy R B (&)
2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests 225 B EREEZEE

112

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
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reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, FEEEEZRVERIHER
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised rH|fESEATE S - B|E
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss R LI #5 5e BT R E At 42 A Uk
where appropriate. HERNSHEETHEARIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Business combinations not under common control

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

ii. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

iii. equity interests issued by the Group

iv.  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

V. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Business combinations not under common control

(Cont’d)

The excess of the

consideration transferred;

ii. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,

and

iii. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the

acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is

recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or

loss.

114
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Separate financial statements

2.5

2.6

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional currency

and the Group’s presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

116

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or
are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis within
other gains or losses.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R 2 "] Annual Report 2020 4 [& i &

2.

TEEHRERGE (A

2.6 IERE(H)

(b)

(c)

XEREGHE
INERH LR 5 E HIE
RFE RN - BHEZ
EXHARBIEENE
BEERABRFRESRH
HEAMER WS REBEER—
MRIEBRRMER - MR EH
SEBRERBHDRAE
RFREH DAL E AR
BINRBIREFEN B
o BIREE R -

HERERERASEZEY
BRMEL WS RBRTIR
EHEEIEMEAKER
BMEKARES - FAAEM
BE 3 W ah & B IR IR F B A
TRattEmREMEREE K
mREMKRERERRNZ
5]

EEHA A
PIBENREEBERNRENE
BRI EBH(HESIER
ERERKEBNEE)NE
AR BARRTIZIA T TR
BREREINEE

() BEEABRERZIN
BERAENRLE
EaEEBBHHKD
ERBE

(i) BAHFBEAROKI
TIRYFBEZTHE
(BRIFZERA IR
ZHEREXRNRE
FENGENY &
ERT - Bl e
REXZBEBRE): &

(iiy  FAA E UL E LR R
HERONEMES
W AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

TEEHRERGE (A

2.6 IR E(H)

(c) Group companies (Cont’d)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,

as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

2.7
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Plants and buildings 20-50 years W ERETF 20-504F
Machinery 10-30 years 1 28 10-304F
Motor vehicles 6 years AE 6%
Electronic equipment and others 5-10 years BB REM 5-104F
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2.

118

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction, which
is stated at actual construction cost less any impairment loss.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when completed
and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.13).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained
earnings.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of investment properties to its residual value over

its estimated useful life. The estimated useful life is as follows:

Plants and buildings 30-50 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as depicted in note 2.13. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

Development expenditure

When the future economic benefits become apparent as
a project progresses into the development stage the costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are capitalised as
intangible assets when recognition criteria are fulfilled and tests
for impairment are performed annually. Other development
expenditures that do not meet those criteria are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as expenses are not recognised as assets in subsequent periods.
Capitalised development costs are transferred to technical
know-how when the assets are ready for use.

Operating concessions
The detailed accounting policy of operating concessions is
depicted in note 2.11.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets (Cont’d)
(d) Unfulfilled contract rights

Unfulfilled contract rights represent the fair value of unfulfilled
contracts in excess of the carrying value for unfulfilled
construction contracts acquired through business combination.

(e) Licenses
Licenses represent the fair value of the operating permits of
solid waste treatment plants and water supply facilities acquired
through business combination.

(f) Technical know-how and software
Acquired technical know-how and software are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire or through business
combination.

(g) Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Operating concessions 16-30 years
Unfulfilled contract rights 30 years
Licenses 5-54 years
Technical know-how and software 5-47 years

2.10 Land use rights
Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for
land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining
lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter.

Land use rights 40-50 years
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESHHREME(EF
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Service concession arrangements

21 BRBRBFEETH

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”). The service concession arrangements
consist of Build-Operate-Transfer (the “BOT"”) arrangements and
Transfer-Operate-Transfer (the “TOT”) arrangements. Under the BOT
arrangements, the Group carries out construction work of the facilities
of the sewage and reclaimed water treatment, water supply or solid
waste treatment for the Grantors and receives in return a right to
operate the facilities of service project concerned for a specified
period of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in accordance with
the pre-established conditions set by the Grantors, the service project
should be transferred to the Grantors with nil consideration at the
end of the operation period. A TOT arrangement is similar to a BOT
arrangement, except that the Group pays consideration for the right
to operate the facilities of the wastewater treatment, water supply
and solid waste treatment that has been built.

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities as Grantors will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the facilities, and retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the facilities at the
end of the Service Concession Period. Each of these service concession
arrangements is governed by a contract and, where applicable,
supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the
relevant governmental authority that set out, inter alia, performance
standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered
by the Group, and specific obligations levied on the Group to restore
the facilities to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the
Service Concession Period and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.
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2.

122

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor

(i)

Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model

A financial asset (receivables under a service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the Grantor for the construction
services rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor during the Service
Concession Period. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the Grantor contractually guarantees
to pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users of the public service and the specified or
determinable amounts. The financial asset (receivable
under a service concession arrangement) is accounted for
in accordance with the policy set out for financial assets
measured at amortised cost under note 2.14.

During the construction periods, the Group recognises a
contract asset (note 2.12) and accounts for the significant
financing component in the arrangement. When the
construction services are completed, the contract asset
would be classified and measured as receivables under a

service concession arrangement accordingly.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

(i)

(if)

Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model (Cont’d)

When the Group receives a payment during the
concession period, it will apportion such payment
between (i) a repayment of the financial asset (if any),
which will be used to reduce the carrying amount of
financial receivables on the consolidated balance sheet, (ii)
interest income, will be recognised as revenue in profit or
loss and (iii) revenue from operating service in the profit
or loss. Revenue from operating service is calculated
based on cost plus a profit margin.

Service concession arrangements under
intangible asset model

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses and service. The
intangible asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible assets”
in note 2.9 above, which is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the Service Concession Period.

Revenue relating to operating service are accounted for
in accordance with the policy for note 2.29 “revenue
recognition” below. Costs for operating services are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESTHHREME(E)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

QM BHETAEE R (H)
(a) RFABTFTHAE

(ifi)

Service concession arrangements under hybrid
mode/

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by
a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of
the consideration.

Therefore in this arrangement it is necessary to divide

(#4)

(i) EEEE TR
i & T
HAEEAEZEIR
HEFZRBE D BIFK
EMEENERE
E SEEEAA
BRI VB ERENQ
FEVIEHER -

ammz§m¢ %
#

the operator’s contract asset during the construction BEEMNAENEE
period into two components, a financial asset component SEBME S  ERIE
based on the guaranteed amount and an intangible asset {%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@@ﬂ%ﬁ%&

for the remainder. When the construction services are
completed, the two components of the contract asset
would be classified and measured as a financial asset and
an intangible asset accordingly.

BEE - BERY
TARE ARHNEEMN
79 18 48 X &P 2 5 AR FE
ReMBEERETE

EHRME -

(b) Construction and upgrade services (b) #EZERHRRHE

The fair value of the construction and upgrade service under BRe T THEERA
BARIBE D $TET5H<1$E+,%%!
BERAIRMNEGE <&
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based on prevailing FMEHRBLEERGEMZ
market rate applicable to similar construction services rendered Rz BEAREULE
PR Gt SR R 5 AR 5 1 8
TS B EREE -

the concession arrangement is calculated as the estimated total
construction cost plus a profit margin. The profit margins are

in similar location at date of agreement.

Revenue relating to construction and upgrade services are EERARREEBNE
accounted for in accordance with the policy in note 2.29. 2 AIEZH FE2. 298 05K 5
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESHHREME(EF
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

2N BRBBIFEE T (A)

(c) Contractual obligations to restore the
infrastructure to a specified level of
serviceability
The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as
a condition of its licences, that is (i) to maintain the sewage
and reclaimed water treatment and water distribution plants
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or (ii)
to restore the plants to a specified condition before they
are handed over to the Grantor at the end of the service
concession arrangements. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the sewage and reclaimed water treatment
and water distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out
for note 2.27 “provisions” below.

(d) Interest income
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises
the related revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised
when a customer pays consideration, or is contractually required
to pay consideration and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. For a single contract with
the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHERBEAE

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Cont’d) QNENEERENAEB(H)
An impairment of a contract asset is measured, presented and BEME214 AHEERER
disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset under note 2.14. BHEREELZeREETSE 2

Pl R AR EE o
The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract fiti 25 52 B T8 ER % AT W B B ELAS B
with a customer within contract assets if the Group expects to recover FEAMEEAZEENAN @ BlE
those costs. HEBXABRRBERNEE -
Generally, the Group receives advances from its customers which are —RmE  AEEREEFPKERZ
short-term in nature. The advances previously included in trade and ARBEEPUE - BEIFAES
other payables are reclassified to contract liabilities. Ko E (S FRIB B B R E T 5

REHETRE -

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets 213EERMEENRE
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are HEERAFEAFTFHNEELE
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, WEERNEEHE  mBAEFAR
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate —REBRE  WESHEHER
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment SHBEIEEEXERER -
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the AR R B E SR - A FHK
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is BREEETEREBERI T RE
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount B HEEZETRERR -
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher MEEBERAAEERDEBS
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For EaWElSEMEE - o g
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the EREEATEREEERNER®
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows REEMENRSSE - BT HR
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets B BEERRKBBINEMEE
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other FEEMAFN(RSELEMINE
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible BRI HENRERARELAELRS
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. H-ERENFEeREE(BER
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESHHREME(EF
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets QUABREREMMERMEE
2.14.1 Classification 21415958

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investment when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.142 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2.

128

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
2.14.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
2.14.3 Measurement (Cont’d)

(@)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)

2.14.3 Measurement (Cont’d)
(a) Debt instruments (Cont’d)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
2.14.3 Measurement (Cont’d)
(@) Debt instruments (Cont’d)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.

(b) Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments

is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)

2.14.3 Measurement (Cont’d)
(b) Equity instruments (Cont’d)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement
of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from

other changes in fair value.

2.14.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses (“ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for receivables under service concession arrangements, trade
receivables, amounts due from customers for contract work and
contract assets. Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESHHREME(E)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Offsetting financial instruments

2158 ST A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently have
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group have also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,
such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.16 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.17 Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note

2.14 for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade

receivables.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash

and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call

with financial institutions.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as “restricted
cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in

the cash flow statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21 Perpetual capital instruments
Perpetual capital instruments with no contractual obligation for the
Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holders are
classified as equity instruments. They are initially recorded at the
proceeds received within equity. Discretionary interest declared by the
Group to the holders of perpetual capital instrument is treated as
dividend.

2.22 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.23 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.25 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its
tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a better

prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special
tax deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts for such
allowances as tax credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax expense. A deferred
income tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are
carried forward as deferred income tax assets.

2.26 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees’ payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administrated funds managed by the PRC
government.

Defined benefit plan

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service
and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.26 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b)

Defined benefit plan (Cont’d)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised

immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.27 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management'’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of

time is recognised as interest expense.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and

the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that

they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHHEBEE)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.29 Revenue recognition 229 A FER

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. This

may be at a single point in time or over time.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

o when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

3 when the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

o when the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternate use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises
revenue at a single point in time at which the performance obligation
is satisfied for the sale of that good or service when control has been
passed.

If control of the product or service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by measuring the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.29 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(a) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised at the point in time when the control
of the product is transferred to the customer which generally
coincides with delivery and acceptance of the product sold.

(b) Rendering of construction and upgrade
services

Revenue from construction and upgrade services is recognised
over time by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based
on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage

of total estimated costs for each contract.

(c) Rendering of other services

Revenue from wastewater treatment, solid waste treatment and
other services is recognised over the period by measuring the

progress towards complete satisfaction of the service.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEESHHREME(E)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.30 Leases 2307 E

The Group leases land use rights on long-term contracts and offices
and warehouses on both short-term and long-term contracts.

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for
land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining
lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter.

Rental contracts for offices and warehouses are typically made for
fixed periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.30 Leases (Cont’d)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of

the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

3 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with

similar terms, security and conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHERBEAE
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.30 Leases (Cont’d) 230 E (&)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group: REFTESEHRNE  KEEH
. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the . EATBEB T » 15 & Bl &
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes MAZOCESHE=FT/E
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,; EAE R - WIEBFAEI
REMEEFSE=FRE R
BMERMHNES
. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest . FRHENE  BERAEE
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which FIEEHENEERR (&
does not have recent third party financing, and MUV EE=FTRE)ARE

BBAIE : R

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term, country, o  ETRHEARHEENSAE W
currency and security. HRR - BIR - BRI o

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease 7N 5 B 5K 3R 7] BB AR R fE Bhsk ) &

payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in A EEENREE - WA RBE

the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease HEAFNEEERB TS ATE

payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is BE - -ERBEEHIFNEXYHEE

reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. NREHNABRLEURE - HEA

ERBEAEEELTENNMG

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The HENRNAE EHEE KA 2 H

finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to EH D - MEXAREHANE

produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance BalBUGELSHEaER

of the liability for each period. BRAE E B EA R X -

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: FHREEERXNAGTE  UBIE

A&

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; . THEaENYHKRTES5E

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date e  RHBABBKZAELME
less any lease incentives received AIAERNFRERNEKEE

B
. any initial direct costs, and e  [AEMIFMEERT K
. restoration costs. o {BEMKK-
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.30 Leases (Cont’d)
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the

Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-

of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases

are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase

option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of

adopting the new leasing standard.

2.31 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.

2.32 Derivatives and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the

derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature

of the item being hedged.

The Group's derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R 2 "] Annual Report 2020 4 [& i &

2.

TEEHRERGE (A

230 & (&)

CREEE-RNEEANERSF
HIBE 7R M th MY 808 B A B AR
E-RMAKEABEEETERE
B AERREEEHAMBE
ENAERFHANE -

HEMEERENNRABERE
RBGZAERARAX - BHEE
EEHA12E A KA THEE (I
EEEREE)

RERE(REEERBEAD
HERAREB NI EREER
BRAN - RERKEHERES
BV BEEKRAE MABBEE
BERTE B - BN HEH AR R A
ERANE -—HEERRRFX
HEHEEEREEET AL G
BEABR  -NEMFHEEER
% AKEBAMERBEAR
BEEEMNSTEEEDEMAE -

231K E 9K

HARDBBRRNKRED KN K S
EARRNFRRREZ(WER)
HEHRREAEBMBRRERD
BfE -

TTETARHAPED
TETARTETAANIT L E
RIRATPENBRER HERE
BEMERELATFEEHFE -
D EES 2 EEIRN %
METARTHEERYMT
B mEEEAREHTA - AR
RERER ZEH -

AREBZTET AL A H
GETER - AR E PG ER
ZMETAZRAFEMNEZS -
5 BN R 2 AR SR I AT A At
Yz (BR) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.33 Earnings per share

TEEHBEGE(H)

233BREF

the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the

determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(i)

(i) Basic earnings per share (i) SREFXEF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: FRREARZF AT R 5t

e  KREERAEMEF
BT 8T BRI
ShZ (R RS P AN)

e BRUBMERFEANDH

7TEBRIMNEFH

B URFADET

ZRAR(TEEER
Bedn ) wo B B 5 & o

SREBEEF
TEERBERANE 256
ERARBEERERENK
HE - URBUTHEE :
BESBELAERSE
B &Efmﬁé
FRETIS B 18 %

\
I

E’J
ZIX

mhw%ﬁ

Gl
o)
3

e BREMMAELESE
BEAR  BIEE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

risk (including currency risk and fair value interest rate risk and cash

flow interest rate), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall

risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions being settled in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group entities.

The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises from the
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group's foreign operations is managed
primarily through financing activities denominated in
the relevant foreign currencies. The group entities are
exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies
other than their functional currencies, primarily with
respect to the US dollars (“US$"), Thai Baht (“THB"”) and
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional
Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit its exposure to
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring and minimizing

its net foreign currency position.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. The Group’s interest-bearing
bank borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents are stated at amortised cost and not revalued
on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and
expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as earned/

incurred.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk
(Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has floating rate
borrowings amounting to RMB10,357,901,000 (2019:
RMB7,721,060,000).
increase/decrease in the market interest rates by 100

If there would be a general

basis points, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit would have decreased/increased
by approximately RMB82,999,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB60,550,000). The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in market interest rates had occurred as
at the 31 December 2020 and 2019 and had applied
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk to those
financial instruments in existence at those dates. The
estimated 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s estimate of a reasonably possible change
in market interest rates over the period until the next
annual year end.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets is the
carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, amounts due from customers for contract work
and contract assets.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

3. BMXERER(£&)
31 ¥ RABEER (&)
(b) 1=/ /A
ERRREREELEETE
B AEEEYEESR
BENBAZERERAS
R4ES BERBLEE
Y - B 5 R E A KR
FR T 5 5T 40 1 22 B T 0 Ui
$IE - AN TRERESR
BRANBEMEEME -

XERERRAEEBEE
BoBREMELT

Basis for recognition of

Category Group definition of category expected credit loss provision
85l AEBEHEERWRE BRAAHCEEERENEE
Performing Financial assets for which credit risk has 12 months expected losses. Where the

not increased significantly since initial

recognition

E® B Y HERR LA SR (5 R A b I S FR R ey &
mAE

Underperforming Financial assets for which credit risk

has increased significantly since initial

recognition, but are not credit-impaired
bz B Y HERR LA SR 5 A A e B B E IS B R B

REERENEREE

Non-performing Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date
TR RBEIRHRESERENEREE

expected lifetime of an asset is less than
12 months, expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime

1218 A WFEHIEE - R TR FHE12E
RAZAMEE - REEREETERERFH

s

Lifetime expected losses

FHIEAEE

Lifetime expected losses

FHIEREE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(1)

(ii)

Cash deposits at banks and restricted cash

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of loss
on such assets.

Trade receivables

The Group assessed that the expected loss rate for trade
receivables from local governments and related parties
were low considering their good finance position and
credit history.

Apart from trade receivables due from local governments
and related parties, the Group has large number of
customers and there was no concentration of credit risk.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses (“ECL") prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables due from third parties.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables due from third
parties have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The ECL also

incorporate forward-looking information.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(if)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. MEERER(HE)

31 MBREREER(HE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b)) EHERE (&)
Trade receivables (Cont‘d) (i) B 5 JfE W 5K E
(&
As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowance provision R-ZE-_ZTF+_A
for the trade receivables due from third parties excluding =+—RH EkE=
local governments and related parties was determined 7 (T8 g ﬂt?ﬁﬂ(ﬁ‘
as follows. The expected credit losses below also REMA)INE SR
incorporated forward looking information. WHRIEBBEREIE
WMT - TXHTEHE
BEBEITESAEYT
BR o
As at 31 December 2020
R-ZZB-ZBF+=-A=+—H
Gross Loss
ECL rate carrying allowance
EHEE amount provision
518 = FRTE 458 BiEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR
Trade receivables & 5 FE WK IE
Related parties RaHsE 5 0.07% 2,395,236 1,594
Local governments #0757 BT 0.03% 1,072,050 280
Third parties’ aging B =FHIEMNERE
Up to 1 year 1ELA 2.94% 1,850,013 54,313
1 to 2 years 1824 4.63% 591,976 27,385
2 to 3 years 2E3F 9.13% 343,860 31,399
3 to 4 years 3F4AF 13.09% 124,963 16,358
Over 4 years 4F A F 56.20% 25,339 14,241
6,403,437 145,570

Annual Report 2020 4F E % YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k %18 & M5 B R A & 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

3.

154

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(ili) Other receivables

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with
other receivables due from local governments and related
parties is considered to be low, since they have a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. The Group has assessed that the ECL rate
for the amounts due from local governments and related
parties are immaterial under 12 months ECL method and
considered them to have low credit risk, and thus the

loss allowance is immaterial.

For other receivables other than those from local
governments and related parties, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past
experience.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(iii) Other receivables (Cont’d)

The Group considers the probability of default whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating
o external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse changes in

business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

o significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrowers, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers and changes in
the operating results of the borrowers.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ifi)

Other receivables (Cont’d)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using the probability of default approach to measure
expected credit losses. The probabilities of default
rates are estimated based on comparable companies
with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects
the probability weighted outcome and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forward-
looking credit risk information. As at 31 December 2020,
the probability of default applied ranged from 0.01%
to 1.41%, and the loss given default was estimated to
range from 48.02% to 68.84%. The movement of the
Group's provision for impairment of other receivables are
set out in Note 23(b).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iv)

Receivables under service concession
arrangements and contract assets

The Group has assessed the allowance for credit losses
for its receivables under service concession arrangements
and contract assets which were mainly attributable to
provision for construction and upgrade services and
operating of the concession facilities. As the customers
are primarily local governments and PRC state-owned
entities, the Directors considers the credit risk is low. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using the probability of default approach to measure
expected credit losses. The probabilities of default
rates are estimated based on comparable companies
with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects
the probability weighted outcome and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forward-
looking credit risk information. As at 31 December 2020,
the probability of default applied ranged from 0.01%
to 0.10%, and the loss given default was estimated
to range from 48.02% to 68.84%. There has been
no significant increase in credit risk in the Group's
receivables under service concession arrangements with
gross amount of RMB5,304,961,000 at 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB5,078,315,000) and contract assets of
gross amount of RMB11,531,063,000 at 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB6,712,912,000), since their initial
recognition.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities
of the Group and aggregated by Group financial department.
Group financial department monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient
cash and cash equivalents to meet operational needs while
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any
of its borrowing facilities.

The Group’s financial department monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally generated
cash flows from operations, borrowings and perpetual capital
instruments from financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEF 7S 3R R BT o

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. MERERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 MERBREZR (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (c) “EELREE(E)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial TROMAEENETES
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the EhBE - L IRBREEN T
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual HAER - BBEEHESRN
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the BB & T &R BA R #E AT
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest e RAMBEBENSEAS
payments computed using contractual rates, or, if floating, HARBBRFALRE - BFER
based on current rates. B & & A & (38w 7= )% B A

= - A4 EHE ) 3 H 4y
FBMAH -

Carrying

Within Between Between Over amount
1year 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years Total liabilities
150 A 122F 1255 SENE it ARRAEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR ARETT ARET:

Closing balance at 31 December 2020 R=-F=FF+-F=+-H

WA G
Financial liabilities SRERE
Borrowings EE 10,611,205 6,865,861 6,448,561 6,405,450 30,331,077 27,541,815
Trade and other payables (*) BAREBERFEY 2,820,665 5,818,384 113,000 38,400 8,790,449 8,727,025
Lease liabilities %ﬁ E&E 15,100 11,655 18,218 44,773 89,746 49,034

13,446,970 12,695,900 6,579,779 6,488,623 39,211,272 36,317,874

Closing balance at 31 December 2019 R=Z-A&+-B=+-A

WKL

Financial liabilities tRER
Borrowings EE 7,470,505 7,579,710 6,128,832 5200439 26,379,486 21,618,930
Trade and other payables (¥) BAREMERFA) 3424554 3,085,124 349,777 4970 6864425 6,717,053
Lease liabilities REEE 13,152 10,667 19,023 50,138 92,980 50,610

10,908,211 10,675,501 6,497,632 5255547 33,336,891 28,386,593
The Group also provides guarantees to borrowings of a joint KEBNAELE RN REHE
venture and an associate, which will have contractual cash ANEMERIRMER - AET
flows only if a joint venture and an associate default the BEATREE N AR
repayment (Note 37())). REATHEEEERANRS

w2 (B EE37()) °

@ Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable. a TREERNEIRAMER

A BER -
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3.

160

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d) 3.

3.2 Capital management

B E B ()

3.2 EXER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, sell assets to reduce debt or raise funding through
capital markets as necessary.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “total equity” as
shown in the consolidated financial statements plus net borrowings.

AEENWEAREENE N ARRE
REBEAFERLE  UABRR
R E e A E A A a5 AR A 12
TS AR RENEARR
BURDEAKA -

BREXFEEALEE A5H
AEEERHBIRN TERERORE S
BOARRREEAR HEEE
IR EBIEREATISE

Ae(WBE) -

AEEREEERBL TGRS
Koo R RBFEBH R ABE AR
HE - FERRERER(BES
HEEBBERAMRNATE R IEAD
HEKDBRRE MRS FEDF
H-BREXRAHMBREAT
B AR NEFOFRETE -

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—AH
2020 2019
—E_F2F —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARETT
Total borrowings (note 29) e g (M5E29) 27,541,815 21,618,930
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 25) B Re RIREFEY (MEE25) (1,697,688) (2,468,435)
Net borrowings B FEE 25,844,127 19,150,495
Total equity 48R 7 7,607,562 8,545,985
Total capital EARBEE 33,451,689 27,696,480
Gearing ratio BEAMGBL X 77% 69 %

The increase in the gearing ratio was resulted primarily from the
increase of borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3.
3.3 Financial instruments by category

& G I R M

B E B ()

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%\
it

33 REFEINEMITA

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2020 2019
—E-FF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AREEF T
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REENATTENEREE
— Trade and other receivables - B 5 Kk H 4 EKRE 8,260,451 7,170,741
— Receivables under service concession -RBFTEELRHETH
arrangements JE W R TE 5,301,371 5,078,315
— Cash and cash equivalents -RekReEEY 1,697,688 2,468,435
— Restricted cash - ZRHIRE 125,501 192,691
- Amounts due from customers for -EAEHNITRERERRIE
contract works — 9,521
15,385,011 14,919,703
Financial assets at fair value EATEAENEMEE
— Financial asset at fair value through -AAFEFHEBEHESHFTA
other comprehensive income HimeWamemEE 4,675 4,675
15,389,686 14,924,378
Financial liabilities EtWMAas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKNATENSRAE
— Borrowings - fER 27,541,815 21,618,930
— Trade and other payables (*) - B 5 & H b JE A FRIB(*) 8,727,025 6,717,053
— Lease liabilities -HE&BE 49,034 50,610
36,317,874 28,386,593

* Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable.

* TBIEEA 8 TR & H i fE

BiIA o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. UBRAKRERE)
3.4 Fair value estimation 3.4 AFEME

The Group's financial instruments recognised in the consolidated AEEREHEEBBRRNER

balance sheet are mainly receivables and financial liabilities carried NEr T A E SRR

at amortised cost. The fair values of these financial instruments ENERFBEERSHEE %E

approximate their carrying amounts. PRMIANATEEHLREEM

=,

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by levels of the HATESENS R T A TR

following fair value measurement hierarchy: TAFENEELETHRE

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets . HREESEEEETREM
or liabilities (level 1). SHHRE(REAR)(F—

&) e

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are o MR —RFTBRIERREI -
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as ZBENABENAEER(E
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). EAER) SEECEIRA

EBR))BABER(E_R) -

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable . WIEKIE AT R TS BB
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). HHEESABROR ASE
(MR R A BER) (5
=& -
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4., T EEH{HE R M E
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements used in preparing these financial statements are B E B IS SRR ST A (E 5T K HI B
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including DREEAFARBEEEMAEZ(BIERE
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the BAEBIUAREHELNREBARE
circumstances. RO TEER) /B H I = 1T RE A o
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The AREBeGgAKREL BT RERE - BRIE
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related TE - AHmEENE T HT & EE
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk BEAERERMAER o Re e E Y T B
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and HEENEERBENEEEBEEEEKX
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below. FHEOGET REHEBMA T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Service concession arrangements under financial
asset model

When the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade services
by a financial asset, significant judgement is exercised in determining
the fair values of the financial asset at initial recognition. Cash flow
forecast, effective interest rate and other factors are used in the
valuation model. Any changes in the expected cash flows, such as
forecasted unit price of service fee, operating costs and profit margins
of the operating services, will result in change in the carrying value of

the financial asset and the revenue recognised in concession period.

According to the service concession arrangements signed with the
Grantors, the unit price of service fee would be periodically adjusted
to compensate operating cost increase, including labour costs,
material costs, taxation, through a pricing mechanism which is still
subject to regulation by local government authorities. Judgement is
required in assessing whether increase in costs can be compensated
through unit price adjustment and the timing. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service
concession arrangements, the extent of development of the project

and status of negotiation with the government authorities.

Impairment provision of trade receivables

The Group records impairment provision of trade receivables based on
an assessment made by management on the ECL of trade receivables.
The evaluations focused on the customers’ settlement history and
current ability to pay, and took into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customers operated. Provisions are made where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Impairment assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates. The Group would revisit and evaluate those assumptions
related with ECL model periodically.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

164

(c)

(d)

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Thailand and Indonesia. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the year in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of

their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date
or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
of goodwill has been determined based on fair value less costs to
disposal calculations, taking into account latest market information
and past experience. These calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating decision-
maker of the Group. Management has determined the operating segments
based on reports reviewed by the executive directors of the Company for

the purpose of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business from product
and service perspective. The Group is organised into five business segments
as below:

(@)  Wastewater treatment;

(b)  Water supply;

(c)  Construction and sales of equipment;

(d)  Solid waste treatment;

(e)  Others, including operation and maintenance services and other
businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of revenue and gross profit
of each operating segment.

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company with
respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Unallocated assets mainly represented cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, certain prepayments and certain receivables of the group entities
engaging in multiple business segments. Management considered that it is

impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different segments.

Unallocated liabilities mainly represented certain borrowings, certain payables
and deferred income of the group entities engaging in multiple business
segments. Management considered that it is impracticable or not meaningful

in allocating to different segments.
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5.

166

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd) 5. 7HMER (&)

() Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i BE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—H
December 2020 are as follows: $¢F§ VAHMREREAZ
Year ended 31 December 2020: BE-_E-_ZEHX+-A=+—H

LFEE:
Construction
Wastewater Water and sales of  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
BREE ftk  REHE  ERRE it 2B b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETn  ARETn ARETn ARETr ARETr ARETR ARET:
Gross segment revenue PPN EEE 5,286,533 975588 1,912,808 1,346,698 166,699 — 9,688,326
Inter-segment revenue 7 BEkE - —  (1.291,6%) - - —  (1,291,69)
Revenue from external customers RENPEPHMA 5,286,533 975,588 621,112 1,346,698 166,699 — 839,630
Revenue from contracts with HBEPANZMA
customers
- Recognised at a point in time - RE-BERER - 683,764 324,143 - - — 1,007,907
- Recognised at over time - RE-BRER 4,695,819 241,824 296,969 1,300,224 166,699 — 6,701,535
Revenue from other sources B AR
- Finance income - BERA 590,714 50,000 — 46,474 — — 687,188
Gross profit e 1,314,752 270,890 344,473 110,239 55,778 - 2,096,132
Other income EflA 86,668
Other gains — net EthEsE 48,810
Selling expenses HERX (42,445)
Administrative expenses TBRAX (441,692)
Impairment losses on financial assets £ BEAEFEFE (70,156)
Finance costs — net BERAZE (1,253,263)
Share of profit/(loss) of investments  JIEZEARAE
accounted for using the equity RARRN/(BR)
method — net 8 29,699 8,918 15,299 50,231 3,499 (29,076) 78,570
Profit before income tax BT A 502,624
Income tax expenses B (161,313)
Profit for the year FER G 341,311
Depreciation and amortisation NEAEH (152,699)  (222,233) (13,052) (175,052 (15,320) (12521)  (590,877)
Segment assets AHEE 21,570,460 8,254,206 6,788,458 9,076,813 986,914 575963 47,252,814
Segment assets include: AHEERSE
Investments accounted for using the ~ LAEZ A ABEIRE
equity method 265,724 55,507 60,660 192,462 38,033 240,398 852,784
Segment liabilities PHEE 10,110,711 1,364,570 4,327,386 3,203,200 777,924 19,861,461 39,645,252
Additions to non-current assets FRBEEMTE
(other than financial instruments ($BIARER
and deferred income tax assets) FAEHAERD) 5,295,921 731,037 333,046 1,292,150 21,306 16,066 7,689,526
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B HMBHRERNE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. 7HMER(HF)
(i) Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H
December 2020 are as follows: (Cont’d) IEFENDIEERERTHN
T (E
Year ended 31 December 2019:
BE-Z-h&F+=-A=+—H
ILEE:
Construction
Wastewater Water  and salesof  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
BKEE ok HHE EERE i AAR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR ARET:R
Gross segment revenue PHkEEE 2,978,368 1,230,737 1,618,895 1,514,561 99,791 — 7,442,352
Inter-segment revenue 2 BEkE = = (904,328) = = = (904,328)
Revenue from external customers KENBEPRBA 2,978,368 1,230,737 714,567 1,514,561 99,791 — 6,538,024
Revenue from contracts with BEFENZHA
customers
- Recognised at a point in time - RE-BH®RR = 623,028 407,965 = = — 1,030,993
- Recognised at over time - RE-BBER 2,564,606 556,004 306,602 1,505,231 99,791 — 5,032,234
Revenue from other sources M AKE
- Finance income S -UON 413,762 51,705 — 9,330 — — 474,797
Gross profit ES | 946,576 236,761 337,764 266,203 45,009 — 1,832,313
Other income HHBA 124,024
Other losses — net EhERFE (1,425)
Selling expenses BERY (43,398)
Administrative expenses TBRY (424,196)
Impairment losses on financial assets & BEEFEFR (48,526)
Finance costs — net RENLER (814,167)
Share of profitf(loss) of investments — WIEZ & ABRAVE(S
accounted for using the equity RE&H/(B8)
method — net 38 30,304 5223 10,644 24,542 — (17,789) 52,924
Profit before income tax AR 677,549
Income tax expenses FERRX (123,741)
Profit for the year EREH 553,808
Depreciation and amortisation NERBH (131,155) (171,761) (16,804) (170,718) (14,724) (15,430) (520,592)
Segment assets PHEE 15,619,480 1,271,522 5,508,035 7,348,612 986,814 3128669 39,869,132
Seqment assets include: APEERSE
Investments accounted for using the ~ AEZE NGB 2
equity method 236,025 46,590 45,361 464,034 34,534 269,473 1,096,017
Segment liabilities AR 5,983,320 1,178,220 2,230,171 2,005,710 1,138,799 18,786,927 31,323,147
Additions to non-current assets ERBDEENRE
(other than financial instruments ($BIAREL
and deferred income tax assets) FrEREERI) 2,423,830 489,061 398,021 1,846,925 70,697 1,559 5,230,093
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. DEER (&)

(i) Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the iy HHMBEERBBRUERFAEHS
financial statements. The table of segment assets/liabilities by region is BHERPAE - TRED IR
as follows: ErmoHEEAE

As at 31 December
R+t=—HA=+—8H
2020 2019
ZEZRE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREFT
Segment assets PHEE
— Mainland China — K RE 45,097,231 35,102,965
— Thailand - 548,210 620,371
— Indonesia - HfE 913,764 861,630
- Hong Kong - FEAES 109,881 142,481
- Singapore - F N 7,765 13,016
Total segment assets DEHEEHRTE 46,676,851 36,740,463
— Unallocated - KHE 575,963 3,128,669
Total assets BEE 47,252,814 39,869,132
Segment liabilities DEEE
— Mainland China - REREE 19,146,912 11,894,996
— Thailand - ZFH 142,730 132,837
— Indonesia - HfE 450,828 465,420
- Hong Kong - FEEFE 19,670 19,901
— Singapore - Fn 23,651 23,066
Total segment liabilities HEB A B 19,783,791 12,536,220
— Unallocated - RHOE 19,861,461 18,786,927
Total liabilities wEaE 39,645,252 31,323,147
Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into at terms and DEEEERRZ S NIRE BT
conditions agreed upon by respective parties. Eliminations comprise IR R IEEETT - BB ED
inter-segment trade and non-trade balances. Pricing policy for inter- HEESNIIEE S &R o »EHE
segment transactions is determined by reference to market price. TENTEEBHRERLRREMEEE
F o
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(iii)

The revenue of group entities from external customers broken down
by location of the goods or services are delivered to is shown in the

5.

B 0 15

2 EER (F)
o O 6 1 R S o
H 321 8 R A 0 0 36 05

(iii)

7= B 5

table below. FE Y Tk
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+-HLEFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR T
Mainland China A K R 7,982,874 6,161,315
Indonesia Hfe 356,607 274,996
Thailand S 55,239 99,803
Hong Kong FEES 1,910 1,910
8,396,630 6,538,024

Breakdown of the revenue from all services and sales of goods is as

(iv)

BE2HREREEEMELNK

follows: w2 BAAE S T
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—BA=+—BLEE
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Operating services BERY 1,825,725 1,800,114
Construction services HBERY 5,095,906 3,493,855
Finance income B E WA 687,188 474,797
Engineering-Procurement-Construction REF— KB — T
("EPC") and sales of equipment (TEPCl) KRB E 621,112 669,467
Others Hifb 166,699 99,791
8,396,630 6,538,024
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f 75 SRR BT o

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(v)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related

to contracts with customers:

D RRE R (&)

() EERFIVANEMZIAERS
{35
AREBERRATRRSI L
AWMz EERAM

As at 31 As at 31
December December
2020 2019
R-B-ZEF RZT—NF
+=H=+-—H +_ﬂ:+ H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®E T AR T T
Contract assets — Non-current BHEE —FRD
— Related to wastewater 85 KEE R A
treatment services 8,730,148 4,853,538
— Related to construction services - HEERBEH 908,973 791,226
— Related to solid waste - HEEEERYHE M
treatment services 746,511 —
— Related to water supply services - HEMHKRE AR 579,961 547,090
Less: provision for impairment B R ERE (5,760) —
10,959,833 6,191,854
Contract assets — Current ABHEE—RE
— Related to wastewater - EEKEEREE B
treatment services 285,711 255,588
— Related to construction services - HEERSEE M 262,026 253,452
— Related to water supply services - BHEKRBEE R 17,733 12,018
565,470 521,058
11,525,303 6,712,912
Contract liabilities — Current AHBEE— R
— Related to construction services - HEEREER 53,138 70,205
— Related to water supply services - HEHEKRE A H 28,551 26,780
— Related to solid waste - HEBEREEREEB
treatment services 6,462 9,691
88,151 106,676
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d)

(vi)  Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group is as follow:

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

5. DHEER (&)
(vi) BRI A B B B 10%8)
BERADT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—-BLFE

2020 2019
—s-%8% —T-Af
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

YCIH (note a) = 1% 5 E (i 5Fa)

423,025 684,494

(@  YCIH represents Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding
Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of
the Group. The detailed information of transactions with YCIH
is depicted in note 37(f).

OTHER INCOME

(@) EERREEEAREENE
BAOEHERRREERE
BERARMEMBLATE -
HEFRREERZXZNHT
AR FIAR M FE37() ©

6. HMWA

Year ended 31 December
BE+-ZB=+—BLEE

2020 2019
—g-85 -T-n%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETTT

Government grants XA #7 B 41,938 88,435
Value-added tax refunds EEB R 16,355 23,460
Miscellaneous income HIE U A 28,375 12,129

86,668 124,024
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7. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET

7. Httzs (B1E)FHE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-ZB=+—-BLtEE

2020 2019
—E_FF —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKETT
Net gain on disposal of investment in HEALERAREEENKER

a joint venture (note 16) FEE(MEEE16) 42,397 —
Net fair value losses on financial assets AT EFEBHEESHTA

at fair value through profit or loss BatemEEL A TE

FEE (466) (9,985)
Others Hfb 6,879 8,560
48,810 (1,425)
8. EXPENSES BY NATURE 8. BMEBETHEX
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—-HLEE
2020 2019
g g 33 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Employee benefit expenses (note 9) & 818 7 B = (MF529) 588,882 605,333
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB RFEENE (MF17)

(note 17) 191,652 177,369
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 19) ERAEEENE(ME19) 24,430 19,777
Depreciation of investment properties (note 18) ‘A ESE (HE18) 845 852
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 21) EREEREE(MHE21) 373,950 322,594
Legal and professional fee EERBEEEA 34,589 28,118
Auditor’s remuneration % BX B % B 7,450 7,450
- Audit services - FiR 7,250 7,250
— Non-audit services - FEBEHRB 200 200
Electricity, raw materials consumptions and other KERBEHE N BEMEERER

costs for operating services H A pR AR 639,689 526,466
Costs of construction services 3 PR 7 AR AR 4,524,020 3,065,263
Costs of EPC and sales of equipment EPC % $5 & &R B B A 247,449 284,080
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 9.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

EERANHAX —BEES
M <

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t-HLFE

2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Wages and salaries ITERF® 462,065 447,129
Pension costs of defined contribution plans TEREE FGET B B R IR & B AR 10,710 56,193

Housing funds, medical insurances and other FTEAES  BERBER
social insurances Htt 2 REB 58,520 58,062
Other welfare and allowance H b 2 AL R A8 T 57,587 43,949
588,882 605,333

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include two (2019: two) directors, whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis shown in note 39. The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2019: three) individuals during the year are as

() EEEEHEAL
AEERAEENRAERSHTA
+AEME(ZE—AE  WA)
ZF 0 HE RN EI9FTA
DT - RAFERMBT=H(ZZF

follows: —NF  ZRB) A ATEMOMEM
TATR :
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=1+—-HLEFE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EAXHE - FHEER
other benefits in kind E 4t B W18 7 2,594 3,739
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d)
The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group fell
within the following bands:

9. EERFFEX —BRES
<= (&)

() TEBEFHAL(H)

FEEZSEHRTALTOBEN T
AT #EE :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-BLEE

2020 2019
—E_FH —ZT—NF
Emolument bands B & i &
RMB445,000 to RMB889,000 (equivalent AR #445,0007T &
to HKD500,000 to HKD1,000,000) A R #889,0007T
(FE & 1K 500,000 TE
1,000,0007% 7T.) 2 —
RMB889,000 to RMB1,334,000 (equivalent A R #889,000T &
to HKD 1,000,000 to HKD1,500,000) AR %1,334,0007T
(#8%#1,000,000/8 L&
1,500,000/ 7T.) 1 2

RMB1,334,000 to RMB1,779,000 (equivalent A R #1,334,0007T &
to HKD1,500,000 to HKD2,000,000) AR #1,779,0007C
(F8Z:71,500,00058 7T &
2,000,000 7T )

10. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

10. MEWARRMX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARKETT
Finance income mME KA
— Net exchange gains on financing activities - MEEBOE LW RFE
(note a) (Pif5Za) 15,170 40,658
— Interest income - FEWA 13,825 25,597
28,995 66,255
Finance expenses AERX
— Borrowing costs LT %N (1,477,909) (1,063,193)
Less: amounts capitalised on W AEREENERE
qualifying assets (note b) & 78 (i 5Eb) 204,006 191,435
(1,273,903) (871,758)
— Unwinding of provision (note 33) - FRBR BB (P FE33) (8,355) (8,664)
(1,282,258) (880,422)
Finance costs — net Bh & KR R (1,253,263) (814,167)

174 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R 2 "] Annual Report 2020 4 [& i &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

10. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES (Cont‘d) 10. REWARBEX (&)

(@ Amounts mainly represented the exchange gains or losses of () ZAEXZEBEUFDNREEE
translating cash and cash equivalents and borrowings denominated in ATENRERBEEEYRER
Non-functional currencies. RPE KB o

(b)  Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of by #HEZZT-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H
5.74% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 5.35%). IEFE - BRRARTIRS.74% (=

Z—LF :5.35%) B INEEFH T
KT INEARE -

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 1. FIEFHBEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-BHLEE

2020 2019
—E-EH —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

Current income tax BN ERFT 15 B¢
— Corporate income tax - EFTEN 239,640 203,490
Deferred income tax EEFTEH
— Increase in deferred income tax assets - BEMEREE
(note 32) AN (HERE32) (263,045) (200,643)
— Increase in deferred income tax liabilities - BEMEHRAE
(note 32) 32 hn (B 5E32) 184,718 120,894
(78,327) (79,749)
161,313 123,741
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

176

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

PRC corporate income tax

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operating in the western
region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15%, provided their revenues generated from main
operating activities accounted for more than 70% of their total
revenues of the period.

Certain subsidiaries operating wastewater and solid waste treatment
projects in Mainland China are eligible for a tax holiday of three-year
full exemption followed by three-year half exemption of corporate
income tax commencing from their first year generating operating

revenue.

Except for preferential treatments available to certain subsidiaries as
mentioned above, other subsidiaries within the Group in Mainland
China are subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of
25% (2019: 25%).

Thailand corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Thailand is
eligible for an eight-year tax holiday of full exemption from July 2013
to June 2020 and subject to corporate income tax at the statutory
rate of 20% from July 2020.

Hong Kong profits tax
The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group did
not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: same).

Indonesia corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Indonesia is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 22% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: same).
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

1. REBBEX(F

h B 4 3¢ FF 18 Bt
ERBEAREARLREEETT
EWMETHE QA ZFX15%H
BECEMERRE  JIRREH
FTREEBERBWAAEINHE Y
Y st #RREY70% A L -

FE A BK BE AR 05 7K % (B R 5 18
EENETHBRARBELAKSE
WEEFREAZAE=F2HHAL
SER=FLEMBIVRELNETE

BEXFETHEARDATEZSR
BEFBI  AKERTEKE
B E At B B R R R HROE E R
25% (=T — N : 25%) Bt
EMRBH -

RELTCERSH
ERELEEFEEREEB OB
RAIB T —=FtLtAE-_T =
TFEANARUZENFEEZEH
H-BZ_TFELARBRRERE
FHE20% WA EMBH -

EBFNEH

HE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—8H
HFEE ERNESANERBR
£16.5% (ZZE—LF 116.5%) °

HERAEERBEE_T_TF
TTA=+T-HUEFEYEESR
RELRRBGN - ML\
EENEHBEHE(ZE—NF - B
R) e

HEtEmMEHR
HE-_T-_TF+=-RA=+—H
IEFE GHELEEEERIEE
BRI E QB BIE2%H % E 5
EHMNEERBR(ZT—NEF -
MHE) -
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B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d) M. EBRAX (&
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical AEBBRASHAVEFNOREBESRIRE
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to AEANEREEA IS
profit of the group entities as follows: EMENERSE  REBOAT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2020 2019
—EZEHE —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Profit before income tax P 15 %6 A& A 502,624 677,549
Less: Share of profits of investments W AEREARA
accounted for using the equity method FEAE R & & F (78,570) (52,924)
424,054 624,625
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits EEBARGEF EA®
in the respective companies HMRAENTIE 104,131 85,691
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose ~ A TS M AR AIELT
and tax losses not recognised as deferred FEMEENBBERENTZE
income tax assets 57,182 38,050
Income tax expenses Fri5 % A & 161,313 123,741
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards WARBZHBEEMER ZIRELERSEH
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through EEERRABUBGHEAEBRRK
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2020, the Group ERMBHER2BR - RT_TF
did not recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB43,809,000 (2019: TZA=+—H  XAEBULEHRATLEE
RMB19,308,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to RMB208,518,000 HEAREBRHBMANTEBEAR
(2019: RMB92,991,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable #208,518,000L (=T —NF : AR
income, which will expire by 2025. 92,991,0007T) HERIELE 5T & E A

R #43,809,000t(ZE—NF : AR
#19,308,000T) r BEEH R T - A
FRTEEDE -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

(a) Basic
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares issued during the year ended 31
December 2020.

BRER

(a) EF
BREXRBIIZAR AR LS
EEEFNBUBEE=-Z
+- A=+ BLFEEETHN
LA MEEHETE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—BLEFE

2020 2019
e —ZET-hF
Profit attributable to the ordinary N B AR AR SR FE 44 5 A
shareholders of the Company (AR®ETIT)
(RMB'000) 223,095 398,153
Weighted average number of ordinary BEBITHN LR ME
shares in issue (thousands) EHE(TR) 1,193,213 1,193,213
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) SREXRZEF (FRARET) 0.187 0.334

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as
there were no potential diluted ordinary shares outstanding as at 31
December 2020 (2019: same).

13. DIVIDENDS 13.

At the board of directors meeting held on 31 March 2021, the directors of
the Company proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2020 of RMBO0.06 per ordinary share amounting to approximately
RMB71,593,000 (2019: RMBO0.15 per ordinary share amounting to
approximately RMB178,982,000) out of retained earnings of the Company.
These proposed dividends have not been reflected as dividends payable in
these consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 but will be reflected as dividends distribution for the year ending 31
December 2021.

The 2019 dividends were paid in July 2020.
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(b) #%
BHREBEE-_ZT-_ZTF+= A
=+ —AWEHITEINE LR
BEAER HERESRMNAES
BREXRAFER(ZZE—NF :

A) -
Hﬁ 1%\
m:%:—ﬁ:ﬂ:+—aﬁﬁm§$
EEHL ANTEFRHARE_T
e H +— B L4 R A R 5

REFGRIL AR ARYE06TT c./\,iﬁ
AR #71,593,0007C (=& — AL 4F ¢
B E B ARBEOIST - A /\AW\E’%
178,982,0007T) B A~ 2 B4R B & F| 1 #
- ZERERETERNBE_T_-F
F+_A=+—BLLFENAHMBR
RPRBAEMBKRE  BERBE=T
T F+-A=t+—RBLEFEERMRAR
BHIK °

o
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Wuxi Zhongfa Water Investment Co., Ltd.
BEHPEKBREBRAA

Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited
ERKB(ER)RODERRA

PJT Technology Co., Ltd

Wastewater treatment,
the PRC*
EKERE - Rl

Investment in
wastewater treatment
and water supply,
Hong Kong
BEFKEERMEK -
& E

Solid waste treatment,
Thailand

ERERE  &KEH
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RMB134,000,000
AR
134,000,0007T

HKD1,735,147,000
1,735,147,0005% 7T

THB740,000,000
740,000,000%= &k

14. SUBSIDIARIES 14. ff & 2 A
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020, all UWTTE-_Z-_FEF+_A=+—H=F
of which are private limited liability companies: EWBRAREE  HHRFETERA
Al

Ownership

interests held

Principal by the non-

activities and controlling

place of Issued and Ownership interests (%)

incorporation and fully paid-up interests held FERERENL

operation capital by the Group (%) H#&HEB 2 (%)

Name (note a) TEEE I BEETK KEEER (note ¢)

ELGED) REENY BEHERAK BEE D (%) (Fft 7Ec)

Dali Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd. Wastewater RMB165,051,000 45 (2019: 45) 55 (2019: 55)
("Dali Water”) treatment and AREE (noteb) (ZZ—N% :55)

REKBEXFKREAR AR (TREKBE]) water supply, the PRC* 165,051,0007T  (ZZ — N4 : 45)

AKEEIE J K - A E* (Mt 5Eb)

Yunnan Yun Shui Construction & Environmental RMB913,405,000 61(2019: 100) 39 (2019: —)
Engineering Co., Ltd protection equipment AR (noted) (ZT—N%F :-)
("Yun Shui Construction”) sales and construction, 913,405,000 (=ZZ— 14 : 100)

EHEKERIRAERAR(TEKER]) the PRC* (F5Ed)

BREJBHERER
g+

Yunnan OriginWater Membrane Technology Environmental RMB55,614,800 61(2019: 100) 39 (2019: —)
Co., Ltd. protection equipment AR (noted) (ZE—NF :—)

ERBARBKFERMBEAREMELRA sales, the PRC* 55,614,8007T (ZZ— A4 :100)

RRZBIHE - PE* (Wt 3Ed)
Jinghong Water Supply and Drainage Co., Ltd. Wastewater treatment RMB8&0,000,000 51(2019: 51) 49 (2019: 49)
SERTHRBEKEREEAA and water supply, AR (ZZE—-AF:51) (ZZ2E—h&F:—)
the PRC* 80,000,0007T
EIKEEIE R AHK -

Yunnan Zhengxiao Environmental Investment Solid waste treatment, RMB30,500,000 100 (2019: 100) —(2019: —)
Co., Ltd the PRC ARY (ZZ—AF :100) (ZT—hF:—)

EHERRRREER DA ERERE  HE 30,500,0007C

75 (2019: 75)
(ZZE—A%F :75)

25 (2019: 25)
(ZZ2—N%F :25)

100 (2019: 100)

(ZZ2—N%F :100) (Z2—hEF:—)

100 (2019: 100) —(2019: —)

(ZF—h%F :100) (ZF—hF:—)
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont‘d) 14. & 2 8 (&)

Ownership
interests held
Principal by the non-
activities and controlling
place of Issued and Ownership interests (%)
incorporation and fully paid-up interests held FEREREM
operation capital by the Group (%) BEE o (%)
Name (note a) TEFZEH TME ERTR EEEER (note ¢)
18 (Ft 3Fa) REEH BEBMEREK BEE D (%) (Fft 7Ec)
Huize Water (Qingzhou) Company Limited Water supply, the PRC RMB53,152,000 100 (2019: 100) —(2019: —)
2K (EM)ARLDA ok - E AR (ZZ—hF:100) (ZZT—hL&F: —)

53,152,0007T
Huize Water (Sishui) Company Limited Wastewater treatment, US$1,000,000 100 (2019: 100) —(2019: —)
BEKBCORK)BRAR the PRC 1,000,000%7T (ZZ—A%F :100) (ZF—AF:—)

HKEE - HE

PT Sumber Organik Indonesia Solid waste treatment,  IDR10,250,000,000 95 (2019: 95) 5(2019: 5)
Indonesia 10,250,000,000 (ZFE—h%F:95) (ZZF—AF :5)

ERERE e &
Shandong Tengyue Dangerous Chemical Solid waste treatment, RMB108,571,429 97 (2019: 97) 3(2019: 3)
Wastes research and treatment Co., Ltd. the PRC* AR (ZF—NF:97) (ZT—hF:3)
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WRERC2EREZMHAREER AR

Huize Water (Heze) Company Limited
B2k CTE)ERAD A

Xinjiang Qinggeda Yunshui Environmental
Industry Investment and Development
Co., Ltd.

HEEREEZKRRREBRAA

Yun Shui Gong Da Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd
MABEKIREREMBBRNDERAF

Langfang Hyflux NewSpring Co., Ltd.
F Y 9B ROKE AR AR

Hyflux NewSpring (Guanyun) Co., Ltd.
SBENEERKOER)BRAA

Guizhou Renhuai Yunshui Environmental
Industry Co., Ltd.
EMCEEKRBEERA A

BERERIE - B 108,571,4297C
RMB 100,000,000
AR®
100,000,0007T

Water supply, the PRC*
oK - Ex

Wastewater treatment,
the PRC
BKEE - H

RMB227,500,000
ARE
227,500,0007C

Investment in solid RMB83,700,000

waste treatment, AR
the PRC 83,700,0007T
BEERERE -+

Wastewater treatment, US$12,400,000
the PRC 12,400,000% 7T

BKEE - HE

Water supply, the PRC
oK -

US$8,124,000
8,124,000% 7T

RMB522,839,000
ARE
522,839,0007T

Wastewater
treatment the PRC*
AKEIE - hE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

*

(a)

Registered as contractual joint ventures under PRC law

The English names of these subsidiaries referred to in this report
represent management'’s best effort at translating the Chinese names
of those companies, as no English names have been registered.

According to the capital injection agreement date in 9 April 2014, the
Group and the minority shareholders will hold 45% and 55% equity
interests of Dali Water, respectively. As at 31 December 2020, The
Group has controlled Dali Water through an agreement entered into
with one of minority shareholders of Dali Water pursuant to which
the minority shareholder confirmed to act in accordance with the
Group in decision on relevant activities of Dali Water. (2019: same).

The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries as at
31 December 2020 are RMB1,932,201,000 (2019: RMB1,186,669,000),
and are considered individually immaterial to the Group.

On 31 December 2020, the Company enter into the supplemental
agreement with Yunnan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“YNDAMC")
and Yun Shui Construction, the Company agreed to reduce its
paid-up capital in Yun Shui Construction by RMB42,404,000 from
RMB560,000,000 to RMB517,596,000 and to convert RMB42,404,000
from the registered capital to the capital reserve of Yun Shui
Construction, which will be owned as to approximately 57% and
approximately 43% by the Company and YNDAMC respectively. As
at 31 December 2020, the change of registered capital of Yun Shui
Construction in the supplemental agreement has not been temporarily
approved and effective. The effect of supplemental agreement is subject
to the approval of Independent Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of investment in
subsidiaries pledged as security for borrowings are RMB1,339,307,000
(2019: RMB1,781,563,000).
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14. B QT (&)

*

(a)

RpBEZEREMNARXEERT

RRERRANZEH B DA
RXERWDEEBRNBEHESF
NEBWOER  REZRGEM
EMREXEHE -

BEBHA-_ZT—NENA A
BRMEEERGE AEEHRD
BRFEAG D RlIF A REKKEA5%
MES%HARIE - BE T T F
+—A=+—8 KREBEBE—
MEHEA —FZREBEKBELHRE
FIT 5T S &9 5 5 T 455 o RIR K F B9
BRRE - Bt PERERER K
EL BB REKEHHEBEER
REEASE -BITH(ZT—N
F:MHR) -

RZE-_ZTF+=-RAR=+—H
EHEWNBARMIEZREZS
A AR #1,932,201,000 (=
T—hF : AR¥1,186,669,000
TT)  WHAR B AN K B E B I A
BKXo

RZZE_ZEF+_A=+—8H"
AAREEMEEEEEARA
AI([EmEEEETE])REKE
REINEREHE - ARFREH
HREKESHEHRHLEEAA
R # 560,000,000 7T # & A R ¥
42,404,000 7T % 517,596,000 7T
I # A R # 42,404,000 7T M 5
EAREBBEKBEENEARD
B YDA BEARTREEEE
EEBEEABHT%N443%
—EZTF+ZRA=+—H " ' #
HhEFERERHEMERE
EHAEHEKX WEHBZEES
B R RE BT AR o

RZEZZEF+ZA=+—
B fXBEEEARE
1,339,307,0007T K9 A B /B 2 A1 9
HEEREER(ZE—NF : A
R #1,781,563,0007T) °
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15. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN 15.

SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group acquired additional
interests of certain subsidiaries, the Group recognised a decrease in non-

controlling interests and a decrease in equity attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the Company. The effect of changes in equity is summarised

as follows:

WE BT~ RSN E =

RBE-F_FTF+_A=+—HALLHF
B AREWREETHER R BEIME
i o AR BRI IR AR AR AR D A R A
RRIEBRBREEEDTND - Em
gMETERRWT

G

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-BLEE

2020 2019
g Jemg 33 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Carrying amount of non-controlling BB ERERAERE
interests acquired 56,000 46,659
Consideration for acquiring additional I RN eI IR i 2 R (B
non-controlling interests (56,000) (85,565)
Excess of consideration recognised within REMBEREROREBL B
other reserves — (38,906)

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16.

EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

DESEEARNKRE
RApEERBERRNSENT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019
ZE-EF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Joint ventures (note a) & & AR (KfsEa) 728,050 976,601
Associates (note b) B & N A (f 5Eb) 124,734 119,416
852,784 1,096,017
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Cont‘d)

The amounts of investments accounted for using the equity method
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are as follows:

16.

DR EARNKRE (AF)

NEFHES R A bR 6 W & E

#

=
2

A AR E BN

As at 31 December

REA

Rt=A=+-8
2020 2019
—g-®5 -T-nF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETT

Joint ventures EERNA
— Share of profit for the year - EHFEARRF 73,252 47,552
Associates /NS
— Share of profit for the year - JEINF A A 5,318 5,372
78,570 52,924
(a) Investment in joint ventures () REERTMRE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—BLEE
2020 2019
—EZEHE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETTT

Balance at 1 January R—A—BW&E 976,601 607,401
Addition NE 40,000 320,000
Share of profit for the year JE 18 5 R K 73,252 47,552
Dividends declared by a joint venture REAEERAIEIRMNRE (29,000) —
Disposal (i-2) & (i-2) (332,803) —
Recognition of unrealised ERARBIRE M EE

profits or losses — 1,648
Balance at 31 December Rt+t-—BA=+—B W& 728,050 976,601

(i) The Group has interests in joint ventures that is accounted for
using the equity method.

iy AEEFAREGER
BT AR IEARR
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (Cont‘d)

(a)

16. LEBZEZEARNKRE (F)

Investment in joint ventures (Cont‘d) (a) REEQTRINRE(E)
Place of Percentage of ownership interest
business/ As at 31 December
country of FEEEZESHL
incorporation R+=—A=+—8H
W 2020 2019
Name of entity EREE SMRYTHER —E-—& —= A
Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental — 37T/8 ZIR{R A R A &
Protection Company Limited (DEEERR]D)G-1) PRC
(“Haiyun Environmental”) (i-1) 22 49% 49%
Beijing Bailigerui Resources 36 7 AB A I BDRBHE
Technology Company Limited BRAA] PRC N/A
("Beijing Bailigerui") (M= AEMEIK]) A 40% TE A
Fujian Dongfei Environment BRERERIREAR AT
Company Limited (“Dongfei (TERBE]) (-2) PRC N/A
Environment”) (i-2) + TEA 40%

(i-1) Haiyun Environmental is principally engaged in investing,
financing, construction, operation and management of water
environment projects and infrastructure construction projects in

the PRC.

(i-2) On 23 December 2020, the Group disposed 40% of ownership
interests in Dongfei Environment at a cash consideration
of RMB375,200,000 and the net gain on disposal is

RMB42,397,000.

(i) The table below provide summarised financial information of

(-1) BERREIBETELEK
RIGIA B N AR REERIA
BRERE BE BER L
ERER -

(i-2) RE=2_ZT=_TF+=-A
“+=HLFE  AEBE
A B #375,200,000 7T 3R &
{8 B R RIBIEA0% K B
Bz  HEFREAA
R #42,397,0007T °

(i) TFREURER S A EEL A

joint ventures that are individually immaterial to the Group. EBAHNALANTNIBE
#} e
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
Aggregate carrying amount of EARTEREGEARMNAKREE
individually immaterial joint
ventures 728,050 976,601
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s ZANEEDHA T F B LR
share of:
— Profit from continuing - REBBELEEBNRT R
operations and total e s EsE
comprehensive income 73,252 47,552
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

EQUITY METHOD (Cont‘d)

(b) Investment in associates

LESRZEARNKRE

(b) RBELQTWRE

(#)

Year ended 31 December

BE+-BA=+—HLEE

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARB TR ARETF T

Balance at 1 January R—A— B 119,416 53,641

Addition NE = 60,000

Share of profit for the year FEAL & A 5,318 5,372
Recognition of unrealised profits or R AR EIR E M EE

losses — 403

Balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—HW&E 124,734 119,416

(i) All of the associates are unlisted companies and there were no
quoted market price available for the shares.

(i) The table below provide summarised financial information for
associates that are individually immaterial to the Group.

(i) FMEBERRRILMAA
BRI T 50 ®RE -

(i)  TREPEER S AR EIL A
BREEE R RIS ERS o

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARKEFT
Aggregate carrying amount of AR TEXREEARMNAKREE
individually immaterial associates 124,734 119,416
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s ZAEE ST FEMNLBE
share of:
— Profit from continuing - RERBELEEBHRNR
operations and total Falam B
comprehensive income 5,318 5,372
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BERKHE
Electronic
equipment
Plants and Motor  and others  Construction
buildings  Machinery vehices EFHZER  in progress Total
BERET M RE 2 ERIE @t
RMB’ 000 RMB'’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T:R
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h%E-A-A
Cost KA 1,143,185 1,646,686 73,999 135,094 463,317 3,462,281
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (215,884) (518,840) (50,038) (55,231) = (839,993)
Net book amount REFE 97301 1,127,846 23,961 79,863 463317 2,622,288
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-B3-NE+ZB=1-HLEE
Opening net book amount BNEEFE 927,301 1,127,846 23,91 79,863 463317 2,622,288
Acquisitions of subsicfaries WERBARF 140 138 102 2 = 400
Additions RE 6,236 7,381 3,637 18,974 697,937 734,165
Transfer from construction in progress HERERIR 93,406 104,752 = = (198,158) =
Disposals k5 (65) (906) (989) (73) = (2,033)
Depreciation charge (note 8) HERT (M) (37,870  (103,042) (8,796) (27,661) = (177,369)
Closing net book amount HARERE 939,148 1,136,169 17,915 71,123 963,096 3,177,451
At 31 December 2019 RZB-A%t=B=t+-H
Cost KA 1,237,604 1,757,963 76,541 152,903 963,096 4,188,107
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (24845)  (621,794) (58,626) (81,780) —  (1,010,656)
Net book amount REFE 989,148 1,136,169 17,915 71,123 963,096 3,177,451
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-B-EFT-A=ST-BLFR
Opening net book amount R EE 989,148 1,136,169 17915 1123 963,09 3,177,451
Additions NE 21,209 212,239 6,125 14,915 839,586 1,100,074
Transfer from construction in progress BREAERIE 81,869 129,931 - - (211,800) -
Transfer from investment properties (note 18) ERBRENE(W18) 122 - - - - 122
Disposals HE - - (29) (@117) - (4,146)
Depreciation charge (note 8) RERZ (M) @3813) (117,111 (11,655) (19,073) - (191,652)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 1,054,535 1,361,228 12,356 62,848 1,590,882 4,081,849
At 31 December 2020 RZBZZF+t-A=t+-H
Cost KA 1,347,153 2,100,133 82,544 163,203 1,590,882 5,283,915
Accumulated depreciation 2HTE (292,618) (738,905) (70,188) (100,355) —  (1,202,066)
Net book amount REFE 1,054,535 1,361,228 12,356 62,848 1,590,882 4,081,849
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont‘d)

Depreciation was charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss and

18.

other comprehensive income under the following caption:

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

17. ¥ - BERKE(E)
WETDRAEHBRREMEGEARFRRA
HLATIEB #k -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-BLEE

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZE-hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARB TR ARETF T

Cost of sales Ei=R=—0 79 171,782 150,612
Administrative expenses THFA X 19,010 25,786
Selling expenses HERX 860 971
191,652 177,369

(@) As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for borrowings are RMB1,348,533,000

(2019: RMB1,763,623,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

RZF_FTFEF+_HA=1+—
H BRXBEEHEBEARS
1,348,533,000THI ¥ % - HE &
BEEER(ZTE—NF - ARK
1,763,623,0007T) ©

18. REWZ

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEE

2020 2019

ZEZEF —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Balance at 1 January R—A—HBW&E 24,927 25,779
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREEYXE - BREREE (122) —
Depreciation charge FERX (845) (852)
Balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—HW&&R 23,960 24,927

(@) The Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance as at 31 December 2020 (2019: same).

(b)  Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties were
performed by independent third party valuers to determine the fair
value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2020. The
fair value of these investment properties as at 31 December 2020 as
assessed by the valuers by direct comparison method or discounted
cash flow method were approximately RMB37,094,000 (2019:

RMB34,958,000).

RZBE-_ZF+=-A=+—8"
AEBETEAREEREESL
BEE(ZZE—AF : HR) -

AREFBKREMERBIE=ZHE
HEMETBYGE UEFTRE
MER-_ZE_FTF+_A=+—
ANATFE ZSREVER=
E-_THFE+_A=+—HWOAF
1B £ fih (B BT LA B 3t 80F 5 Bh
BESREATHNABARKE
37,094,000 (ZE—NFE : AR
#34,958,0007C) ©
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19. LEASES 19. &
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. AWFREEBAAEB AEABAANEE
EH -
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) REHEEEBRERN
sheet o]

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating AHEEBERYTATHFER

188

to right-of-use assets: BREEEBANESHE
Land use Offices and
rights®  warehouses Total
THFEAEY BAZERBE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®TrR
At 1 January 2019 R=Z—-hF—HF—8
Cost AR 211,002 32,680 243,682
Accumulated depreciation RN (28,170) (5,708) (33,878)
Net book amount REFE 182,832 26,972 209,804
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-ZF—h&E
+=ZRA=+—-BLEE
Opening net book amount BRI BR (A 182,832 26,972 209,804
Additions NE 43,070 37,473 80,543
Currency translation differences BEkhE =z 113 = 113
Depreciation charge (note 8) ER X (ME8) (5,560) (14,217) (19,777)
Closing net book amount B R BR 1 )5H(AE 220,455 50,228 270,683
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—h&E
+=A=+-8
Cost BX A 254,185 70,153 324,338
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (33,730) (19,925) (53,655)
Net book amount REFE 220,455 50,228 270,683
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_E_EfF
+T=ZRA=+—BLEFE
Opening net book amount Y BRE FE 220,455 50,228 270,683
Additions NE 79,803 10,610 90,413
Currency translation differences EEHhEESE (149) = (149)
Depreciation charge (note 8) mERZ (HEs) (10,230) (14,200) (24,430)
Closing net book amount B R ER EFE 289,879 46,638 336,517
At 31 December 2020 R=-B=-FHF
+=A=+-8
Cost DN 333,839 80,763 414,602
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (43,960) (34,125) (78,085)
Net book amount REFE 289,879 46,638 336,517

(i) The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China
and Indonesia government for fixed periods of 20 to 50 years.
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19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEF 7S 3R R BT o

LEASES (Cont’d) 19. HE (&
(b) REGHEEREMESK

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive

income shows the following amounts relating to leases:

HmREANSHE
ApHAEREEA KERIIT
ATEEEEMNSHE

As at 31 December

R+=-—B=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ERAREENENX

Offices and warehouses PWRENEE 14,200 14,217
Land use rights b {6 A A 10,230 5,560
24,430 19,777

The Group leases land use rights and various offices and warehouses.
Rental contracts of offices and warehouses are typically made for
fixed periods of 1 to 10 years.

(c) As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets pledged as security for borrowings are RMB44,965,000 (2019:
RMB36,477,000).

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20.

ARRANGEMENTS

The following is the summarised information of the financial asset
component (receivables under service concession arrangements) with respect
to the Group’s service concession arrangements:

(c)

Z’»‘%.Tﬁfiﬂﬂ@f)ﬂ%%&ﬁ 1
#ﬂ#"*&ﬁ}ﬁ WMAERBEN
HEANBRFERIZI0EMETH
RETSL ©

R-ZE—_ZTF+=-_A=+—8"
& 3 A BR E@ B A R # 44,965,000
THERAREEERE(ZE—H
F: AR#36,477,0007T) °

RS FEETHETHE
U Fx I8
HAEBRBETCELHEEENSH
BEAKNSS (RBEFECELHETH
EUWFIBE)MERBRMT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-8H
2020 2019
—s-%85% —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Receivables under service concession RS Rr AT A8 & 2 HE T B FE W EUIR
arrangements 5,304,961 5,078,315
Less: provision for impairment B R ERE (3,590) —
5,301,371 5,078,315
Portion classified as current assets DERRBEENT S (65,877) (51,892)
Non-current portion IEMEE D 5,235,494 5,026,423
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20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

190

(a)

In respect of the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements, credit risks varied amongst the Group's projects
operated in different locations of Mainland China. The collection
of receivables under services concession arrangements is closely
monitored in order to minimise any credit risk associated with the
receivables.

20. RBBEHIARELTHTHE
WK IR (&)

(a)

BRARERRBHALERHET
B FIAT 5 - EERRE AR
SERPRERENEMEEZD
HEME - RRELEEKRFKIAS
MO EREERR  REFTFE
B2 BT M ERR M R E B R

RBZOEEE -

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—-8H
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARB TR ARETFT
Yunnan Province EEE 1,273,889 1,199,953
Shandong Province ) 1,139,194 1,072,244
Jiangsu Province LERA 663,220 651,921
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region HEgETRERRE 490,657 414,008
Hebei Province Mt 416,652 416,119
Anhui Province ZHE 349,906 327,067
Henan Province RS 341,342 309,772
Tianjin City REM 146,966 141,145
Fujian Province B|EA 142,656 226,151
Guangdong Province BRE 124,620 121,908
Chongging City EE™ 96,046 89,190
Zhejiang Province HTE 74,777 66,462
Liaoning Province HEEE 45,036 42,375
5,304,961 5,078,315

The receivables under service arrangements were billable receivables.
They were mainly due from governmental authorities in Mainland
China, as grantors in respect of the Group’s service concession
arrangements. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are considered
fully recoverable.
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B HMBHRERNE

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. RIEITARELTHTNNE
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) WK (&)
(b) The expected collection schedule of receivables under service (b) BREEBFHFLELELZTHTHREKRRE
concession arrangements is as follows: B TE BRI R NS

As at 31 December

R+t=-—HA=+-—8
2020 2019
—E-EHE —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARKETTT

Within one year —F LA 65,877 51,892
One to two years —EWF 84,531 65,837
Two to five years MERF 310,763 264,961
Over five years FEA A F 4,843,790 4,695,625

5,304,961 5,078,315
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

192

21. B EE

Unfulfilled Technical
Goodwill contract know-how
(noteb)  Development  Operating rights and software
B2  expenditure concessions AET Licenses BHEHMR Total
(K ztb) BREX HKESER AHER 3 g4 @3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR AR%Tn AR%ETn ARETn ARETn AR%Txn
At 1 January 2019 R=B-n%¥-F-A
Cost KK 437,460 3,852 9,627,821 52,301 658,186 102,937 10,882,557
Accumulated amortisation 5 i - = (638,791) (38,268) (40,155) (12,188 (729,400)
Net book amount REFE 437,460 3,852 8,989,030 14,033 618,031 90,749 10,153,155
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-E-AEt=R=1-H
LEE
Opening net book amount BOEAFE 437,460 3,852 8,989,030 14,033 618,031 90,749 10,153,155
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR = = = = = 21 2
Additions nE - 3,393 1,573,719 - - 1,661 1,578,773
Currency translation differences EBREER 3,838 = 32,061 = = 19 35,918
Transfer from development expenditure ~ E&AREFEY - (1,886) = = = 1,886 =
Amortisation charge (note 8) Bz (His) = = (298,802) (703) (19,073) (4016)  (322,594)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 441,298 5,359 10,296,008 13,330 598,958 90,320 11,445,273
At 31 December 2019 R=B-A%¥+-F=1-AH
Cost KA 441,298 535 11,233,601 52,301 658,186 106524 12,497,069
Accumulated amortisation ES 3 - - (937,593) (38,971) (59,228) (16,204)  (1,051,99%)
Net book amount REFE 441,298 5,359 10,296,008 13,330 598,958 90,320 11,445,273
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ-3-BE+-B=1-A
LEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 441,298 5359 10,296,008 13,330 598,958 90,320 11,445,273
Additions NE — 4214 1,848,877 - - 2,225 1,855,316
Curreny translation differences EBREER (15,706) - (22383) - - (40) (38,089)
Amortisation charge (note 8) BERZ (i) = - (349,09) (703 (19764) (4389)  (373,950)
Closing net book amount BAREEFE 425,592 9,573 11,773,448 12,627 579,194 88,116 12,888,550
At 31 December 2020 RZBZBE+ZAZt-H
Cost AR 425,592 9,573 13,060,135 52,301 658,186 108,709 14,314,496
Accumulated amortisation 2iHEH = —  (1,286,687) (39,674) (78,992) (20,593)  (1,425,946)
Net book amount REFE 425,592 9573 11,773,448 12,627 579,194 88,116 12,888,550

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @ /K #6124 B3 A 2 & Annual Report 2020 4 & 4 &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Amortisation was charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income under the following
caption:

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

B EE(H)
(a) BHECREHESZRHEM

mEWBERFHNTIIEE
B :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t-HLFE

2020 2019

Sl 33 —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT

Cost of sales Fi=R= 79N 368,042 317,113
Administrative expenses THRAX 5,908 5,481
373,950 322,594

Impairment test for goodwiill

The goodwill of the Group as at 31 December 2020 mainly arose
from the acquisition of Galaxy NewSpring Pte. Ltd, Shandong
Tengyue, Harbin Yun Shui and Future International Group Co.,
Ltd., amounting to RMB183,149,000, RMB109,521,000 and
RMB53,663,000, respectively. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the goodwill was allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU"). The
recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on fair value
less costs to disposal. The calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determined the projection period based on their
past experience and expectation for the market development and
is consistent with their business plan. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below, respectively.
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(b) AEREERNR

AEBR_ZT_ZTF+=A
=t BNEETZA KB
Galaxy NewSpring Pte. Ltd * Il
FHEE BREZKREE
SEERABDMES " 95l
A A R 183,149,000 7T © A
R % 109,521,000 7t & A R #
53,663,000 7T ° %t &k (& Al & i
T A sREERcELAENM
([ReELEM]) ReELS
Az R AT YR B & B8 T AR B A FE R
EEEBERAETE FEAFAFAR
SRETEA  KEEBEEIZY
AEHTRBEE -ERERAN
BEHREERERABNAE
KBREHEEMSERMOTES B
HEENEETE KR -BBER
FHEAMNBeREDSANEAT
MG RERES o
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(b) Impairment test for goodwill (Cont’d)
(i) A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is
presented below:

21.

BVEE(H)
(b) AERMERNH(HF)
) ATFRIIBEHEZHBE
EHE

As at 31 December

R+=-—B=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Solid waste treatment & % B I8 180,536 181,546
Water supply oK 120,254 126,523
Wastewater treatment 57K B 18 111,589 120,016
Construction and sales of equipment EERREEE 13,213 13,213

425,592 441,298

(i)  Key assumptions used for fair value less costs to disposal
calculations of each CGU were in the range as follows:

iy SERSELBUBEIF
BEREEXAGTEENTE
BEmEEm T

As at 31 December 2020

BE_2-Z2F+-A=t-HLEE

Construction

and sales of
Solid waste Water  Wastewater equipment
treatment supply treatment BER
& R E ok 75 K B B REHE

Average annual growth rate g T F 18K K(v)
of revenue (iv) 3%-10% 3%-10% 3%-10% 10%
Long-term growth rate (v) RHEE R X() 3% 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate (vi) 8518 & (vi) 10%-14% 11%-14% 11%-14% 12%

As at 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—NEF+-_A=+—BLEFE

Construction
and sales of
Solid waste Water Wastewater equipment
treatment supply treatment BER
)y itk EKE R BEHE

Average annual growth rate a5 T 5 F 18 & E(v)
of revenue (iv) 3%-10% 3%-10% 3%-10% 10%
Long-term growth rate (v) REERE(\V) 3% 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate (vi) Bh I8 & (vi) 12%-14% 11%-14% 11%-14% 12%
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B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)
(b) Impairment test for goodwill (Cont’d)

(iii)

(vi)

Sensitivity analysis on key assumptions used in the calculation
of the impairment tests for goodwill arose from the above
subsidiaries have been carried out. If the average annual growth
rate of revenue had been lower than management estimates
by 5% or discount rate had been higher than management
estimates by 5% with other variables held constant, the
recoverable amount of goodwill would still exceed their carrying
value and no impairment will be required.

Management determined average annual growth rate of
revenue based on past performance and its expectations for
each market development.

The long-term growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts
included in each industry report.

The discount rate used is discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections which reflects specific risks relating to each business.

21. B EE (&)
(b) AERMERNH(HF)

(iii)

(vi)

AEBHERFTEALHER
AIFTE £ 2 B RER A
BHARANEIERRIEL
FRE DT - A FI9F
ERELERENEEES%
HUERRLEREN GRS
5% - MEMESRFTIE -
AR E 8 A W El & BT E
BEREE - AMBERE

ERARNREAERAR
AEUTHREHENETK
AFHFEEE -

PrAREIE R REITRRSE
P& TR R — 2k -

PRAMBER SRS RETAA
PRERARIRBRIR X - H R BREE
EBERNEERR -
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& F B 1% R B 5

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Raw materials [ 62,902 61,209
Work in progress TEER 17,892 30,094
Finished Goods SRR i 27,543 12,182
108,337 103,485
No provisions for inventories have been made for the year ended 31 BHE_E_-F E—f— A=+—HBI1It&E
December 2020 (2019: same). E-aE uﬂmﬁ BE(ZE—hE
HE) -
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. B RHEHMEVRERE
=%
PREPAYMENTS f+ : IR
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-F —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARKETT
Trade receivables B S EWGRIE
— Related parties (note 37(g)) - @A (M‘fﬁ 37(g)) 2,395,236 2,891,572
— Local governments - M T I 1,072,050 935,935
— Third parties -%=7 2,936,151 1,835,486
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (145,570) (85,804)
6,257,867 5,577,189
Other receivables H b pEUKRIE
- Related parties (note 37(k)) - BB (M3E 37(k) 39,861 36,281
— Third parties —Em=5 1,995,577 1,589,085
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (32,854) (31,814)
2,002,584 1,593,552
Total trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EWGRIEREE 8,260,451 7,170,741
Less: non-current portion of trade and other W B S REAMEBGIEIEREE D
receivables (422,564) (43,999)
Current portion of trade and other receivables 2 5 % H b & W s/ B 7 B 26 7,837,887 7,126,742
Prepayments TERTFRIE
— Related parties (note 37(g)) _mES (i 37(g)) 232,084 502,227
— Third parties -F=Hh 1,112,307 1,097,156
1,344,391 1,599,383
Less: non-current portion of prepayments B BN RIEERE S (1,168,930) (1,364,449)
Current portion of prepayments TEN IR EE D 175,461 234,934
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (Cont‘d)

(a) Trade receivables

Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables (including amounts due

from related parties of trading in nature) at the respective balance

sheet dates, based on the invoice dates or contractual terms, is as

follows:

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

23. ESRHEMEBBUWRERE
A (&)
(a) EZEWRE
REEERREERMRA NG
B A E B KR (R EBE
S e fE B Y OB M B IR
BHWMT :

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—~H
2020 2019
—EZE2F —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Within one year —FLAR 2,921,478 2,433,593
One to two years —EWF 1,263,267 1,776,680
Two to three years WE=F 1,103,251 855,993
Over three years =FE 1,115,441 596,727
6,403,437 5,662,993

The Group have different credit policies for various products and

services, depending on the requirements of different business

segments and the contractual agreements with different customers.

Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

AEEEEERERBEHE AR
ZEEBRER  RFAREBEBM
MERFETREF KGR

f5E °

RNEEE 5 R IRN B E R R

ZEMT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—-HBLHFE

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZET—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARKEFT

Opening balance at 1 January H—B— BN 85,804 59,986

Impairment provision ERE 59,766 29,818

Reversal due to collection B W [e] i 485 1) = (4,000)

Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWNEREER 145,570 85,804
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 2. EZRHMERRERTE
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) N RIE (E)
(b) Other receivables (b) HttFEW KA
Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of other 7 55 (B A 4t JRE KRR TE B R (B B
receivables are as follows: EEmTr

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

2020 2019
—g-®5 -T-nF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—B—BWENERR 31,814 9,106
Impairment provision RERE 1,040 22,708
Closing balance at 31 December R+=A=+—HBWEREE 32,854 31,814
() Prepayments () FEMAFIE
The Group's prepayments are mainly for purchase of goods, land use AEBNEBENREBEITrEAEES
rights, construction works, services and acquisition of equity interests. W LR BETIREERE
b AR 75 #9 T8 A< S0 I8 LA B2 AR HE W BB

B IR R -

(d) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the (d) ScsPpHEENESEERR A
carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The TR ERENRIENEEDE - AN
Group does not hold any collateral as security. SEEWEZEEMIKBEYIELE

R o
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24. RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2020 the restricted cash mainly comprised of guarantee

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

deposits for construction of projects (2019: same).

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. SRFEBE S

R-F-2E+-A=+—8  ERH
RETBOERRAENRES(ZF

— R4 : 4RR) .

5. REeRBESEEY

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Cash at bank and in hand (note a) WITFERRFEREE (FiEa) 1,697,688 2,458,435
Short-term bank deposits at call EERITER AT — 10,000
1,697,688 2,468,435

(a)

As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents of the Group are

denominated in:

@ MN-T-TF+-A=+—8"
AEENRSRRSEEBWAT

FIEHEHE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EHF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREEF T
RMB AR 1,654,934 2,386,579
usb E7T 25,249 31,098
IDR ENfeE 9,329 8,072
THB 37N 4,868 38,681
HKD BT 2,821 2,769
SGD T 487 1,236
1,697,688 2,468,435
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& F B 1% R B 5

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R &
Number of
shares Share
(thousand) capital
RHHE [N
(F8&)
RMB’000
AR TR
As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZZE-NF—A—H"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —T-hAE+=-RA=+—8H -
—ToEF-H-HRK
—E_ZF+_HA=1+—H 1,193,213 1,193,213
27. OTHER RESERVES 27. Hitbf& &
Capital Statutory Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total
R 2= 5% 45 EEME BRERE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ET T ARET ARET T
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-E-NFE-F—BH&EH 1,864,327 377,323 (44,635) 2,197,015
Acquisition of additional interests in U BE BT B 1 B MY BB AN B
subsidiaries (38,906) — — (38,906)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary B HE—EHB AR
without change of control 7B (5,986) = = (5,986)
Currency translation differences EBHhEER = = 18,215 18,215
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) 8 %K i i 4 (Fff ia) = 110,250 = 110,250
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hE+=BA=+-—-H
i 4 BR 1,819,435 487,573 (26,420) 2,280,588
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-_ZEF-A—HHN&ER 1,819,435 487,573 (26,420) 2,280,588
Capital contribution by FEREREEE
non-controlling interests 369,923 — — 369,923
Currency translation differences EMBEEE — — 12,009 12,009
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) 8 &K i 4 (Fff ia) — 138,207 — 138,207
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+=-B=+-—H
i 4 BR 2,189,358 625,780 (14,411) 2,800,727
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27. OTHER RESERVES (Cont’d) 27.

(a) Statutory reserve
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, except
for sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, all PRC companies
are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated
under PRC accounting rules and regulations to the statutory reserve
fund, until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses carried forward
from previous years or to increase capital of the respective companies.

28. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENT 28.

The perpetual capital instruments have no maturity, and the payments
of distribution can be deferred at the discretion of the Company. When
the Company elects to declare dividends to their ordinary shareholders,
the Company shall make distribution to the holders of perpetual capital
instruments at the distribution rates as defined in the subscription

agreements.

The average annual distribution rate is about 7% for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: about 7%).

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

H e s ()

(a) EERE
R E AR R ROR AR - B
ShaBEREIN  FEFAADY
AR o L 3R A BOR R
5101 B 14 2 10 109% 98 18 5 0%
RS EERHESEEE
EH M EABS0%A I < K
HESASEWEBILE 5T
3 {45 543 £ 4 54 9B 4 S R 5
AR TNEA -

KABEARIR
}EAATALKIBE - DRART
mARAWBEE - A2 FRBHR
HRRRSERS - 8AFBRREH
BREZHREMKARRLEFAA
(B DR -

BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
WFEFEDIREDBT% (ZF—NF -
W RT%) °

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—BLFE

2020 2019
—E-EHE —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARKETTT

Balance at 1 January R—A— B 2,610,000 1,200,000
Issuance BIT 500,000 1,410,000
Redemption fE ] (2,610,000) —
Profit attributable to holders of perpetual KAEBEARTEFEH AR EF

capital instruments 117,640 119,800
Distributions to holders of perpetual capital FKAE AT E#HEE AEEA DR

instruments (117,640) (119,800)
Balance at 31 December RT+-—A=+—HH&EH 500,000 2,610,000
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29. BORROWINGS

202

29. &5k

As at 31 December

R+t=B=+—-8
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Non-current FRE
Long-term bank borrowings REJIRITER 10,946,507 10,450,837
Corporate bonds and other borrowings RAElEH K HAIER 6,919,414 4,748,688
17,865,921 15,199,525
Current RED
Short-term bank borrowings FEHERITER 4,157,826 1,290,000
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings — KHIR/TERERE LD 2,141,836 1,157,247
Current portion of corporate bonds and other NEMES REAMERAREE S
borrowings 3,376,232 3,972,158
9,675,894 6,419,405
27,541,815 21,618,930
(@)  The Group's borrowings carried weighted average interest rates of @ BE-—Z-_ZTEFE+-_A=+-—
5.74% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HIFEE AEEBEZIMNEELY
5.32%). FRRABS74%(ZF—NEF
5.32%) °
(b)  As at 31 December 2020, other borrowings from a related party is by R-ZZE-_ETE+-_A=+—8"

depicted in note 37(h)&(i)&(j).
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B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

29. BORROWINGS (Contd) 29. B (&

(0 As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of RMB12,175,993,000 (0 RZE-ZTEE+-_A=+—8 "
(2019: RMB8,733,836,000) were secured by pledge of the Group's B AR #12,175,993,0007T (=
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets, T—h F: ARMS8,733,836,000
right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment and intangible THAEBRBEHFLELTH
assets and the Company’s investments in subsidiaries. R  E6RNEE FHEE

E ¥ BEIRBARET
AERPRHBRRANREERE

HH o
As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of RMB324,636,000 (2019: RZZEZZEF+_A=+—80"
P -
RMB21,369,000), RMB537,450,000 (2019: RMB387,450,000) and R A7 f8 5 A K ¥ 324,636,000 7T

—T—hF : AR¥21,369,000
: PR _ . _
RMB520,200,000 (2019: RMB206,179,000) were guaranteed by a PRC %) - ARM537.450,0007 (= F

local government, a related party and third parties, respectively. — A . AR#387 450 0007T)
AR AR¥ 520,200,000t (==
—NE : ARM 206,179,0007T)
29 5l BB E AT - B
RE=ZFFER-
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f 75 SRR BT o

29. BORROWINGS (Cont‘d) 29. AR (&
(d)  As at 31 December 2020, the Group's borrowings were repayable as d R-ZE-TFE+_A=+-—
follows: KEBEROEZBIOAT

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-H
2020 2019
—s-%8% —T-Af
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARETTT

Within one year —F AR 9,675,894 6,419,405
One to two years —EWEF 5,912,923 6,728,125
Two to five years MERF 5,815,518 4,717,535
Over five years BlAF 6,137,480 3,753,865
27,541,815 21,618,930
(e)  The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and (e) REBER AEERZXEESF
the contractual repricing dates at the end of each of the year are as REFRAREENEH TELR
follows: N

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-H
2020 2019
—s-%8% —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARETTT

Within six months NEAAA 7,976,954 4,902,948
Six months to one year NMEAE—F 9,400,166 3,738,112
One to five years —ZEhF 7,560,809 11,976,147
Over five years BilAF 2,603,886 1,001,723

27,541,815 21,618,930
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate their AREEBEFNEDEREQAFE
fair value. HBE -
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29. BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 29. B (&
f) The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing (f) BE-_T-_ZTE+-_A=1+—8H
facilities during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: same). IHFE  AEBESTTEERR
ENBMBEN(ZT—NF : H
@) -
(9)  The Group's borrowings were denominated in: (99 AEBERATIEBE :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-EHF ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTTT

RMB AR 25,320,134 18,839,068
usD e 2,130,805 2,678,177
THB B3N 70,393 80,316
EUR BT 20,483 21,369

27,541,815 21,618,930
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZREMEANRIE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019
—E_EF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARKEFT
Trade payables: B S ENFRIA
— Related parties (note 37(g)) - BAE s (WE? 37(g)) 1,468,045 1,324,339
— Third parties -$=5 5,825,723 3,900,181
7,293,768 5,224,520
Notes payables GANES 160,000 110,000
Other payables: HAh FERFRIA
- Related parties (note 37(g)) - B (fRE 37(g)) 305,788 326,575
— Third parties -%=F 955,240 1,043,518
Staff welfare benefit payable FERTE A& 46,849 53,073
Other taxes payable Efth B IR 262,476 197,914
Dividend payables ERRE 12,229 12,440
9,036,350 6,968,040
Less: non-current portion B IERENER S (5,906,360) (3,292,499)
Current portion BN AR 3,129,990 3,675,541
(@) Trade payables are settled in accordance with agreed terms with () EBESENREREBAHERGE
suppliers. BIEHEE -
(b) At 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of the trade payables by RZT=_ZTF+= )51 +—8"

BREHZAHAXAOGERELD
%ﬂ%ﬁ’%ﬁﬂﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ&f’%nﬁﬁﬁﬂ? :

based on invoice dates or contractual terms, is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—8
2020 2019
—E_FF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Within one year —F LR 4,202,807 2,410,152
One to two years —ZMFE 1,590,313 2,236,221
Two to three years ME=F 1,168,930 176,184
Over three years =FLE 331,718 401,963
7,293,768 5,224,520
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31. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represented government grants received from governmental
authorities with respect to Group’s constructions of wastewater treatment
facilities, water supply facilities, solid waste treatment plants as well as the
provision of water supply service. The movement of deferred income is as
below:

31.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

A FE W i 2 4 A SR B R DS K BR IR AR
e~ fROKER B 88 BE W) AR TR R A K B2
 fH 7K AR 75 2 AT % 18 3% R RO DR T
By JEFEWE B EHIT

Government

grants

BT 8 B

RMB’000

AR TR

Opening balance at 1 January 2019 REZZB-NF—A—-BHHDER 692,361

Additions N 38,390
Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss FFAGHEEREMRE KGR

and other comprehensive income (29,031)

Closing balance at 31 December 2019 R-B-AE+-A=+—AKNPRER 701,720

Opening balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-ZSF—A—BWHMER 701,720

Additions NE 40,625
Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss FTAGHHEE R EMERE KT

and other comprehensive income (32,577)

Closing balance at 31 December 2020 R-EB-EF+-A=+—HWHLRLELR 709,768
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

208

(a) Deferred income tax assets

32. IEFEFTBH
(a) EEFBHMEE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

The balance comprises temporary DEREETNER
differences attributable to:
Deferred income BT e 140,228 149,153
Tax losses MIEEE 467,596 260,426
Accrued expenses and impairment FEEH R BB R
provision 278,293 213,493
Total deferred income tax assets RIS A EETE 886,117 623,072
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities IR SEHAE (184,680) (108,449)
Net deferred income tax assets SFREFSREE 701,437 514,623
Accrued
expenses and
impairment
Deferred provision
income Tax losses BB R Total
Movements L] ELWE REFRE HERE @
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T AR®T R ARBT T
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-Z-hE-A—H
& &4 142,336 110,929 169,164 422,429
Credit to consolidated statement of profit ~ RAHBER R EMGE
or loss and other comprehensive income WE KA A 6,817 149,497 44,329 200,643
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZBE-N%§
TZA=+-HNER 149,153 260,426 213,493 623,072
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-BE-E%-A-H
1 & &4 149,153 260,426 213,493 623,072
(Charge)/credit to consolidated REREEREMEE
statement of profit or loss and WEERR(HB),/ A
other comprehensive income (8,925) 207,170 64,800 263,045
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EHE
+t-A=t-HH&&H 140,228 467,596 278,293 886,117
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

32. IRIEFRIGH (&

(b) EEFBHRER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2020 2019
—E-RE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBET T
The balance comprises temporary DEREETNER
differences attributable to:
Fair value gains YNSRI & (877,940) (914,306)
Service concession receivables PR 745 7T FE W 318 (526,964) (329,278)
Others Eith (57.246) (33,848)
Total deferred income tax liabilities BIEFSHaERE (1,462,150) (1,277,432)
Set-off of deferred income tax assets HKEHBEMSHEE 184,680 108,449
Net deferred income tax liabilities FELEMERAE (1,277,470) (1,168,983)
Service
concession
Fair value receivables
gains BR 3 45 5 Others Total
Movements 25 AP AW FE W FhoE Hit @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T AR®T ARET T
Opening balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-NE-A-HW
HO& (950,555) (202,529) (3,454) (1,156,538)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated NEFERREMGS
statement of profit or loss and other WEKRFRFA/ (H5)
comprehensive income 36,249 (126,749) (30,394) (120,894)
Closing balance at 31 December 2019 R=-ZE—-h&+=A
St -BHBRER (914,306) (329,278) (33,848) (1,277,432)
Opening balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-EE-A-HM
B (914,306) (329,278) (33,848) (1,277,432)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated REeEHEEREMEE
statement of profit or loss and other WaERPA/(NR)
comprehensive income 36,366 (197,686) (23,398) (184,718)
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-F&+-H
ST-BHBRER (877,940) (526,964) (57,246) (1,462,150)
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33. PROVISIONS

210

33. &1

Maintenance

costs Others Total
RERE Hity et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR TR AR TR
(note a)
(Bt 3£a)
Opening balance at R-ZE-AF—A—BWHD&EH
1 January 2019 346,464 3,270 349,734
Provision capitalised in intangible REREERBBERIEAR
assets 890 — 890
Amortised to consolidated statement  #EHEAHBRZLEMEES
of profit or loss and other a2k (MFEE10)
comprehensive income (note 10) 8,664 — 8,664
Paid during the year FAE N RIE — (165) (165)
Closing balance at R=B-hF+=HA=+—H
31 December 2019 By B 48 4 R 356,018 3,105 359,123
Opening balance at R=ZZE=ZFF-HA—BH
1 January 2020 ) & 4 356,018 3,105 359,123
Provision capitalised in intangible REFEERHBEREER
assets 129,941 — 129,941
Amortised to consolidated statement  #EHEHEAHEBEZLHEMEES
of profit or loss and other Was & (fF5E10)
comprehensive income (note 10) 8,355 — 8,355
Paid during the year FANE N RIE = (183) (183)
Closing balance at R-ZZE-_ZEF+-A=+—BHK
31 December 2020 MR ek 494,314 2,922 497,236

(a) Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by the
Group, the Group has the contractual obligations to maintain the
facilities it operates to specified level of serviceability and/or to restore
the plants to a specified conditions before they are handed over
to the Grantors at the end of the service concession period. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the facilities, except
for any upgrade elements, are recognised and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the

present obligation at the end of the year.
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34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash used in operation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

4. EHRERERME

(a) BEFMARE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—-BLEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Profit before income tax FFr 45 54 A g A 502,624 677,549
Adjustments for: AT SIEELFE -
— Impairment losses on financial assets - SREEREBE 70,156 48,526
— Depreciation of investment properties - REYMEHRE 845 852
— Amortisation of intangible assets - B EESH 373,950 322,594
— Depreciation of property, plant and - ¥ BERRETE
equipment 191,652 177,369
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - EREEENE 24,430 19,777
— Share of profit of investments - DAREZE A BRAY PR IR & 5 A
accounted for using
the equity method (78,570) (52,924)
— Other gains — net o (48,810) 1,425
— Finance costs — net - BERKAFE 1,258,992 814,167
Change in working capital: BEESEL
— Inventories -FE (4,851) (1,397)
— Contract assets - BHEE (2,630,702) (1,536,468)
— Trade and other receivables and - B 5 REAM EBGRIE A K&
receivables under concession B E T TH
arrangements FEWRIR (2,667,471) (3,889,997)
— Prepayments - FERIFRIE (264,092) (216,480)
— Trade and other payables - B 5 REAMERRIE (318,061) 609,699
— Contract liabilities - 5HBE (18,525) (12,733)
— Deferred income - BEW 8,048 9,359
Cash used in operations REFMARS (3,600,385) (3,028,682)
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34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3. SR EREBERM (&)
CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) ERFEAG
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR T T
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 1,697,688 2,468,435
Borrowings (B (27,541,815) (21,618,930)
Lease liabilities HEBE (49,034) (50,610)
Net debt &% (25,893,161) (19,201,105)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBHEEED 1,697,688 2,468,435
Gross debt — fixed interest rates Bi5#5E — BEFX (17,232,948) (13,948,479)
Gross debt — floating interest rates BEi5azE — SEF=X (10,357,901) (7,721,060)
Net debt B EREFE (25,893,161) (19,201,104)
Liabilities from
financing activities
REMETBNERE
Cash
and cash
equivalents Lease
B4Rk Borrowings liabilities Total
BEeZEEY B HEAE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRHT AR%Tn AR®¥Tn AR%TR
Net debt as at R-ZE-h&—HF—H
1 January 2019 R ER 2,214,352 (16,934,526) (26,973)  (14,747,147)
Cash flows iﬁf}uué 247,229 (4,700,093) 13,836 (4,439,028)
Other changes (i) H &8 (i) = = (37,473) (37,473)
Foreign exchange adjustments QI\ETEESH% 6,854 (36,782) — (29,928)
Other non-cash movements Hihde BB 28 = 52,471 = 52,471
Net debt as at R-ZE-hAE+=-A=+—-H
31 December 2019 B ER 2,468,435 (21,618,930) (50,610) (19,201,105)
Cash flows RemnE (770,599)  (6,222,168) 11,988  (6,980,779)
Other changes (i) Hn &8 (i) — (10,412) (10,412)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEYTE AR (148) 175,345 — 175,197
Other non-cash movements HibIEgrkas) — 123,938 — 123,938
Net debt as at R-ZE-Zf+-HA=+-H
31 December 2020 B ER 1,697,688 (27,541,815) (49,034) (25,893,161)
(i) Other movements mainly comprise finance expenses recognised of leases. (i) Hib EEhF ZRFHEERU B

FX ©
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred as of 31 December

2020 is as follows:

35. EREE

BE-_Z-_ZEFE+-_A=+—HZT48

BHREENEARZHAT :

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—H
2020 2019
—EZE2F —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARETT
Property, plant and equipment, concession YIZE - B R - RS IER &
projects and construction projects BRIEE 12,539,792 12,414,657
Equity investments @A 240,298 240,298
12,780,090 12,654,955
36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 36. B IS IE (R
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
2020 2019
—EBERH —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBTT
Provided for the borrowings of a joint venture LA & QA A LEE N FIEFIREH
and an associate (Note 37) ER (5 37) 385,330 456,629
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of ME=FEFRENER (M a)
a third party (Note a) 18,438 —
403,768 456,629
(@ On 23 December 2020, the Group disposed 40% of ownership (@ R-ZT-_TF€+=-A=+=H"
interests in Dongfei Environment and the Dongfei Environment AEEH S ERKIERIE 0% K
becomes a third party. REMIRBEKAEE=T °
37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. SEEHBASRE
(a) Major shareholders (a) TERK
The following entities are the major shareholders of the Company UTEEEARTNTIERE
Place of
Name incorporation Ownership interests (%)
=t ATt FREER (%)
2020 2019
=B —ZT-NF
Yunnan Province Water ERAKE PRC 30.07 30.07
P
Beijing OriginWater I RBEKR PRC 24.02 24.02
Y
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. FE@BM AR F (&)

(Cont’d)
(b) Subsidiaries (b) B2 A

Interests in principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14. FEMBRBINMRE M L4 -
(c) Name and relationship with other major related (c) BEMAMEBBREREME

parties ZREBA MR

Name Relationship

=t B &

YHTHE Shareholder of Yunnan Province Water

ERERER ¢ EEAKBHRE

Haiyun Environmental Joint venture

BEIRR SN

Caiyun International Investment Limited Fellow subsidiary

("Caiyun Investment”) SES )N

TEBBRRERRAR ( [RERE])

YCIH State-owned enterprise

EEEREE Bl A 1%

YNDAMC State-owned enterprise

TEEEEERE Bl A %

(i-1) As at 25 November 2020, Yunnan Metropolitan Construction (i-1) RZZE-ZTF+—A=+5
Investment Co., Ltd., the shareholder of Yunnan Province H EEAKEzBRRERS
Water, changed the company name to Yunnan Health & BWMERREAEEFRA
Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.. CIEE N T%ﬁ?@'?ﬁ'ﬁ—ﬁﬁ%\

RRZEREERRA
(d) Key management personnel compensation (d) EEZEEABE M
Key management includes executive directors. The compensation paid HREBABBREITES - A
or payable to key management for employee services is shown below: BETRBOERER NI
BmM T
Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=+—-HLEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARKETT
Short-term employee benefits FEHEIE TR A 10,094 12,478
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

(e) Transactions with other state-owned enterprises (e)

37. T EBB AR S (&)
BEHMEALCEXETH

In accordance with HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, state-owned
enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by

the PRC Government are regarded as related parties of the Group.

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by
state-owned enterprises. During the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, the Group had transactions with state-owned enterprises
including, but not limited to, operating services, construction services
and equipment sales.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business on terms comparable to those with other entities
that are not state-owned. The Group has established its pricing
strategy and approval process for purchase and sales of products
and services. Such pricing strategy approval processes are consistently
applied regardless of the counterparties are state-owned entities or
not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of these
transactions are material significant related party transactions that
require separate disclosure except for the transactions with YCIH.

X5

BIEE B ERF 245 [ B8
BT ATPEBRSEESEEE
FINEECEREMMERRHER
BAREENBEE -

AEBEREEEEEHNLE
RETREEE -RBE_ZT -
EER-_FE-NF+=—A=+—
BLEEE AEBEEALEE
TR 5 BE(ETRRN)E LR
B ERBRBERREBHE -

WERGDEAEBOBEXEL
@ﬁiqj?ﬁz—lﬁﬁfﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
IV ELBRMETRET - AER
ERVEBEERERBEOTEER
W R BEAERIR - B E BRI
ERBEBERBER mMAwmEFH
REERBEEER KEEEESE
BEERNELR ARAESRR
RUERIHIFAETELRE

MEART2@EB IR, HAE
MEREEETOIZHRI -
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. FE@BM AR F (&)

(Cont’d)
(f) Significant transactions with related parties (f)
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related entities which are
carried out on terms agreed with the counter parties in the ordinary
course of business:

EEBINEERS
RBE_Z_ZFR_F-NF
TZA=+—BLFE x&H
HEREBZHTFINERER
BIER BTN FFETTATE
AR5 :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2020 2019
—E-EHF ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTTT

Sales and purchases of goods and services HERBEER RS
— Sales of goods and services to YCIH - HEEMERE TERRREE
— Sales of goods and services to other - HEE M MIRES T E b RARE T
related parties
— Purchase of construction services from - REFERESEREZERE
YCIH
— Purchase of construction services from - WWEERRE B RERE
Haiyun Environmental
— Purchase of goods from Beijing - RUARBKRBEELE
OriginWater
— Purchase of assets from Beijing - R REKEEEES
OriginWater
Finance costs of borrowings & A B & R AR
— Caiyun Investment - WEERE
— YHTH - THRIREE
- a joint venture and an associate - —ReB N a RiEE QT
Capital contribution by non-controlling IR H)TE
interests
- YNDAMC - EHEEEER

423,025 684,494
6,443 5,845
2,530,841 1,734,027
89,061 —
2,893 3,973

— 28,800

79,047 95,344
100,167 —
89 —
800,000 —
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/
purchases of goods and services

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting
period in relation to transactions with related parties:

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

37. T EBB AR S (&)

(9) BHE BEERKEHE
EENEREAHEZES
53
BT B SRR 7 22 55 B0 4 A
S ENCEN IO

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2020 2019
—%-%F -T-nF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Trade receivables for sales of goods and  $§&EE @ RRTEH S 5 fE W FIE

services

- YCIH - ZHEREE 2,298,727 2,871,575

— Haiyun Environmental - BERR 76,512 =

— Other related parties - HAbRaw A 19,997 19,997
2,395,236 2,891,572

The balances of trade receivables from sales of goods and services are
mainly denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and settled in
accordance with agreed terms with related parties.

HEEmEREHE S EIKKA
MEREEZAARBFE  EE
B8 RBRBEEBEBOHE

B RRAEE -
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. FE@BM AR F (&)

(Cont’d) (o) BgE BEERRES
(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ EEXENEAENNEES
purchases of goods and services (Cont’d) B (4E)

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2020 2019
—2-%% -T-h%
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Prepayments for purchase of goods and BB SR &R AN ZI1E

services

- YCIH - EEEREE 207,411 473,544
— Beijing OriginWater - I REKR 24,673 24,841
— YHTH - TERIKEER — 3,842

232,084 502,227

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBT T

Trade and other payables for purchase BEEmIREZES R

of goods and services E eI FRIA
- YCIH - EHEREE 1,642,456 1,631,117
- Beijing OriginWater - b REKIR 20,150 14,400
— Haiyun Environmental - BERR 75,948 =
1,738,554 1,645,517
Less: non-current portion of trade and B B REMENRIER
other payables FEEPERER (1,548,223) (1,285,215)
Current portion of trade and other B 5 RHE M ERRIEN
payables BRERER 5> 190,331 360,302
The trade and other payables for purchase of sales of goods and BEEMERB2ESH R HAME
services are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and are NHRELAAREE BER £
settled in accordance with agreed terms with related parties. B KRB R B T 40 F B0 R GR A

o

im

218 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R 2 "] Annual Report 2020 4 [& i &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. T EBBM AR S (&)
(Cont'd)

(h) Borrowings from a related party — Caiyun (h) mMEBFER — EER
Investment &
2020 2019
S Y
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Opening balance at 1 January R—B— BN 1,813,189 1,783,882
Repayment B (130,290) —
Currency translation differences BE¥mE = (116,897) 29,307
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—BA=+—BMERESR 1,566,002 1,813,189
The borrowings granted from Caiyun Investment are denominated FERERTHOMBRAETE
in USD, unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with B \EA - EZFFE XEAR
s R TN 2% (& df (6
agreed terms with Caiyun investment. %Eﬁiﬁ/t&é RS2 1 e AR AR M
= o
(i) Borrowings from a related party — YHTH () MEBLIER — EME
Hie &2 B
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHBA&ER = —
Receipt sk 4,023,976 =
Repayment BN (3,210,404) —
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BMERER 813,572 =
The borrowings granted from YHTH are denominated in RMB, EEEREER THERIUAAR
unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed BarE - EEE - EREFE I
terms with YHTH. ARBEEEMERER Y 21

FIEREE -
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. FEEBM AR B (&)
(Cont’d)
(j) Borrowings from a joint venture and an associate ()] Eé%ﬂﬂ&ﬂ%%ﬂﬂ%
FA
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AR T T
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWHNEs = -
Receipt Wk 88,000 —
Repayment BN (58,000) =
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=1+—BWEREH 30,000 —

220

(k)

The borrowings granted from a joint venture and an associate are

denominated in RMB, unsecured, bear interest and repayable in 2021.

Funds due from/to related parties
(i) Funds due from Beijing OriginWater

(k)

BERAKEERRRTHER
NARBE  EEW  REGF
B UBR-_ZB-_—FEHE-

ERBINESER
(i) g%jbﬁ':a%/‘lﬁﬂﬁ

2020 2019

ZEZEF —T-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETT

Opening balance at 1 January R—H— BHY B4R 24,311 24,316
Payment BEN 754 —
Receipt Wik (2) (5)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWERER 25,063 24,311

(ii) Funds due from other related parties

(ii) lgl/ﬁzﬂfﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂf\?ﬁ

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR T

Opening balance at 1 January R—BA—BWEM&RR 11,970 7,605
Payment (BN 8,146 4,518
Receipt &N (5,318) (153)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—HKHEREH 14,798 11,970
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Cont'd)

(k) Funds due from/to related parties (Cont’d)

(ii) Funds due from other related parties (Cont’d)

The funds grant to related parties are denominated in RMB,

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

(iii) Funds due to other related parties

37.

TEBRB LIRS (&)

(k) BRBREBANESER(H)
(i) BEREMEH T E

= (&)

R T RN E S UA
R¥E  EEF  BFE
RERERER -

(iii) ﬁgﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬂﬁi‘fﬁﬁﬁ

2020 2019

—E-EHF —T—-hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET

Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BHEM &R 2,065 1,492
Receipt ek 3,906 573
Repayment B (692) —
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BMERELR 5,279 2,065

The funds grant from related parties are denominated in RMB,

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

() Guarantee

BB TR ESHUAR
BatE  EER - BNER
EREBREE -

n #BHF

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-RE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARETR
Guarantee provided by YHTH in respect — EEIRTHRS B g AN 5 BE IR EHH
of the borrowings of the Group R 537,450 387,450
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-RE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Guarantee provided to related parties in Bt & &R 8 KBS A RIHER
respect of the borrowing of a joint I A B 77 SR (LA FE AR
venture and an associate 385,330 456,629
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38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

222

3. A RRIEBEEEMFEX

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE R&E 172,327 165,499
Receivables under service concession RIS FF T 2 2 HE T HY
arrangements e R IE 75,809 76,581
Investments in subsidiaries RITE AR A 9,360,945 7,641,220
Intangible assets myEAE 3,681 3,453
Investments accounted for using the equity AR EARRRIRE
method 791,549 1,036,601
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At e RIA 1,112 7,086
Prepayments TETFRIE 384,361 384,359
Financial asset at fair value through other NAFEFEZEBEZEA
comprehensive income HEgma RS emEE 76 76
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSHEE 155,182 91,855
10,945,042 9,406,730
Current assets REBEE
Inventory 2= 26 10
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E b EUGRIE 1,733,048 1,245,438
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGIE R 8,455,880 8,818,532
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 1,061 1,781
Restricted cash ZRR IR 79,250 113,525
Cash and cash equivalents Be RIReEEY 41,077 713,621
10,310,342 10,892,907
Total assets mEE 21,255,384 20,299,637
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to ordinary AR EBERBRRELES
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [N 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves (note a) HtbRE (i a) 2,365,076 2,327,617
Retained earnings (note a) REB&BF (M a) 235,524 201,500
3,793,813 3,722,330
Perpetual capital instruments KABARTA 500,000 2,610,000
Total equity R 4,293,813 6,332,330
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38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38. A RAAEEREBER(A)

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T T
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings & 5,770,783 6,747,138
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings & 7,261,201 4,960,200
Trade and other payables E 5 RAMERIE 3,929,587 2,259,969
11,190,788 7,220,169
Total liabilities wWaE 16,961,571 13,967,307
Total equity and liabilities EaRAEATE 21,255,384 20,299,637

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors

of the Company on 31 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf.

Director

5=

ARRBEEABRKAARRAESFEN
ZC—FZA=ZT—HELELAHTIA

ITRA/EE -

Director

5=
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38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

224

(@) Movement of other reserves and retained earnings

38.

ARBEEEER(AE)
(a) HEftfBERFAERNEEH

Capital  Statutory Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
BRAERE EERE RKREER mer
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTnR AR%®Trx AR¥TR
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZB—NF—A—BWN&EE 2,195,657 99,743 203,836 2,499,236
Profit for the year F R — — 208,863 208,863
Transfer to statutory reserve Ly e e — 32,217 (32,217)
Dividends for the year ended BE-Z—-N\H+=A8
31 December 2018 =t+—HLEFERE — — (178,982) (178,982)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZ-ZE—h&+=-A=+-—H
EE 2,195,657 131,960 201,500 2,529,117
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-E-_ZEF—-A—HHN&EH 2,195,657 131,960 201,500 2,529,117
Profit for the year F P FI == = 250,465 250,465
Transfer to statutory reserve EEAERE — 37,459 (37,459) —
Dividends for the year ended HE-ZT-NF+=A
31 December 2019 =+—HIEFERE = —  (178,982)  (178,982)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R=-Z-ZfF+=-A=+—H
K55 2,195,657 169,419 235,524 2,600,600
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
The emoluments of individual director and supervisor of the Company

30, EEEA R ER
() EERESEHHS
AEBEN, EAARTEAL

paid/payable by the Group are presented as below: EREENME 25T

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020 (i) BE-_FE_-_ZFF+—

A=+—HULFE
Employer's
Allowances contribution
and other  to pension
Discretionary ~ benefits scheme
Fees Salary  bonuses BHR EEEAS Total
Name of directors/supervisors [ EVEE ne & BERL  HAER HEHER Foh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR ARETR AR%T:R
Executive Directors HNEE
Mr. Yu Long (general manager) TEEL(8ER) 10 2,028 640 123 = 2,801
M. Yang Fang BrEL 100 53 138 110 - 881
Non-executive Directors* FufES
Mr. Li Jialong PREAE(R_T_TE
(Appointed on 16 July 2020) tAt+ABEZE) - - - - - -
Mr. Dai Richeng HAKAE (RZF2%F
(Appointed on 12 October 2020) TB+-BEZEE) - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Tao BERE(R-Z-%F
(Resigned on 16 July 2020) tA+ARER) = = = = = =
Mr. He Yuanping METAE(R-Z-2F
(Resigned on 12 October 2020) +A+-B&E) - - - - - -
Ms. Li Bo FREL - - - - - -
Mr. Chenyong RELE - - - - - -
Supervisors EE
Ms. Zhang Ling RR&T 3 - - - - 3
Mr. Huang Vi BHEAE - 439 - 4 - 486
Mr. Long Limin ENREE = — — — — —
Mr. Zhu Zhen KiREE - - - - - -
Mr. Tan Hairui ERHEE 3 - - - - 3
Ms. Tang Shuang Bt - 208 - Lt} - 251
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTEE
Mr. Liu Chuen Kong BWI%E 190 - - - - 190
Mr. Ma Shihao SEREE(R-T-%F
(Resigned on 12 October 2020) THET-AEM) 75 - - - - 75
Mr. Hu Song BRAE(R-Z-TF
(Resigned on 14 July 2020) tATEAER) 50 - - - - 50
Mr. Zhou Beihai ALEEE(R-_Z-%%
(Appointed on 12 October 2020) TATZHEZf) 13 - - - - 13
Mr. Zhong Wei BREE(R-Z-FF
(Appointed on 12 October 2020) +H+-REZ{E) 13 - - - - 13
517 3,208 778 323 — 4,826
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d)
(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2019

39. EERARER (AF)

(a) EEREEHNMNE(H)
(i) BE=—F—AF+=

226

A=1+—HULFE
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
and other  to pension
Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees Salary bonuses 2R ESRAL Total
Name of directors/supervisors E3/EEi4 ik ¢ BETA  EHBR HEEX @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T:H
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Yu Long (general manager) THREZ(BER) 10 1,990 - 123 - 2123
Mr. Yang Fang BA%A 100 1,010 - 110 - 1,220
Non-executive Directors* ForEs
Mr. Yang Tao BELA - - - - - -
Mr. He Yuanping METEE - - - - - -
Ms. Li Bo FRat - - - - - -
Mr. Chenyong REEERZT-NE
(Appointed on 13 June 2019) ~NATZHEZA) - — - — - —
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BHEFAE(R-T-NE
(Resigned on 13 June 2019) ~NATZEEE) - — - — - —
Supervisors gz
Ms. Zhang Ling RRET 36 - - - - 36
M. Huang Yi EE T 35 193 250 85 - 863
Mr. Long Limin EFRELE - - - — — —
Mr. Zhu Zhen vk - - - - - —
Mr. Tan Hairui ERNEE 36 - - - - 36
Ms. Tang Shuang BRI 60 163 110 74 - 407
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTEE
Mr. Liu Chuen Kong BiLEE 176 - - - - 176
Mr. Ma Shihao BtEEE 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Hu Song ik 100 - - - — 100
653 3,656 360 392 — 5,061
3 There were no fees or other emoluments payable to non-executive * FRIEEMNIEHITES

directors during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:

none).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2019: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2020, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2019: nil).

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as directors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were RMB451,000 (2019: RMB486,000).
The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
were RMB3,572,000 (2019: RMB3,233,000).

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

30. EEEAI R ER (F)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EENERRBANRERE
A
BE-F-FTFF+-A=+—8
LEE B E R
AR AR S AE BAE I (—
—NE )

BRENEBREMESE=
TRANKE
BE-—Z-TF+-A=+—8
LR AREYEARRES
R AEAE= XA RAE (=2
—hE ) -

FRANES EEHNIE

FEZERBEEERSX &
ANER - EERK HAtb
XEHNEHR

RZZE_ZEF+_A=+—8"
BMELNES EENIEHEE
LHAEERAY T ANER ¥
BERREMRZEH(ZE—N
F )

EERFEEREBE_ZT_ZF
+-ZA=+—HALEFEELA
NAEEED RSk E KN H
B 4258 A AR #451,000L (=&
—NE : AR#486,0007T) ° &
ERHERBE_SE-_ZTE+ =
A=+ BLFEEHEEALAR
AIEBRENEMREREE R X
NkERHFWNEBEARARE
3,572,000 (ZF—hF : AR
#3,233,0007T) °
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Five-year Financial Summary

hFMBHE
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF HEEHERRHEMEES KE
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE =
INCOME
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-BF —T-NF ZT-NF ZEE—tF ZT—XKF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ART R AREF AREFTI AR®FTT ARETFIT
Revenue U 28 8,396,630 6,538,024 6,255,628 5,142,242 2,865,890
Gross profit EH| 2,096,132 1,832,313 1,498,009 1,304,724 879,500
Profit before income tax Fir 15 %5 B & 7 502,624 677,549 644,226 702,244 516,734
Profit for the year F 1N 5 A 341,311 553,808 496,715 544,000 414,266
Profit for the year attributable to: AN ALTREIEET
Ordinary shareholders of the Company  Z&A2Q R T @K E 223,095 398,153 397,753 422,812 388,093
Total comprehensive income for the FNGREWEETE
year 353,320 572,023 323,974 695,742 389,746
Total comprehensive income AR AT ELERE
attributable to: I 18 %8 -
Ordinary shareholders of the Company — ZK2A 7] ¥ i@ I & & 235,104 416,368 225,012 574,554 363,573
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HHEHEEAEER
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEZBRE —T-NF ZT-NF ZE—tF ZT—KF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR Tt ARBTT ARETT
Assets BE
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 36,676,593 29,164,775 23,363,751 19,092,066 12,972,400
Total current assets MENE EMEEE 10,576,221 10,704,357 9,310,095 8,003,983 7,085,974
Total assets BEME 47,252,814 39,869,132 32,673,846 27,096,049 20,058,374
Equity and liabilities ERnkEE
Equity attributable to: AT bR
Ordinary shareholders of the Company A Q &) & & A% fZ R 5,175,361 4,749,316 4,556,822 4,536,565 4,240,569
Perpetual capital instruments KXKABARTHE 500,000 2,610,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 2,000,000
Non-controlling interests I 12 iR = 1,932,201 1,186,669 1,177,450 949,384 1,005,890
Total equity RSB 7,607,562 8,545,985 6,934,272 6,685,949 7,246,459
Non-current liabilities EME AT 26,292,531 20,760,860 16,527,163 12,490,571 7,111,213
Current liabilities BB E 13,352,721 10,562,287 9,212,411 7,919,529 5,700,702
Total liabilities BfERaE 39,645,252 31,323,147 25,739,574 20,410,100 12,811,915
Total equity and liabilities HERaERRE 47,252,814 39,869,132 32,673,846 27,096,049 20,058,374
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2020

IRIE -

INTRODUCTION

Since its inception, Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”

r “Yunnan Water”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we") has been
specializing in the field of environmental protection and maintaining a stable
and high-quality service level, to provide customers with customized integrated
solutions and core technology integration services in the areas of water supply,
wastewater, ecological environment, solid waste treatment, waste incineration
and power generation, transformation of sludge into resources and photovoltaic
power generation. The Group actively plays its role as corporate citizen to fulfill its
environmental protection responsibility, strives to improve the eco-environmental
quality, promotes sustainable development, creates eco-friendly cities with
technologies and funds and forges ahead with a strategic positioning as a leading
urban environmental protection integrated services provider in China.

In the face of the sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19")
in the 2020 Financial Year, the Group immediately supported the pandemic
prevention and control work, timely understood and managed the capacity and
operation condition of medical waste disposal facilities in the affected area, and
fully guided and supervised the safe disposal of medical waste in the affected
area. During the Spring Festival holiday of the 2020 Financial Year, all the cadres
and staff members of the medical waste disposal project did not take a leave of
absence. Under the unified arrangement of the Group, they worked hard in the
front line and took resolute and effective measures to deal with COVID-19 medical
waste in a timely, orderly, efficient and harmless way, and jointly fought against
COVID-19 with a meager strength.

In order to enable stakeholders (including shareholders and investors, customers,
employees, suppliers and subcontractors, regulatory authorities, government
authorities and the society to, as well as non-governmental organizations
("NGOs") and the media) to understand our environmental, social and governance
("ESG") policies, measures and performance. The environmental, social and
governance report (the “Report”) has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide")
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

e KERHRE2020

FE
ERAKBERERNDERARD(TRARIHE
BABDRENBAR(TAERIKIEM)
BRAR—BEFIWARMNRFREE X
NIRE  SEEMRBKFE AEPRERME
ok~ 0auK - ERRIRIE - BIEERIE - R
BE SREARECEERAREESTEA
8 B B8 WOR T AR O BT R KRS - A
SEEBHBECEARAE  FTHERRN
B BORELERRREE HIYPUFE
BERNARMMES - AERFERFEW
m WFEPIAE?EE’]WFDI&E%Z? PR 7% 7 ] &
BRI R

R2020 BLFE BE AT AEEN(FE
%ﬁum SARRE AEBE—BHHEIFR

BT RBEEREEEREBEREYE
Eﬁm ENMBETER WENEEZFE
RERBITEREEMEZ2EE TIE - 1£2020
FREENRESHEBRY BEFEWEEREE
ENEE®TBRIE — AKE  ELAEEHN
F—HEBTEMEE K KREBRENE
e REBRF B BECEETTES
BEEY  UMEZOARRANEHTES -

AEBRESVNEABT (BERRERRKRE
E BP RE HEBEROEE REHRE
BN HRE Rt & - AR IEBUN A4 ([ B

Jﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬁj)ﬂﬁ% ) TREMOHRE HELE

A ([ESG]) 23R ~ #EHE KRB - BRIET B
/\’\%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/‘j((%xﬁﬂ) %Lm%ﬁﬁﬂ
Meg—+LtmAZRE HEREARBRSHE

SI(TESGIESI ) AREL T AR - Ti%&a/ui&
S REE] -
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2020

& KERHRE2020

IRIE -

ESG Management Structure

The Group has appointed the relevant designated personnel (“Designated
Personnel”) to collect relevant information on its ESG aspects of the Group for
the preparation of the Report. The Designated Personnel shall be composed of
the major subsidiaries, management and employees of each function, and report
to the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company from time to time. At
the same time, the Designated Personnel are also responsible for assisting the
Group to review its operations and identify relevant ESG matters, evaluating the
importance of the above to our businesses and to each stakeholder, as well as
examining and assessing the performance in different aspects such as environment,
health and safety, labour standards, product and service responsibility in the
ESG areas. The Board has set the general direction of the Group’s ESG strategy,
assesses and determines relevant ESG risks, includes ESG matters in the Group's
risk management and internal monitoring system, and ensures the effectiveness of
ESG risk management and internal control mechanism.

REPORTING SCOPE

The information disclosed in the Report covers 191 water supply, wastewater
and solid waste treatment project of the Group in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") (excluding the Group’s newly constructed projects in 2019 financial
year and projects outside the PRC). After the data collection system of the Group
becomes more mature and the sustainable development work is deepened, the

Group will continue to extend the scope of disclosure in the future.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG Guide in the Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules of the Main Board of The Stock Exchange. Details of
the corporate governance practice of the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from page 70 to 87 in this annual report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report covers the ESG activities, challenges and measures taken of the Group
during the period from the year ended 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the
“2020 Financial Year")

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group attaches importance to stakeholders and their opinions on the Group's
business and ESG matters. In order to understand and respond to the concerns of
stakeholders, the Group maintains close communication with major stakeholders.
In formulating the operation strategy and ESG measures, the Group will take into
account the expectations of the stakeholders, and through mutual cooperation,
the Group will continuously improve its performance and create greater value for
the society.
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2020
R e MNEIaWRE2020

Through different stakeholders’ participation and communication channels, the

Group will bring stakeholders’ expectations into the Group’s operation and ESG

strategy. The communication channels and expectations of stakeholders are as

follows:

Stakeholders

Communication Channels

BBATANKNELEARBRRESE  ~&HE
ERRFNDENPRETAREE N L EKRESGE
BREF  -HOENEBRENPENT :

Expectations

FHE BERE BE
Investors and shareholders o Annual general meeting and other o Compliance operation
shareholder meetings . Information transparency
° Financial reports o Protection of rights and interests and
. Announcements and notices by the the fair treatment of shareholders
Group . Return on investment
o Company website and e-mail ° Improve the quality of products and
o News reports, announcements and services
circulars o Risk management
o Results announcements o Corporate governance
o Roadshow o Market position
o Conference and teleconference
. Site inspection
KEERKER . BRAFREREMBERAS . aREE
. M EmE . ERERE
. SEAERBY J REEZLBERATEFSE
. EEEBERED o % & B8
J MER - AERBK J RAERERBES
. RERMH J [ B & 32
J HOR J TEER
. EEVE RN . 3% i
. RI5ER
Customers o Customer support hotline and email o Stable relationship
o Meetings o Products quality
o Customer satisfaction survey o Protect customer privacy
o Visit and communication o Business integrity and morality
zF o BEEXFHRAGRER o 12 B 1R
. = . EmEE
J EFPmEEHRASE . RIZE P AL
. FohEm . BRBEEEE
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2020
B M ® R EA 85452020

Stakeholders

Communication Channels

Expectations

F0E BERE BE
Employees o Training, seminars and briefing ° Career development opportunities
o Employee performance appraisal and e Health and safety
performance evaluation meetings o Remuneration and benefits
. Culture, public welfare and sports o Working environment
activities o Protection of employees’ rights and
o Working meeting and special interests
meeting o Staff care
. Face to face talks, email contact and e Staff communication
teleconference
. Labor contract
o Opinion collection
o Career development communication
mechanism
o Staff care activities
o Anonymous communication channels
8 J gl g REN g J ES 31958 1

\
/

Suppliers and partners

HIETE A (B

232
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"R

BETHEMERLARBRFEES
Xt R KREBEIED
ITEEZLEEGH
EEHEH EBHEBLEETE
EHam

EREW
BEHRBEES
STHEESE
EXZEBREB

Business meetings, e-mail and
telephone

Review and assessment
Regular meetings
Procurement and tender meetings
Telephone follow-up

Opinion survey

Instant messaging software
Ere® EBRER
FErzEF G

EHEHE

REHRES

BEO G

BERAE

B 8 A B
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o Long-term cooperation

o Business ethics and reputation
o Fair tenders

. RHESIERE

. Fﬁ%Lm HER
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Stakeholders
HHE

Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2020
R e MNEIaWRE2020

Communication Channels

BERE

Expectations
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of the stakeholders
on the ESG performance of the Group, the Group adopts a systematic method to
conduct the annual materiality assessment. The specific work steps are as follows:

234

Identify Related
Issues

Collect Feedback
from Stakeholders

W gD
E1EC

Identify Important
Issues

WA EE

e

Validation
)

EEHRMG

BEERTRENEHAREZESCRRNE
AEML  ARERAERGEHHEETE
FESRBFEIF ABIESBOT :

¢ With the assistance of consultants, the Group has identified and determined the ESG issues list of the Group in the 2020 Financial
Year based on the business development of the Group;

o REEERERIGE MIIBRRNEBNERER - BAIWHEE T ARE2020 HEERERE He RERREEE

 The list includes 13 topics with significant impact on economy, environment and society, and high impact on stakeholder
assessment, covering four major areas: "“environmental protection”, “employment and labour practices”, “business practices” and
"community investment".

BEEFHENGE REMMENTEREZE REFNETENYERERSNIEEE  BE [BHRRE] - [ERRST
BRI [ZEER] N (HREE ] PR - D,

~

® Taking the issues in the list as the core content of the assessment, the questionnaire was designed and distributed to stakeholders to
rate on the importance of various sustainable development issues to themselves and their impact on the environment and society,
and respond to any open-ended questions;

e UBEBENHBEIEAEEHBT AR OATRAE - WEBENHEAE  ERHOERSHEUSERRFAEHESNEENL &
HIRE RGN EIRET D MO EFH AR

® The major stakeholders covered in this assessment include but are not limited to employees and management.

s ARHMEFBEZEZTERNE  BRETRNETIREEE -

J
® Through the analysis of the questionnaire results, the materiality of 13 topics was evaluated and the materiality matrix of the 2020
Financial Year was compiled;
 BBHHBERIN - FHE13ERENEZ MW RR20200 B FEE LR
* Reviewed stakeholders' opinions and the results of importance assessment, discussed with management and determined the key
disclosure of the Report and the key points to enhance ESG performance in the future.
s FHIHMEERAEEUNGER  REEENBUBERSREEHUARARREARE - H8REERNES -
J
~
® The materiality matrix was examined by the management of the Group.
s EEMBERIHAREEREER
J
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In 2020 Financial Year, the ESG materiality matrix of the Group is as follows:

FR20208 A - AREBEVESGE Z 1 B fE 40
T

Employees’ Health & Safety
EERRERZE

Employee Development and Training
1 B 3R 85|

Emissions Control

BRI

Employment Practices

REED

Water Consumption

HEDETENEERE

Waste Management

IKERIEFE

Materiality Matrix
EEMTEEEE

Anti-corruption
RES

Corporate Social Responsibility
BEHEET

Environmental Impact Management
REREER

BEERME R

Supply Chain Management
HERE R

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS' ASSESSMENTS

l

Prevention of Child or Forced Labour
[ 1EE Takoa s T

Service Quality and Standard
RIS E 8 RiR%E

Energy Consumption

BEIRUHFE

SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
K  RENLENRETE

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective management

policies and internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed

contents comply with the requirements of the ESG Guide.

CONTACT THE GROUP

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from stakeholders. You

can provide valuable advice on the Report or its performance in sustainable

development, and contact the Group through the following ways:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716
E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

236

A1l.

Emissions

The Group believes that it is crucial to comply with applicable
environmental laws, regulations and policies for the long-term
development and success of the Group. Therefore, we continue to
keep abreast with the policy guidance of the industry, analyse the
latest applicable environmental protection laws, regulations, policies
as well as the best domestic and foreign industry practices, and
timely update our policies and procedures in relation to environmental
protection to ensure that our environmental management is in line
with the latest standards.

The Group is actively participating in environmental protection. All the
Group's subsidiaries are required to strictly comply with the Group’s
internal management system in relation to environmental protection
in order to meet the relevant legal requirements, including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the Law
of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment, the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the
Air Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong Kong and the applicable
pollutant emission standards formulated by local governments. During
the 2020 Financial Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to

environment.
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EXHAUST GAS EMISSIONS
The Group continues to renovate treatment technologies and to

optimize its production management system, aiming to effectively
achieve the annual emission reduction targets for the operation
project, and therefore has received government recognition and
praise. For odour generated from wastewater treatment, the Group
has planted greenbelts around the gas sources and collected the gas
for biotreatment in order to meet national emission standards. For
hazardous gas generated from solid waste treatment, the Group has
introduced international advanced technologies and continued to
enhance the flue gas treatment equipment to ensure that harmful
components contained in the flue gas have been effectively removed
and the emission standards are met. We have also formulated a
completed job post system and detailed operating procedures to
strengthen the management and monitoring of the exhaust gas
treatment process, pay close attention to the working conditions,
strictly control the exhaust gas collection and treatment process,
and identify and solve problems in time, so as to ensure the stable,
efficient and normal operation of each exhaust gas treatment
equipment.

Through the above measures, the Group’s emission of various kinds of
exhaust gas in 2020 Financial Year has decreased. Our emissions for

2020 Financial Year are summarized as follows:

BE R IK
FEBTHERRIBRM  T&
SEEEGE  WMiGEESR
B BT AE 4 B2 3B 4F 1 S K B8 F B0
HER EMESTZRBFH
BEMAFEF o S IHKEEBIE
PEEAMNRR  RAKBRERR
EER B EREE RS R A
RARERETEDRESFTE
TE - EEESBERF AR
BRE -HUEBEREBETELE
MEZTRE  HMSERRLE
By NE Y EREIRREET
BN MRARERERTHNE
FTED - REEZRPE - BRI
i 7 52 = #9 e (22 I & A0 5 A O 12
ERE - MBEREEBIENE
BMEEE  BYDEETIOR - B
ZHEROBEMEIEBE R
R 25 IR 00 WROR A RE - A TRIR 5 B
REEBRENRT M LW
BT -

MiEA EEME - AEET20208
BREENSREEIEREH BN
T % o R20200 LFE » e FIHY

BR¥FEREHAET
Type of emission BREE Unit By 2020 2019
Particulate matter (PM) FERLYI(PM) tonne 73 14.03 15.27
Sulfur oxide (SO) Hanso) tonne i3 25.50 35.05
Nitrogen oxide (NO,) AALHNO) tonne 73 194.97 231.08
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GREENHOUSE GAS (“GHG") EMISSIONS
Our GHG emissions arise mainly from the consumption of electricity.

The Group has implemented various energy conservation measures to
minimize GHG emissions. Please refer to the section headed “Energy
Consumption” below for details. Through the implementation of the
measures, the employees’ awareness of reducing GHG emissions has
been increased. In 2020 Financial Year, the Group only owns a small
number of office vehicles and consumes limited fuel. Therefore, the
Group does not collect any information on fuel.

In 2020 Financial Year, the Group’'s GHG emission intensity is
approximately 0.04144 tonnes of CO,e per sq.m., representing an
increase of approximately 16.34% compared with the 2019 Financial
Year. This is mainly due to the expansion of business, resulting in an
increase in GHG emissions. Our GHG emissions for the 2020 Financial
Year are summarized as follows:

BERE(BERE IR
BMMEEREFEREIZRERN
EHHRE HMCERSERL
it WEBRDBENLEER
BHRE - FHBEB2ETX R
HRE— 7 - BBERZTE
ETRAVBERBHRNERE
FriEm - M2020 R F B - A%
EEFELEN BRI ERHER
B IR AR - B LA SR B 3
S AL A B Y BUR -

R2020MBEE  AEEHAE
REBHMZEEHH0.04144 — &
fbix g & BEF 5K - #2019
Bf B E AB EE 8 N £916.34% o
HFrZRAREKERERAR
FEE P E 20 - M 202081 BLF
E - RAMNAZEREHEREHMM

m
Indicators' BE Unit By 2020 2019
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) ERRERBHR tC0,e = (7 = =
(8E1) gE
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) EREZEREREHEN tC0,e W= Sk 234,281 201,385
(8E2) gE
Total GHG emissions BERBHEHAE tC0,e W= &1t 234,281 201,385
EE
GHG emissions intensity? BEREHNEE tCO,e/sq.m. L = |7 0.04144 0.035623
EE/RE
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Note:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent with
reference to, but not limited to, the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Research
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, the
latest emission factors of China’s regional power grid base line, “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the HKEX, and the “Global Warming Potential Values” from
the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report (2014) (AR5).

2. As of 31 December 2020, the Group's gross floor area under the reporting
scope is approximately 5,653,329.90 sq.m. (As of 31 December 2019:
approximately 5,495,573.61 sg.m.). This data will also be used to calculate
other density data.

3. As the calculation method has been adjusted to comply with “How to prepare
an ESG Report — Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the HKEX, the information for the 2019 Financial Year has been
revised.

SOLID WASTE TREATMENT BUSINESS
The Group has always insisted on providing customers with high-

quality solid waste treatment services, actively focusing on solid
waste treatment issues and continuously developing solid waste
technologies as well as promoting the recycling of resources. Also,
we install and use monitoring equipment in accordance with relevant
national regulations to monitor the discharge of pollutants in real-time
and disclose the data of pollution discharge. The Group has special
personnel to supervise the implementation of solid waste treatment
and disposal measures, and timely collect, transport and treat solid
waste according to the regulatory requirements and the disposal
measures formulated to eliminate the pollution impact. In addition,
we monitor the content of solid waste such as heavy metal from time
to time, track information of comprehensive utilization of solid waste
and expand the way of comprehensive utilization. The Group strictly
follows the hazardous waste treatment and disposal plan to regulate
and dispose the hazardous waste, so as to effectively prevent the
occurrence of secondary pollution on the site.

e

1, BERBHERBE R AL
BEE27  U2BEEETRR
R EIRME T AT Rt R AT S A
BEIAEEFGNENCEERE
BERTEE  CEFTARER
) EWBEHNTHREEEE
ARBETRE T~ B P R AR RO (IR ]
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EEBEE) -

2. HZE2020612A8318  "EBFAT
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The Group collects, transports and disposes of medical waste in time,
and takes effective measures to prevent the loss, leakage or diffusion
of medical waste. In the event of major infectious disease outbreaks
and other emergencies, the Group will take effective measures to
dispose of pandemic medical waste in a timely, orderly, efficient
and harmless manner to prevent the second transmission or spread
of pandemic disease and to ensure the proper handling of medical
waste. At the same time, the Group’s medical waste treatment
process only produces a small amount of non-toxic and sterile residue
and no wastewater, which can truly achieve harmless and minimized
disposal.

In addition, through years of technology development and engineering
application, the Group has successfully applied pyrolysis carbonization
technology to sludge, domestic waste and other organic solid
waste fields. In the 2020 Financial Year, the Group hosted the
sludge carbonization technology seminar as part of the “Sludge
Alliance Series Activities” organised by E20 Environmental Platform,
and discussed the technology and market development of sludge
carbonization with specially invited leaders from leading enterprises
in water industry, experts, scholars, and practical colleagues in
sludge field. The sludge carbonization project of the Group’s sewage
treatment plant in Wangdu County of Baoding city has been put
into operation since its completion in January 2020, focusing on the
treatment of sludge with 80% moisture content, with a treatment
capacity of 40 tonnes per day. The whole system adopts full
automatic control, and the high temperature oil and gas generated
from pyrolysis will be reused as fuel in the system, thus significantly
reducing external energy consumption. The only carbonized product
discharged from the project is biochar, which has the characteristics
of high nutrient content, large specific surface area, stable properties,
and the ability to reduce the effectiveness of heavy metals in soil and
their migration into plants. Therefore, it can be used as a resource
through a variety of channels, and can fully meet the standards of
landscaping, land improvement, agricultural grade-B, brick making and
cement clinker.
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This technology is not only suitable for sludge, but also can be used
for separated disposal or co-disposal of various types of organic solid
wastes, such as domestic waste, kitchen waste, excrement, agricultural
and forestry waste. It can fundamentally realize the reduction,
harmlessness, stabilization and recycling of organic solid wastes, and
reduce air pollution, atmospheric haze and global climate change from
the source. The Group is committed to promoting the upgrading of
industry standards and improving the system, and forming a benign
interaction between technology, standards and system to protect
the ecological environment. With the continuous innovation and
upgrading of sludge pyrolysis carbonization technology, the Group’s
latest achievements in agricultural application and development of
organic solid waste biochar will drive changes in standards and
policies in agricultural application of biochar. When the problems of
product application are resolved, this project will play an important
role in solving the current dilemma faced by the treatment and
disposal of urban sludge in the PRC.

In 2020 Financial Year, the solid waste treatment volumes of our solid

waste treatment business are summarized as follows:

ZEMAEBEARITE  RE
ARAREES R BEEFSR -
HE BEMEEVNEZHRUEHK
BEREZEMNEBREEXHR
BRE {RALERAEREREN
el EBEL  BELMER
£ - XHORBE LR D RRITR -
ARABEAREHEZHRABRE
b o REBRNRETERAE
EMFTE B E - AL AR
£ HEMNRETE  RELE
RIR o BEE TR AV B(L B Al A
TEHRIF AR AEBHARE
BEEYIK R ERAMERTNR
MR SEEHEVRERSE
ERTMRENBRES -BE
mEMMBBERRE  NEBYH
PR OR S A B B SRS R R IR B
EfEBORESEELERE
EHWREER °

202000 B E - B PIA) E R R
BEXNEERESHBOMNOT

Type of solid waste treated FEEEENESR Unit 2020 2019
Hazardous wastes B EN tonnes 17,520 22,487
Medical wastes BEEY tonnes 40,734 42,906
Domestic wastes BRI IR tonnes 399,078 336,413
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HAZARDOUS WASTES

The operation of the Group does not produce a significant amount of

hazardous waste.

NON-HAZARDOUS WASTES

The Group also generates non-hazardous wastes in its daily operation
of business, which are mainly dewatering sludge generated in the
process of our sewage treatment and water supply and slag and fly
ash generated in the process of the Group’s solid waste treatment.
The Group has comprehensive management system in place for all
kinds of solid wastes generated in the process of its production and
operation, strictly complies with national discharge standards and

adopts effective measures to reduce and properly dispose of solid

wastes.

For solid wastes such as sludge generated in the process of sewage
treatment and water supply, the Group strictly follows relevant
national policies, regulations, industry standards and the requirements
of environmental impact assessment report approval to establish
comprehensive production management system and process control
system in order to manage the measurement, transportation and
disposal of solid wastes to prevent secondary pollution. Besides, the
Group possesses advanced membrane technology in the industry
and has actively carried out research and development in order
to effectively reduce solid wastes generated during the operation

process, and to transform the produced sludge into resources with

sludge carbonization technology.
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For solid wastes generated in the process of solid waste treatment,
the Group adopts a number of comprehensive treatment measures
including classification or sealed storage in strict compliance with
national policies and industry standards to achieve the purpose of
harmless and recycling treatment, and sets up safety warning signs
according to regulatory requirements. All disposals of such solid
wastes are carried out in strict compliance with national policies and
regulations and requirements of government-approved environmental
impact assessment report.

For the daily office operation, the Group puts great efforts to
promote paperless office and use OA system and video meeting
system by connecting OA platform with various departments of the
Company to reduce waste arising from document circulation. The
Group exercises control over the purchase of stationeries such as
paper, implement strict registration system in respect of the collection
of office supplies and encourage employees to print on both sides of
paper to reduce waste of paper. In 2020 Financial Year, the Group
only uses a small amount of paper, so the Group does not collect
any information about paper. The Group also advocates the reuse of
office stationeries including envelopes, folders, etc. Besides, the Group
encourages not to use disposable tableware such as paper cups in the
office and encourages the purchase of rechargeable office equipment
in order to reduce the usage of disposable batteries. Through the
implementation of the above-mentioned measures, the employees’
awareness on waste management has been enhanced.

e KERHRE2020
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In 2020 Financial Year, the Group’s non-hazardous wastes emission
intensity is approximately 0.08794 tonnes per sg.m., representing an
increase of approximately 8.77% as compared with the 2019 Financial
Year. The main reason is the expansion of business which leads to an
increase in the non-hazardous wastes generation. Our non-hazardous

wastes disposals for 2020 Financial Year are summarized as follows:

R2020 NEE - AEBRES
BEM R U FE #) 50.0879418 /72
SE K EH20190 EE R
ENA8TI% - HFXZRERE
BEREAESBEEFMELENE
EFEEYEHEMEM - 72020
HHFE ASENEEEME
EXRBEBADT :

Type of non-hazardous wastes EEREVES Unit By 2020 2019
Slag BE tonnes W 72,385 80,070
Fly ash RIX tonnes i3 13,755 10,160
Sludge A tonnes L 411,032 354,104
Total emissions of non-hazardous wastes EERYHHAE tonnes W 497,172 444,334
Non-hazardous wastes emission intensity EEEMBENEE tonnes/sq.m. W,/ 0.08794 0.08085
BETHA
WASTEWATER DISCHARGE AND TREATMENT 75 7K BE R e BR 3R

Wastewater generated from the operation of sewage treatment and
water supply facilities mainly contains small amount of domestic
sewage and equipment flushing water and was discharged after being
processed and meeting the required standards. Wastewater generated
from the operation of solid waste treatment facilities was recycled or
be discharged into the municipal pipe network after being processed
and meeting the required standard, striving to achieve “Zero
Discharge”. After being processed by the Group’s sewage treatment

facilities, our emissions of chemical oxygen demand (COD) and
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ammonia nitrogen (NH3-N) were reduced by approximately 128,311
tonnes and 33,892 tonnes respectively (reduced by approximately
122,140 tonnes and 13,261 tonnes respectively in 2019 Financial
Year). The wastewater pollutants emissions by the Group for 2020

Financial Year are summarized as follows:

128,311 M8 % 33,892 MW (2019 84 X
FEDRBIRT #122,14088 &
13,261 M8) o 202081 B F /¥ -
REE®FKEGRMPEMERIRE
T

Type of wastewater pollutants FRERNER Unit B 2020 2019
cop cop tonnes W 14,994 15,611
NH3-N NH3-N tonnes L 953 1,032
Use of Resources A2. ERfEHA

As one of leading integrated service providers in the municipal
wastewater treatment and water supply industries in China, the Group
always takes the environmental, social and governmental impact
into consideration in its core operating practices and strictly controls
the resource consumption of each project according to the principle
of economic operation as well as strives to increase the resource
utilization rate and improve the operation skills of staff to maximize
the resource utilization.

The Group conducts daily monitoring and statistical analysis for
each operating project to understand the consumption of energy,
water resource and raw materials, so as to determine indicators
of the energy consumption, water consumption and raw materials
consumption and supervise and evaluate each project. In addition
to complying with relevant national laws and regulations, the Group
also has a series of internal monitoring, management and assessment
systems in place, sets the control target for total energy consumption
and gives early warning and fine-tuning to production projects of
which the energy consumption increases rapidly, in order to ensure
that the Group can utilize the resource in an effective way while
maintaining high-standard operation. The Group has been striving to
achieve maximum benefit for customers and the environment with the
minimal resource consumption, and to promote clean and sustainable
resources and energies.

73 70 o B TR 05 K R TR K it
KITEEENEARBHERD
Z—  AEBEEROLEEEREESD
MEEARE HERBRENE
B IR IR EETH R BB
ZHISBENERBRE B NR
2 ERMABERIENE INRIE
BREKF - PAEREIRM A &AL o

AEEEREERALTARE
TRADMAZEER - KER
TR R REB R - 48T 8 E B
Fe KR REM BB RIS -
HERBETEEEZ - KRET
BREBERERAI  RNEE
BRI T — RPN e T - B2
RERHE RBILRBEEEE
B AR - 8RR JR R R BT
REBROEEER MBEHEE
ME  BRAEEERFESE
EBLENRBFARNBER - &
SERKRBNERRLINERR
EPMRBAERAN R -
R R E R E B RE A B KB
TR o
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION B IR OH 8

During the 2020 Financial Year, the energy consumption of the Group RNEBM 20208 B F E W RERH
was mainly indirectly purchased electricity. The Group encourages HEETERMEENIINEES HEME -
all staff to save electrical energy during the production process and EEENRQBRES  AEEME
office work. The Group also arranges cleaners to conduct inspections BEREABISHHAE - REEN
during the non-office hours to ensure that the electric devices such as THRZABEIEHARFEETT
lighting equipment have been switched-off. The Group also sets fuel ME BRBARBESHERE
consumption targets for business vehicles and encourages all staff to BRI - AT EM A
use mass transit. Through the implementation of the above-mentioned WEBEBERER  THB2EE
measures, the employees’ awareness of reducing energy consumption ITZFEAAERB -BREELE
has been increased. In 2020 Financial Year, the Group only owns a Mg BIRAEBRERENE
small number of office vehicles and consumes Limited fuel. Therefore, HERES o R2020 RFE -
the Group does not collect any information on fuel. AEBEBRELERAKEER

HRBROMME - F ANEBEL
U SR AT R A AR O O B

Waste-to-energy incineration is a way to achieve “reduction, resource NIFRMERERBBARTETER
utilization and harmlessness” through incineration, converting thermal 2 BERt EEk] FA
energy from incineration to electricity to avoid wastage of resources. e ReEtnEe #eE
The Group enhances the measures on stacking fermentation of FRE - AEEE MR T a3k
waste to increase the heat utilization ratio and also adopts variable FEREBENEEAIESRENA
frequency control for large-power motors in order to reduce self- EMEANEERRBEEA
consumed electricity and increase the on-grid energy. Besides, we R ME O REILIE N ERE
adopt advanced operating technology during the incineration process, s oA EREBESD - M
enhance the thermal insulation effect of the equipment and recycle RELENZRELIR > NGRE
thermal energy for secondary use to increase the re-utilization rate R ERB R - @i = KB
of energy. Meanwhile, metering devices for electricity, water, heat, MEWFBFER ReiRNE
etc. are installed at the energy supply accesses to measure the energy FIAE - HEkRE - ANEBE L
used, in order to control consumption and reduce costs. FRHEAOZES K 2FE

EBRE HMARRETE
APESIERE HADRE -
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In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process
of wastewater treatment, the Group focuses on technological
transformation of key equipment with high energy consumption and
low efficiency, including the lifting pump, air blower and sludge
dewatering systems, etc. Besides, the Group continuously develops
and promotes new green technologies to reduce energy consumption
in the process.

In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process of
water supply, the Group continues to innovate production technology
and improve the production management system to increase water
production rate.

In 2020 Financial Year, the Group’s energy consumption intensity
is approximately 70.05 kWh per sq.m., representing an increase of
approximately 17.99% as compared with the 2019 Financial Year. The
main reason is the expansion of business, which leads to an increase
in electricity consumption. Our energy consumption performance for
2020 Financial Year is summarized as follows:

STERKEIBPMBERBERE B
REERMNAEX AEESHY
BEFREAN  MEENBERREET
TERMME  EPRBEREAR
HEE - TRERKRESRSE - U
Sh o AEBE BB EELZEN
Bl LARL D T BIREGH)BETR B HE o

SE KB IR R BEIRE A
RREEERNAX  KEETH
EMAERN TELEERS
B ARSEKE -

20208 X & - AN BRI BER
HRERELNAT0.05TRE e
K - EE20198F B F E AR EL 18
Mm#17.99% ~HEFZREZZE
BIER  SHEHEELM RN
20200 BB - NEBMRERE
FERBEBANT :

Type of energy HREER Unit By 2020 2019

Electricity EP)| kWh ThRE 396,040,455 326,245,693

Energy consumption intensity ERERRE kWh/sg.m. FRE/ 70.05 59.37
BETHK

WATER CONSUMPTION
The Group helps people in different regions to resolve water supply

problems and provide them with healthy and sufficient tap water.
In 2020 Financial Year, the volume of water sold by the Group
amounted to approximately 230,673,922 m? and the volume of
wastewater treated by the Group amounted to approximately
725,059,073 m3. The Group requires all its operating projects to use
reclaimed water for flushing and cooling of equipment if permitted

KIF B #E

BRMEBHIRLERNR RER
KEBRMMEHEEE ARRIR
HERE - OB RK B
P20 BN F EHMEKEL A
230,673,92232 75 K » M5 K EIE
849 /4725,059,07352 7 % o A&
EERZEEBREREERER
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and to use reclaimed water for all greenery in factories and office

areas, so as to reduce water resource consumption during

the

production process. To further reduce water consumption, water in

all the solid waste treatment facilities is fully recycled and reclaimed

water is also used as flushing water in some toilets. The Group

also invests resources to carry out activities such as posting water

conservation signs to remind staff to save water. Through
implementation of the above-mentioned water-saving measures,
employees' awareness of water-conservation has been increased.

the
the

In 2020 Financial Year, the Group’'s water consumption intensity

is approximately 5.66 m? per sq.m., representing an increase of

approximately 0.53% as compared with the 2019 Financial Year.

The

main reason is the expansion of business, which leads to an increase

in water consumption. Our water consumption performance for 2

Financial Year is summarized as follows:

020

HRBARERABEKEREET
RERRED - BE R AR AL
AXEHERBAENK  UERELE
EBRTRRKERERE - Aif—
WENK ¢ AR B 5K B AR i A
KBERDRBRAIA  LHEBH
BHEBPEKKABENK - AE
EREABRRAREED  BBE
BETA R KRS NIRESE
BETIHHNEK - BBREN EAE
KIEHE - B THEIKE A FTIR
‘,%‘o
R20200F U [ - ANE BB FEK
BmENABS66EFT K BETH
K E22019 B B4 E 4R Lb 3 a0
#053% - HFXZREALEKE
B BEFEKEE M - 7202081
BREE  AEENKRERERR
B

Unit By 2020 2019

Recycled water B A K m? AR 12,623,083 8,457,601

Tap water B 3k m STk 19,394,988 22,502,929

Total water consumption FKEE m? Ay 32,018,071 30,960,530

Water consumption intensity BkBE m3/sq.m. ;¥ V4 5.66 5.63
BETHAK

For our water supply business, the Group draws water from local

sources with proper government approval. Therefore, the Group does

not have any water sourcing issues.

USE OF PACKAGING MATERIALS

As an environmental-friendly water service enterprise, the Gr

oup

does not use any packaging materials during the daily course of its

business operations.
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IRIE -

The Environment and Natural Resources

ENVIRONMENT IMPACT MANAGEMENT

The construction of environmental protection projects will have

certain impact on the environment and natural resources. The
Group considers such impact as one of the key factors when
making investment decisions. The Group performs evaluation of the
abovementioned impact according to relevant laws and regulations.
The Group applies “simultaneous design, construction and operation”
acceptance check after the project has been put into operation to
meet the requirements of the relevant and laws, regulations and
policies. Besides, the Group has also developed relevant systems
and procedures to monitor and manage environmental impact of
all projects in order to avoid excessive use and waste of natural
resources, minimize the negative impact of the Group’s business
operation on the environment, thus achieving sustainable development
and creating long-term value for the Group’s stakeholders and
communities.

As treated wastewater in the wastewater treatment business will be
ultimately discharged to the environment, the Group strictly adheres
to the processing requirements to guarantee the stable quality of
treated water and reduce its impact on the environment. In addition,
we have strengthened the maintenance and repair of drainage
pipelines and sewage treatment equipment to ensure the integrity
and normal operation of pipelines and equipment and to eliminate
accidental discharge. When abnormal problems are found, we will
contact and report to the environmental protection department in
time.

A3. &

BERRXARER

REFEER
BREEMNESHRENRAEL
BREeELEA—TEVE AUBAEHE
HIEEHRENEEIAZEER
EREEMEUAEZ - AEEHE
%Wﬁﬁ-&ﬁ%ﬁ%%%&%
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EIEEL S IER HE IFJ%F**
B Bt - MRATEEBENER
Lﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ%x
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BERLOAEENEBEEEHIR
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FEZR RAKEORBNZER

HEmEREEE-
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The Group attaches great importance to the treatment of pollutants
including exhaust gas, liquid waste, odour and equipment noise
generated in the solid waste treatment process, and takes various
control measures for various pollutants to eliminate the environmental
pollution caused by solid wastes and plays a positive role in protecting
water and soil. The treatments are as follows:

. In addition to fly ash, exhaust gas also contain harmful
substances including NO,, SO,, HCl, heavy metals and dioxins.
The major harmful substances are organic substances including
dioxins, which are controlled with the more economical and

effective “3T+E” technology;

o After treatment of liquid waste with the professional
wastewater treatment system set up in the plant, the effluent
will be reused or used for greening and road cleaning; and

o Odour is used as combustion gas, or effective measures
including adsorption and filtration with adsorption device using
activated carbon are adopted to ensure air quality.

For thermal pollution during production process, the Group has
adopted advanced thermal insulation material to provide the heat
generation equipment with thermal insulation treatment in order to
ensure that the heat source point reaches the operation standard.
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For the noise pollution during production process, the Group has also
installed blimps for the noise-generating equipment and utilized green
plants to absorb noise according to function zoning, so that the noise
emission can meet the standard. We have formulated a completed
job post system and detailed operating procedures, strengthened
the maintenance and management of noisy equipment, paid close
attention to the effectiveness of equipment operation conditions and
noise reduction measures, found and solved problems in time, and
ensured the stable and normal function of noise control measures.

B. SOCIAL

Employment

Employees are the largest and most valuable asset of the Group and
the core of our competitive advantage. Therefore, the success of
the Group depends heavily on the ability to attract, train and retain
employees. The Group adheres to the people-oriented principle,
respects and protects the legitimate rights and interests of every
employee, strictly regulates labour and employment management, and
guarantees employees’ occupational health and safety. The Group has
also formulated a series of relevant personnel management policies
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations to protect the vital
interests of employees, fully respect and value the enthusiasm and
creativity of employees, aiming to build a harmonious employment
relationship, provide employees with healthy, sunny and positive
working atmosphere, and to guide employees to actively integrate
their personal pursuits into the long-term development of the Group.

HEALEBRPOHRIHR
AEBHELTRBHOREBELER
2 UREVESE - FIAK
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The Group has complied with all laws and regulations related to AEBEC BT A EE B RE
salary compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, B BEREHN IEEH R
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti- B FEKe St RES
discrimination and other treatment package and benefits, including LA R E At 538 R AR B 89 75 2 AR
but not limited to the Company Law of the PRC, the Contract Law Bl B IR PR R A B A i AR
of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the PRC, the Labour Security ZAREMBERRE) ~(PEA
Supervision Regulations in Mainland China and the Employment REMBEERE) - (PEARH
Ordinance, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, MBBEERZE)  (BEREES
the Minimum Wage Ordinance and the Employees’ Compensation TR R E B UE % &6
Ordinance of Hong Kong. During the 2020 Financial Year, the Group CGRENE R E R EEN) ~ (HIE
was not aware of any material non-compliance with all relevant laws TEBEG) - CEREMEERH) - R
and regulations in relation to employment. 20200 M EF - REE IR

EAHAEEERERTENE
REEMERBEZORRERRIZ

EREM
In 2020 Financial Year, the Group has a total of 7,007 employees, all R0 MFE - NEBEEHE
of whom are full-time employees. Employees by gender, age group 7007%EE - 2EHAAEHBE
and employment category are as follows: B EBZRMR - FEEKER

BRINE DT

Number of employees by gender

Biup g o EE AR

Female,

2,322,33%

Male,
5-; ,
4,685, 67%
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Number of employees by age group

BRFRARNS D EBEAR

41-50 years old Above 50 years old

412508% S
2,024, 29% SOBEIAL
908, 13%
Under 18 years old

185RA T -
0, 0%
31-40 years old 18-30 years old
31E2405% 18£307% -
2,397, 34% 1,678, 24%

Number of employees by
employment category

ZEEEHE D EEAR

Senior management Middle management
SHEIEE - FREEE -
= " . ’/ 712, 10%

186, 3%

General Staff
—MREI -
6,109, 87%

Number of employees by region
rtES T EEAH

Hong Kong Others
& HA
10, 0.1% 383,55%

Mainland China
AR E A, -
6,614, 94.4%
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RECRUITMENT, PROMOTION, REWARD AND DISMISSAL
The Group carries out open social recruitment in the market and

around the world following the principles of fairness, equality and
competition, and makes overall assessment and recruitment on a
selective basis. We also recruit excellent college students through
campus recruitment, and enable college students move forward
courageously toward their career goals under the professional and all-
round talent development mechanism. After employees are hired, the
Group enters into labour contracts with employees in accordance with
labour laws and regulations to effectively protect rights and interests
of employees.

Guided by target results, the Group has established an employee
performance appraisal system that covers employee performance,
competencies, attitudes, etc., and appropriately applies the appraisal
results to employee performance pay, promotion and salary
adjustments. In order to create a healthy, diversified and inclusive
working environment, all promotion, salary review and position
transfer decisions are based on the individual performance of
employees and the business conditions of the Group for objective
consideration.

REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

On the basis of evaluating the value of employees’ positions, the

Group has established a fair, reasonable and competitive remuneration
and benefits system based on its business strategy and with reference
to the industry level and regional level. At the same time, the Group
strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations of the applicable
countries, continuously improves employee benefits and reviews the
working hours of employees, pays various statutory social insurances
according to laws, and guarantees that employees enjoy statutory
holidays and other benefits. In addition, our employees are also
entitled to paid annual leave, wedding leave, maternity leave and
other holidays.
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EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES
The Group has strictly complied with various national and local

government regulations, adopted a fair, just and open recruitment
process, and formulated relevant systems to eliminate discrimination in
recruitment process, no employee will be discriminated against due to
factors such as race, gender, colour, age, family background, national
tradition, religion, physical fitness and nationality, so that employees
can enjoy fair treatment at all stages of recruitment, salary, training,
promotion, termination of labor contracts and retirement, and we can
also try our best to recruit professionals with different backgrounds
to join the Group. The Group is committed to providing equal
opportunities in all aspects and maintaining diversity of employees,

and also strongly prohibits any unfair treatment.

Health and Safety

We regard employees as important assets of the Group and
therefore attach great importance to occupational health and safety
management in the production and operation process. The Group
has complied with all laws and regulations related to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards, including but not limited to the Safety Production Law
of the PRC, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Disease, the Fire Protection Law of the PRC, the
Special Equipment Safety Law of the PRC, the Special Equipment
Safety Supervision Regulations and the Hazardous Chemicals Safety
Management Regulations in Mainland China and the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance, Factories and Industrial Undertakings
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the laws and regulations of other
applicable countries. In 2020 Financial Year, the Group did not found
any major violations of applicable national laws and regulations
related to health and safety that have a significant impact on the
Group in the projects covered by this Report, nor has it recorded
any work-related death accident, nor working days lost due to work-

related injuries.

B2.
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The Group has implemented the following measures to create and

maintain a safe working environment for employees:

o Set up a safety management organization in accordance with
regulations;

o Hire registered safety engineers;

o Appoint safety management personnel;

o Formulate safety, quality and environmental management

policies and goals;

o Establish a safety management system and system;

o Compile and publish a comprehensive emergency response
and rescue plan for production safety accidents and a special

emergency response plan for safety accidents; and

o Establish a safety production committee and hold regular
meetings to study, deploy and solve problems in the production

safety management process.

COVID-19 PREVENTION AND CONTROL MEASURES

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has conscientiously
implemented the pandemic prevention and control measures imposed
by the higher-level government departments and the Group, held
meetings at the first time to study the deployment of pandemic
prevention and control, and established an pandemic prevention and
control leading team to formulate and issue implementation plans
and emergency rescue plans for pandemic prevention and control.
According to the requirements of the Group, a daily pandemic report
system was launched in a timely manner since 26 January 2020, the
heads of 38 departments (centers), regional and directly-managed
companies will report to the Pandemic Prevention and Control Office
before 9:30 a.m. every day the information about the entry of key
affected areas, close contacts, quarantined, suspected or confirmed
cases, etc., track the physical condition and movement trajectory of
employees with colds and fevers, and make decisions about home

isolation in a timely manner when abnormal conditions are found.
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The Group also uses WeChat, Internet, billboards, banners, stickers
and other methods to carry out targeted pandemic prevention and
control propaganda and production safety education, to enhance
employees’ awareness and ability to participate in group prevention
and control. The Group incorporated the emergency management
of pandemic prevention and control into the construction of the
emergency management system, and established and improved
emergency response systems and plans such as the “Emergency
Response Plan Management System for Emergencies”, the “Emergency
Response and Rescue Plan for COVID-19” and the “Emergency
Response Plan for Medical Waste Disposal During Major Epidemics”.
The Group has carried out a total of 591 trainings, 311 tabletop
exercises and 383 actual combat exercises, involving a total of 8,243
participants. Through these trainings and exercises, the level and
ability of emergency management have been effectively improved, and
the inspection of various hidden safety hazard areas has been further
strengthened to ensure that the pandemic is controllable in order to
effectively avoid the spread of COVID-19.

TRAINING ON PRODUCTION SAFETY AND QUALITY
We have implemented the safe production responsibility at each

level, carried out hazard identification and risk assessment, and
strengthened hazardous operation management during the operating
management process. Safety inspection is conducted regularly to
eliminate hidden safety hazard at the production site and prevent
the occurrence of accidents. During the project construction process,
the Group is committed to fulfilling the safety responsibilities of the
owner, and has formulated a series of safety measures and policies
to enhance safety monitoring in order to ensure construction safety
and provide its staff with a safe working environment. The Group
has also obtained the OHSAS18001 International Management System
Certificate and further strengthened the operation and management
of the occupational health and safety management system.

In addition, we actively carry out safety trainings and education for
the staff, regularly enhance the professional skill and safety awareness
of the staff. The Group also distributes labour insurance supplies on
time in accordance with the labor insurance supplies management
system and organizes regular health checks every year for its staff in
order to prevent them from being exposed to occupational harm and
occupational diseases.
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The Group has also formulated a series of emergency plans to deal
with emergencies, such as the “Comprehensive Emergency Plan for
Production Safety Accidents” and the “Emergency Plan for Sudden
Environmental Incidents”, etc., and requires to organize no less than
one flood prevention drill training activity every year; the fire and
earthquake prevention equipment and facilities shall be inspected at
least once a year to ensure that they are all in good condition. We
strive to improve the ability of employees to deal with emergencies
through emergency drills for production safety accidents.

Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the establishment of its
internal management training and development system. Through
diversified training modes such as induction training, management
training, technical training and pre-job training, we meet the different
needs of employees at all levels and types and to improve their
skills so that they can continue to provide high-quality services and
assist the Group in its sustainable development, meanwhile assisting
employees in their personal growth and development.

In 2020 Financial Year, approximately 38% of employees of the
Group’s subsidiaries covered by this Report participated in training,
and each employee completed 6.68 hours of training on average. The
percentage of trained employees by gender and employee category is
as follows:

B3.

% of trained employees by gender

BRI 8 7 2 3 B

Female
2z 24%
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Male

5 76%
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% trained employees by
employment category

e S ERI 82 Z LA

Senior management
DREEE -
3%

General staff
—ET -

85%

Middle management

PAREERE

12%

Average training hours

19 2 5 B B
By gender =R & 5
Male B 7.71
Female 7 4.61
By employee category RESERES
Senior Management BREEE 6.51
Middle management FREREE 10.03
Junior personnel EBAE 6.30

TRAINING MANAGEMENT
To help new staff to get involved as soon as possible, we provide

induction training programs for new staff to introduce the corporate
culture and various internal rules and regulations of the Group. Our
staff receives different types of training according to their roles and
responsibilities. For instance, during 2020 Financial Year, the operation
center carried out professional trainings on MBR engineering, testing
knowledge, automatic control system and online monitoring; the
financial center conducted financial business trainings on financial
system and policy and overseas investment, etc.; the human
resources department also held professional trainings for segments
on internal control, risk management, system construction and safety

management.
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We provide our staff with comprehensive training programs according
to the characteristics of different positions in order to help employees
grow rapidly and realize individual value and to contribute to the
growth and development of the Group. We provide professional
safety technical training for personnel in special jobs such as boilers,
pressure vessels, elevators, electrical, lifting, welding equipment,
vehicle driving, inflammable and explosive. Employees need to pass
the examination of relevant departments and obtain a qualified
operation certificate (license) before they can be allowed to operate
independently within the specified validity period. In addition, for the
on-duty personnel of special types of jobs, they must receive regular
safety education to ensure work safety.

Labour Standards

PREVENTING CHILD AND FORCED LABOUR
The Group has complied with all laws and regulations related to the

prevention of child labour or forced labour, including but not limited
to the Labour Law of the PRC, the Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour in the PRC and the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong. In 2020 Financial Year, the Group has not found any
violations of applicable national laws and regulations related to the
prevention of child labour or forced labour that have a significant
impact on the Group.

The Group strictly prohibits any child labour and forced labour. The
Group clearly stipulates that only employees who have reached the
legal age are hired, and new employees are required to provide true
and accurate personal information when entering employment. In
addition, the Group also conducts background checks based on the
information provided by the employees, and does not employ those
who are found to have falsified information. If any of these are found
to be illegal, we will also report them to the regulatory authority
to prevent similar problems from arising. The Group also conducts
regular audits and inspections to prevent any child labor and forced
labor in its operations. In addition, employees of the Group only work
overtime voluntarily when necessary. The Group will never condone
any negative behaviors such as verbal abuse, corporal punishment,
physical abuse, oppression and sexual harassment of its employees for
any reason.
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Supply Chain Management

FAIR AND OPEN PROCUREMENT

In accordance with the provisions of the Tendering and Bidding Law
of the PRC and other relevant national laws and regulations, the
Group selects qualified suppliers through public bidding on the public
resource trading platform where the project is located. We have

formulated the Administrative Measures for Bidding and Procurement
to regulate bidding and procurement activities and improve the
efficiency of fund use, and to safeguard the interests of the Group at
the same time.

In accordance with the principles of unified management, legality
and comprehensive selection of the best, the Group conducts bidding
activities for all construction projects and procurement activities for
goods, projects and services. All personnel involved in bidding and
procurement management shall abide by the following regulations:

o Strictly implement the relevant laws and regulations of the state
and Yunnan Province on tendering and bidding management,
and adhere to the principle of “openness, fairness, justice,
honesty and credibility”;

° Strictly abide by procedures, act in accordance with regulations,
manage in accordance with the laws, and be honest and self-
disciplined,;

o Comply with bidding and bid evaluation disciplines, and shall
not disclose any bidding information and materials that should
be kept confidential during the bidding and bid evaluation
process; and

o Strictly forbidden to split project and circumvent the Company’s
bidding and procurement regulations.

Any violation of tendering and bidding laws and regulations and non-
compliance with bidding discipline shall be investigated, verified and
dealt with by the discipline inspection department of the Group.

For those that have not reached the bidding amount specified in the
Tendering and Bidding Law, the Group selects qualified suppliers by
bid invitation, competitive comparison or bid negotiation according
to the specific circumstances. The Group considers the environmental
and social performance, qualification level, goods provided or service
quality, service adaptability and capability as well as quoted price in a
comprehensive way when selecting suppliers.

B5.
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PROCUREMENT AND BIDDING PROCESS R IE 2 R IR R AR
After the project has met the bidding conditions and has been EHEAEABRERHELRAE

approved by the Company’s management, the Group will organize
a unified bidding or comparative procurement for the project in
accordance with the “Bidding Flowchart of Yunnan Water Investment

KB ERDBRRAABIRRE

of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited”. 15 E EITH — B EZEs L E

The following chart sets out the simplified “Bidding Flowchart of

o

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited”: HBERARBERIEZE) :

Draw up
bidding plan
HBE

EfLE S

Bidding
R

Bid winning

g

End of bidding
BRER

® The bidding and procurement department is responsible for providing various approval documents required for bidding filing;

o RIZRBA B ERUBEBRMBSIALL

® The bidding and procurement department compares and selects, entrusts a bidding agency and a cost consulting company, and
the project department assists in reviewing the blocked bid price; and

o BRERIEALLE - ZREBERERREEEARR  HEHREREEETER R

® The bidding agency prepares bidding documents, the bidding and procurement department and the contract cost department
review business documents, and the project management center and the technical risk control center review technical documents.

« BERBARRRBEXH - BERESN A FEESBREHXA  BEEERL  HITEEDOBERMTE o

e Establish a pre-qualification assessment team to review the pre-qualification documents under the supervision of the bidding
supervision leading team;

o K BEMRTATNRNE - WERREXUHEITIE  BREERY MSETEE

 The assessment team issues a pre-qualification report; and

EMEHABREERE &

* |ssue a notice of pre-qualification results.

FHERBAFERABA -

Form a bid evaluation committee to review the tendering documents under the supervision of the bidding supervision leading team;
MEFRZE S HREHETIE  BREERE METEE

The bid evaluation team issues a bid evaluation report; and

FHRMAL ATHERE R

e Determine the bid winning results.

e MENRMER o

® The bidding and procurement department, the project management center and relevant departments clarify the key points of
contract execution; and

o TR - THE BBH O REBHMPIHAERRTERETRIE : &

 The bidding and procurement department assists the project manager of the project department to establish a working relationship
with the contractor.

o BRI A IHBIIAR MR R LR EASHEY TIEBHE -
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The following chart sets out the simplified “Flowchart for Competitive TEAELEMN(ERmKBIRER
Comparison Procurement of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited”: 178 PR~ A 37 51 L& BRI A2
&) :

®The b|dd|ng and procurement department issues competitive comparison and selection invitation documents to more than 3 suppher@
based on the content of the task handover form. Among them, the business conditions are drawn up by the bidding and procurement
department and the purchasing application department, and the technical requirements are drawn up by the technology and risk
control center or related departments; an

ts; and
o RIZRAEIPRIBEIEE R E AN A MR LA ERE E R LB EE U + ELAR - P (6 { F FR I R 20 B A R 5B 30 P -

Compare By SRl B B RAE R L SRR EPP I E ¢ &
suppliers ® The list of suppliers to be invited shall be jointly determined by the relevant departments organized by the biddingban.d procurement
. department, reported to the leaders in charge and the general manager for approval and implementation, and submitted to
Lk the bidding supervision leading team for review.
1HrER o BAGES MR 2 B R RENAMARNPIRREE - | ERERELEIAER  SRREERY/)VERS -

J

o After all quotations are collected, the bidding and procurement department will organize the application department and relevant
cooperation departments to jointly open and review the bids under the supervision of the bidding supervision leading team;

e ERIMEE 2% - ABFEBHER - RHEIMI ERR S BFIRRME - 5TE - BREERY/ VARE

® Adjust the quotation requirements, ask all parties to make the second quotation on the same level; and

Quotation and o FERBEZR - FEHER KR LEITRERE &

evaluation ® The bidding and procurement department organizes the application department and relevant cooperation departments to jointly
i review the second quotation based on the same technical level, and select the top three.
S VR R - R T - R A - RSP RAARR A BPIARY RREETIE - RS - )
~

® The bidding and procurement department is responsible for organizing contract negotiations, with the participation of the application
department and the assistance of the relevant cooperating departments.

Comiel o DI NE EEMA RS - REBIISE - OB B -

confirmation

SRR

¢ The bidding and procurement department and the contract execution departments clarify the key points of contract execution;

o BIFFHER RS RPTHIIHERPTERETIE

 The bidding and procurement department assists the project leaders of the contract execution departments to establish working
contacts with the supplier;

o BITHEDHEISRAPITHIIER 8 & ANQHESET TIEHE

Contract ® The bidding and procurement department tracks and urges suppliers to supply on time and quality;

o RIRRE A RME (Rt E RN  REHE

e If goods return or exchange needed, the bidding and procurement department will assist in contacting the supplier to return or
exchange the goods; and

 IFBRBE - RITREA B BEHERRRE &

* The bidding and procurement department conducts after-sales evaluation of the supplier based on the feedback from the contract execution.

o BIRRBEBRIZS ARTHRBENR - HAHEEHETERTE -

performance

BRI

J
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Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to product and service quality
and corporate reputation. The Group actively ensures product quality
through internal control and is committed to providing services that
meet industry standards. The Group strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Law of the PRC
on Protecting Consumers’ Rights and Interests, the Advertising Law
of the PRC as well as the Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance and the
Sales of Goods Ordinance of Hong Kong. In 2020 Financial Year, the
Group has not found any violations of applicable national laws and
regulations related to product liability that have a significant impact
on the Group, nor has it received any recall cases of sold or delivered
products for safety and health reasons or any complaint about
products and services.

PRODUCT QUALITY
The Group has technologies and industrial experience necessary to

maintain the quality of environmental protection projects at each
stage such as design, investment, construction and operation. For
instance, the Group adopt advanced online monitoring systems to
continuously monitor the quality of the treated wastewater and
supplied water during the operating process of the wastewater
treatment and water supply facilities. Specifically, the monitoring
data of the online monitoring system for wastewater treatment will
be transmitted to the government platform for pollution sources
of the authority in a real-time way for 24-hour monitoring. The
Group adheres to the policy of “quality first, prevention first”, and
continuously improves process control in accordance with the cyclical
work method of “planning, execution, inspection, and processing”.

Besides, the Group has obtained international management system
certificates such as 1SO9001, 1SO14001 and OHSAS18001, strictly
abides by the above standards during the process of production and
assembly, and enhances the operation of the systems on quality,
environment, occupational health & safety in order to ensure the

quality of the membrane products manufactured.
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The Group carries out major businesses by strictly implementing and
complying with the relevant national or industrial standards.

With regard to the wastewater treatment business of the Group, the
Group is committed to ensuring that the treated wastewater meets
the requirement of Discharge Standard for Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB 18918-2002) or Environmental
Quality Standard V for Surface Water or local standards and that
wastewater discharge outlets are built in strict compliance with the
requirements of the environmental impact assessment report approved
by the government for designated discharge.

With regard to the water supply business of the Group, the Group
attaches great importance to water quality control from the water
source to users since the quality of the water supplied directly affects
public health. Water supplied by the Group meets a number of
national standards, including but not limited to Hygienic Standard
for Drinking Water (GB 5749-2006), Standard for Quality of Urban
Water Supply (CJ/T 206-2005), Technical Regulations on Operation,
Maintenance and Safety of Urban Water Supply Plant (CJJ 58-2009),
Technical Regulations on Operation, Maintenance and Safety of Urban
Water Supply Pipeline Network (CJJ 207-2013) and Urban Water
Supply Services (GB/T32063-2015) in order to ensure reliable and safe
water supply. The Group has established strict quality management
systems, tests and inspects against various indexes on production and
operation and conducts real-time monitoring on the water quality to
ensure that the water quality meets the relevant standards.

With regard to the solid waste treatment business, the services
provided by the Group are governed by Pollution Control Standard
for Domestic Waste Landfill (GB-16889-2008), Pollution Control
Standard for Municipal Waste Incineration (GB-18485-2014), Technical
Requirements on Medical Waste Incinerator (GB-19218-2003) and
Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Incineration (GB-
18484-2001). The Group has set up internal control systems and set
discharge limits for incineration plants according to strict operation
conditions and technical requirements in order to minimize the impact
of waste incineration to the environment and to the public.
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The Group has also prepared comprehensive contingency plans
and emergency mechanisms for potential risks and accidents in the
production process and will immediately activate the contingency
plans in case of emergency happens to ensure users’ safety and

health.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

The Group proactively extends customer service and actively
communicates with customers. The Group has formulated the “Manual
for Quality Management of Production and Operation”, which stipulates
that the leaders of the Company must completely and accurately
identify and determine customer requirements through investigation,
research, analysis and communication with customers, including product
requirements, process requirements, quality management system and
other requirements. At the same time, the Group stipulates that
leaders of the Company must communicate effectively with customers,
understand customer satisfaction, and propose directions for continuous

improvement, so as to continuously enhance customer satisfaction

through continuous improvement.

PROTECTION OF CUSTOMER PRIVACY

The Group conducts strict and prudent management of customer files
to avoid leakage of customer privacy. The Group strictly abides by the
Law of the PRC on the Protection of State Secrets and the Provisions
on the Confidentiality Management of State Secret Carriers and
other laws and regulations, and promises to implement strict security
protection measures for customer information collected in the course
of business operations to ensure customer information not to be

leaked or abused.

Customer information and customer data must not be sold, shared or
disclosed for any purpose, and every employee must protect customer
information and data in accordance with the Group’s regulations.
The Group's conversations with customers, transaction history,
documents and reports provided by them (if not made public) will
be kept confidential, and it is strictly forbidden to disclose customer
information to third parties without the customer’s authorization.
At the same time, customers always have the right to review and
modify their information. The Group is firmly committed to protecting
customers’ privacy, so as to win the trust and confidence of
customers and maintain the Group's competitiveness in the market,
which is the driving force for the Group’s sustainable business

development and service quality assurance.
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PROTECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
In 2020 Financial Year, the Group continued to devote substantial

resources in research and development capabilities. In China, the
Group has 114 registered patents related to sewage treatment, water
supply, sludge treatment, membrane manufacturing and application,
and municipal waste treatment. The Group respects the intellectual
property rights of third parties, and is also committed to protecting its
own intellectual property rights from infringement. In the future, we
will closely monitor infringements in the market and crack down on

any infringements such as counterfeit trademarks.

ADVERTISING AND LABELING
As a company providing environmental protection services, the

operation of the Group does not involve major matters related to
advertising and labeling. Nevertheless, the Group is committed to
ensuring that the labels of its products conform to the actual product
conditions. The Group strictly abides by the Advertising Law of the
PRC, the Trade Descriptions Ordinance of Hong Kong and other
relevant advertising and marketing laws and regulations, formulates
and implements relevant systems for monitoring advertising and
marketing, strictly reviews publicly released promotional materials and
sales commitments, and prevents promotional content from being
inaccurate or misleading, so as to protect the consumers’ rights from

being infringed.

The Group requires all external image display, event promotion,
marketing promotion and other publicity content of its units, agencies
and subordinate projects be produced and published after the
approval of the leader in charge, to avoid any form of false publicity,
and to ensure that the content of the publicity true and accurate.
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B7.

Anti-corruption

PREVENT CORRUPTION AND FRAUD

The Group has established a disciplinary committee and a disciplinary

inspection and supervision office dedicated for preventing bribery,
extortion and fraud prevention as well as relevant investigations and
handling. The Group has established a corruption risk prevention
and control system, developed corruption risk prevention and control
measures, so as to implement dynamic management of corruption risk
prevention and control. In addition, the Group has established whistle-
blowing channels via telephone and e-mail to accept reports relating
to the violation of laws and the code of conduct. The Group also
attaches importance to corruption risk education, organizes corruption
risk training, holds special lectures on corruption prevention and
enhances the anti-corruption awareness of the staff.

On 1 September 2020, the Company held a conference meeting
for family integrity. At the meeting, the Company organized the
management and their family members to watch our promotional
video and the “Good Family Tradition in Yunling” anti-corruption
cultural feature film, “Promote Integrity with Good Family Tradition”,
issued the integrity proposal to the attending family members and
signed the integrity commitment letters. 66 leaders and middle-level
managers of the Company, management members of the second-
level companies in Kunming and their family members attended the
meeting.

On 7 September 2020, the Group organized a visit to Kunming
Disciplinary Education Base to carry out the anti-corruption warning
education activities for financial year 2020, focusing on learning
advanced models of diligence and integrity, reflecting on typical
corruption cases, enhancing employees’ awareness of integrity
and building a solid line of ideological and moral defense against
corruption and degeneration. A total of 73 employees, including
leaders of the Company, middle-level managers and personnel in key
position at the headquarters, middle-level and above management
members of the second-level companies in Kunming participated in
the event. Under the guidance of the staff of Kunming Discipline
Education Base, our employees visited the education base.
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IRIE -

The management and all employees of the Group strictly abide
by the Group's code of ethics and conduct and relevant laws
and regulations, including but not limited to the Tendering and
Bidding Law of the PRC, the Interim Provisions on the Prohibition of
Commercial Bribery and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong
Kong. In 2020 Financial Year, the Group has not found any violations
of applicable national laws and regulations related to the prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have a
significant impact on the Group, nor has it filed and concluded any
corruption lawsuits against the Group or its employees.

Community Investment

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Group has a strong sense of social responsibility. As an

active advocator for building a learning-oriented enterprise, the
cooperation between the Group and universities is regarded as a
meaningful public welfare activity for both the community as well
as the Group. The Group makes contributions in implementing the
strategy of developing the country through science and education
and reinvigorating the country through talents development as well
as building a harmonious society while actively establishing and
enhancing the reputation of the Group.

In order to fulfill its social responsibilities and fight against the
epidemic, the cadres and employees of the Group actively donated
money to support the anti-epidemic work. During the period
of shortage of epidemic prevention materials, the Group timely
purchased masks and other epidemic prevention materials and sent
them to Thailand, Indonesia and other overseas places. To ensure the
normal production of medical waste treatment projects, the Group
timely purchased protective clothing, masks and other materials to
support the frontline production. In 2020 Financial Year, a total
of 4,500 employees donated more than RMB720,000 and 64,300
disposable medical masks and 3M medical masks in aggregate.
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On 31 July 2020, the Group organized all party members, cadres
and employees at the headquarters to carry out a patriotic health
cleanup “public participation” activity, calling on all party members
and employees to improve their political positions, act quickly to
implement and take up work responsibilities, and make every effort to
promote the implementation of special patriotic health actions within
the Group. Carrying out the health cleanup “public participation”
activity will not only help clean up our environment, but also
effectively guide the public to form a good atmosphere of sanitation
and civilization.

The combination of “reverence, thankfulness and confidence” has
always been the cultural concept advocated by the Group since
its inception. The spirit of actively undertaking responsibilities,
dedication and caring heart of the Group’s employees fully reflects
the centripetal force and cohesion of our corporate culture. Under the
guidance of this concept, the Group will continue to strive to perform
its social responsibility as well as actively hold and participate in social
charity activities.
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE “ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"” OF (IRIB -
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED AR

Aspect, general
disclosure and

Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2020

IRIE -

e kg

B R 42020

key performance EH - —HREER

indicator (KP1) BREMNEE Description i Chapter/Statement E& /B H
Aspect A1: BEA1: FXY

Emissions

General disclosure  — R E Information on: (a) the policies;  BEER N BEZEREHN » WK Emissions 2137 ¢

KPI'A1.1

KPI'A1.2

KPI'A1.3

KPI'A1.4

KPI A1.5

KPI'A1.6

B ERIERAL

BREARERA12

BREMUIEEALS

MRERIEEA 4

BB NUERALS

HREBIEEALG

and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the
issuer relating to waste gas

and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and

nonhazardous waste, etc.

Types of emissions and related

emissions data.

Total greenhouse gas emissions
(in tons) and intensity.

Total amount (in tons) and
intensity of hazardous waste
generated.

Total amount (in tons) and
intensity of non-hazardous waste
generated.

Description of the measures to
reduce emissions and the results
achieved.

Description of the methods
to treat hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, measures to
reduce the amount of waste
generated, and the results
obtained.
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gas emissions, GHG
emissions, wastewater
discharge and
treatment
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non-hazardous waste
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Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance EH - —HREER

indicator (KPI) BREMNEE Description i Chapter/Statement Zi /&%
Aspect A2: Use of EEA2: ERfFEH

Resources

General disclosure  —RFHE Policies for effective use of BERER(BIEER  KKRE Use of Resources &R

resources (including energy, water R i1 £H) 1 o
and other raw materials).

KPI A2.1 BB MI5ZA2.1  Total direct and/or indirect energy HER B DM EHE /L Use of Resources —  BRER — ERER
consumption and intensity by FREEREE - Energy consumption
type.

KPI A2.2 B4 M35 12A2.2  Total water consumption and BRKEREE - Use of Resources —  BIREEA — KIRIEF
intensity. Water consumption

KPI A2.3 BISR4EAMIEEA2.3  Description of the energy BB A B RFTEA Use of Resources —  ZRER — s ERE
efficiency improvement plan and £ © Energy consumption

the results achieved.
KPI A2.4 BB MI51EA2.4  Description of the availability R SREUE BB E AT B AR Use of Resources — BB — KBE#H
of the applicable water source & * A RIEFA Ak at 8l AT Water consumption
as well as the water efficiency ~ B E o
improvement plan and the results

obtained.

KPI A2.5 FISREEWIEIZA25  Total amount (in tons) of BN RTAREMBNEE (MM Use of Resources —  ERER — BEMH
packaging materials used in the ¥t E)RGEEBMEE ° Use of packaging 1 F
finished products and the amount materials (TER —B#E)
per production unit. (Not applicable —

Explained)

Aspect A3: BEA3: BERXA

Environmental and &i§

Natural Resources

General disclosure  — & & Policies to reduce the issuer's BT AHBRERARERE Environmental and BERAABE — B
significant impact on the REAZENHR - Natural Resources — ¥ EE 2
environment and natural Environmental impact
resources. management

KPI A3.1 BISRAEMIEIZA3.1  Description of the significant WL ERERLIRERKRAER Environmental and BERAABE — B
impact of business activities on ~ WEAZZREFMEREME Natural Resources — HFEEE
the environment and natural 2HTE - Environmental impact
resources and the actions taken management

to manage the impact.
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RE -HENERY

k42020

key performance EHE - —HREER
indicator (KPI) BREMNEE Description ik Chapter/Statement Ei /&%
Aspect B1: EEB1: EfR
Employment
General disclosure  — &K E Information on: (a) the policies;  BEH Mk #E - BEREF +  Employment EfE
and (b) compliance with relevant T {ER & - R FEH#e %
laws and regulations that have  Joit « RIERAREMAFERE
a significant impact on the HE : @QBEK  RO)EFHES
issuer relating to compensation  ABERFZMEEEE KA
and dismissal, recruitment and HER o
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
KPI B1.1 BERLEAMIEIEB1.1 Total number of employees by MR - EREL - F&4EF K Employment EfE
gender, type of employment, age MEEHHEE LK o
group and region.
KPI B1.2 BISE4EAIE1ZB1.2  Employee turnover by gender, RR  EEER  FRAR R Employment EfE
type of employment, age group  HEEFHEEFLE -
and region.
Aspect B2: Health [EEB2: BEHEZ2
and Safety
General disclosure  — &K E Information on: () the policies;  BAERHEZ 2 TERERRERE Health and Safety BEHAZ2
and (b) compliance with relevant E#GBEMEEEM : QBE
laws and regulations that have ~ R(O)EFHETABEATEH
a significant impact on the BEEERAGINER
issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
KPI B2.1 BB MIEEB2.1 Number and rate of work-related A T{EBEMFTMAZRLLE o Health and Safety BEEZ2
deaths.
KPI B2.2 BB 45 A3512B2.2  Number of working days lost due E TStk TEA % - Health and Safety EREz2
to work-related injuries.
KPI B2.3 BISE4EMIE1EB2.3  Description of the occupational il TR AKX B FEZ 24 Health and Safety BERZ2

health and safety measures
adopted, as well as related
implementation and monitoring
methods.

B AREBRITRERTE -
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/8 F
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key performance EH - —HREER
indicator (KPI) BREMNEE Description i Chapter/Statement Zi /&%
Aspect B3: EBEB3: #EKEA
Development and
Training
General disclosure  — B E Policies to improve employees’ EHERAEBEMTIEREMA Development and TR EE
knowledge and skills in AR BERHBOR < BiliEHES) o Training
performing their duties.
Description of the training
activities.
KPI B3.1 BISR4EIE1ER3.1  The percentage of employees RURIRESER(MSHREE Development and R R
trained by gender and B HREREZ)ESNZHE Training
employee category (e.g. EEER N
senior management, middle
management).
KPI B3.2 FASRIERMIEIER3.2  Average number of training hours X1t R R {E EERIZE|H - B4 /E Development and R
completed by each employee BRERZIMTIRE - Training
by gender and employment
category.
Aspect B4: Labour [EEB4 : % T %8
Standards
General disclosure  — &K E Information on: (a) the policies; ~ BB L Z T k3844 T4 : (a) Labour Standards AT
and (b) compliance with relevant B : RO)ETFTHETABTEKR
laws and regulations that have a ¥ 2N A E KRHIAOER -
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child or
forced labour.
KPI B4.1 BISRAEMIEIZBA. 1 Description of the measures to il &1 HREEE fI M FE HELAE % Labour Standards TR
review recruitment practices to  ET RBHE T o
avoid child labour and forced
labour.
KPI B4.2 BESRIEAIEIZBA2  Description of the steps taken to il 7E 3B IR IE R ERE® Labour Standards BITEA
eliminate the situation when a BRETHRIE S8 -
violation is discovered.
Aspect B5: FEEBs: HEHEER
Supply Chain
Management
General disclosure  —fZH & Policies to manage the ERHEEAORERLIEREBE Supply Chain e e R
environmental and social risks of % ° Management

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K 1% &

the supply chain.
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Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance EHE - —HREER

indicator (KPI) BREMNEE Description ik Chapter/Statement & /B8

KPI B5.1 BISRAEAIE1ZER5.1  Number of suppliers by region. BB DHHEEHA - Supply Chain BEESE
Management

KPI B5.2 FAEAEAIEIER5.2  Description of the practices HOBREAEEHMNER - ®m Supply Chain BT R
for engaging suppliers, the HYTEBENNHERSEE - Management

number of suppliers to whom LMSMB BRITRERRE °
the practices are implemented,

and the implementation and

monitoring methods of the

practices.

Aspect B6: Product EEB6: EREME

Responsibility

General disclosure  — B E Information on: (a) the policies; ﬁfiﬁﬂﬂ ERMREOEREE Product Responsibility 7 m & 1T
and (b) compliance with relevant %% RERLBEEMN

laws and regulations that have a &%ﬂﬁ(ﬁ?ﬁﬁ'\] @B Rb)E
significant impact on the issuer — FHETABEAY EQOMAME
relating to health and safety, ERBAOHER -

advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of

redress.

KPI B6.1 78§ & %45 2B6.1 Percentage of the products BESDEXRERBHPTREL S Product Responsibility 7 & F
sold or delivered that must be HEFEAMALDRNEIL o
recycled for safety and health
reasons.

KPI B6.2 BRI AEMIEER6.2  Number of complaints received — ZEBINE R K RBENRFEE Product Responsibility & & T
about products and services and LA % i 4 77 3% o
the handling methods.

KPI B6.3 9 45 W5 12B6.3 Description of the practices MEEERREMBEESR Product Responsibility 7 & 1F
related to the maintenance and E’\] Bl o
protection of intellectual property
rights.

KPI B6.4 FA4 45 MI51ER6.4  Description of the quality HLEERTAEREREYIRE Product Responsibility & & F

assurance process and product e
recycling procedures.
KPI B6.5 BISR4EIEIEB6.5  Description of the consumer data it 4B & S RERMBE  Product Responsibility 7 5 & fF
protection and privacy policies, & ' MRMHBHITRERHZE o
and the related implementation
and monitoring methods.
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Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

HtERE

BE -REER
BRENER

/\—\Z_\i

/8 F

k22020

Description

it Chapter/Statement

B/ BH

Aspect B7: Anti-
corruption

General disclosure

KPI B7.1

KPI B7.2

Aspect B8:
Community

Investment

General disclosure

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

276 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K 1% &

EWEB7: RES

—RRE

B ERIEReT

B A AR 1RR7.2

EEBS: HERE

—REE

BB MIEIEBS8.A

B E 513882

Information on: (a) the policies;
and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing from
bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

Number of concluded lawsuits
regarding corruption brought
against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting
period and the results of the

lawsuits.

Description of the preventive
measures and reporting
procedures, as well as the related

implementation and monitoring

methods.

Policies related to community
participation to understand the
needs of the community in which
the issuer operates and to ensure
that its business activities will
take into account the interests of

the community.

Focus areas of contribution (such
as education, environmental
issues, labour needs, health,

culture, sports).

Resources (such as money or
time) used in the focus field.

HEAMEHE 8% MEFRE  Anti-corruption
R (QEE - Rb)ETHE
TABERTENHRBEERS

Bl &®

RERBNEETAKEEER Anti-corruption
HITERENASHFARENE
ARFDER -

BB EEERBRIEF - AR Anti-corruption
BERTRERGE o

BHEAKRSERTHZEME Community
HEFENBEREZEBIZHEE Investment
BAHEFSAOBE o

EFERERE(NHAE - REE Community
H STIHEKR @ Xt 8  Investment
B)e

EEIERMHAER(WEEX Community

FHE) ° Investment
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